'l'o\\ ‘X GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 395
Gardnegvill CraTeR A o 775 85 7108
e ‘“g nel'\r'g\]:ddg Meeting Agenda www.gardru-:‘r\.rilIe-n.\t.gm.r

Paul Lindsay, Chairman
Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Lioyd Higuera, Board Member
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member

Tuesday, September 4, 2012 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

MISSION STATEMENT

“The Town of Gardnerville provides high quality services based on community needs in a cost effective and efficient manner, We will
strive to protect the community's quality of life while proactively preparing for the future. We will be accessible and fully accountable to
our community.”

Copies of the finalized agenda are posted at the following locations prior to meeting day in accordance with NRS Chapter 241: Gardnerville
Town Offices, Gardnerville Post Office, Carson Valley Chamber of Gommerce and Visitors Authority and the Douglas County 8" Street
Historic Courthouse. The agenda is also posted on the internet at www.gardnerville-nv.gov. Allitems shall include discussion and possible
action to approve, modify, deny, or continue.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or accommodations at the
meeting are requested to notify the Gardnerville Town Offices in writing at 1407 Highway 395, Gardnerville NV 89410, or by calling (775)
782-7134 at least 24 hours in advance.

Notice regarding NRS 237: The Gardnerville Town Board has adopted a Standard Policy No. 7, which contains a motion regarding
Business Impact Statements. When the Town Board approves its agenda, it also approves a motion which includes ratification of staff
action taken pursuant to NRS 237-030 et seq. with respect to items on the agenda, and determines that each Rule which is on the agenda
for which a BIS has been prepared does impose a direct and significant economic burden on a business or directly restricts the formation,
operation or expansion of a business, and each Rule which is on the agenda for which a BIS has not been prepared does not impose a
direct and significant economic impact on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business.

Notice: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; the Gardnerville Town Board may combine two or more agenda items for

consideration; and the Gardnerville Town Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the
agenda at any time.

4:30 P.M. Call to Order and Determination of a Guorum
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Mike Philips
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.

The Gardnerville Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most efficient
manner.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
August 7, 2012 Regular Board meeting, with public comment prior to Board action.

PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3 minutes. The
Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on
the agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

ltems appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motion after public comment. Consent
items may be pulled at the request of Town Board members wishing to have an item or items discussed further. When items
are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda.

1. Correspondence

2. Health and Sanitation Department Monthly Report

3. Approve August 2012 claims

4. Approve the revised planned development modification (PD) 04-008-4, for the Ranch at Gardnerville, LLC,
requesting a modification to a previously approved planned development; to modify the planned development
boundary identified in ordinance #2004-1108, extend and modify the development schedule, and to modify the
subdivision design as a result of changes to the road improvements and re-designing of alley ways to the

www, gardnerville-nv.oov September 4, 2012




Gardnerville

Nevada GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA — CONT’D
streets; including associated variances to the Douglas County Design Manual and Douglas County
Development Code. The property is located south of Buckeye Road and north of Gilman Avenue along
Heybourne Road, within the SFR-8,000 (Single Family Residential, 8,000 square foot minimum parcel size)
zoning district with a PD (Planned Development) Overlay, and is located within the Minden-Gardnerville
Community Plan Area, APN’s: 1320-29-000-008, -014, 1320-33-210-033 & 1320-32-501-017

End of Consent Calendar
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

(Any agenda items pulled from the Consent Calendar will be heard at this point)

5.

10.

Not for Possible Action: Presentation from A.J. Frels, Executive Director for Carson Valley Visitor’s
Authority on “The Power of Tourism, Carson Valley’s New Brand.” (approx 20 minutes)

For Possible Action: Discussion on Planned Development Madification (PD) 09-001-1, for Sierra Nevada
SW Enterprises, Ltd., requesting a modification to the Planned development boundary, incorporating
areas of the approved 2011 development plan, and a request to amend areas of the A-19 zoning to General
Commercial, within the A-19 (Agriculture 19 acre minimum parcel size) and GC {(General Commercial)
zoning districts. The subject property is part of the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan and is located north of
Charlotte Way and east of US Hwy 395 in the Minden-Gardnerville and East Valley Community Plans,
APNs: 1220-10-501-006, 122010-110-007,1220-10-101-002,1220-03-000-039, 1220-10-501-008 and 1220-10-
510-009, with public comment prior to board action. (approx 20 minutes)

For Possible action: Discussion to award, deny or re bid, the Chichester Crack Fill project (project number
2012-11). The project consists of noticing adjacent residents and providing materials and labor to fill the
remaining two (2) inch and smaller cracks and gutter pan cracks on Gilman Avenue, Chichester Drive, and
sections of Marion Russell Drive, Lampe Road, and Harvest Avenue and additive alternate on Petar Lane.
Awarding the project will include authorizing the town manager to sign the contract and authorize the
billings in addition to 10% over the total contract amount, and to cover any change orders during
construction, with public comment prior to board action. {(approx 10 minutes)

Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Main Street Program Manager’s Monthly Report of activities for
August 2012. (approx 10 minutes)

Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for August 2012,
(approx 10 minutes)

Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s Monthly Report of activities for August
2012. (approx 20 minutes)

Adjourn

Calendar: Oktoberfest - September 23, 2012

Regular Town Board Meeting — October 2, 2012

www.gardnerville-nv.gov 2 September 4, 2012



N GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 395

l oW ﬂ

Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
Ga dner Vﬂle . ) 775-782-7134 FAX: 775-782-7135
Nevada Meeting Minutes www.gardnerville-nv.gov

Paul Lindsay, Chairman
Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member

Tuesday, August 7, 2012 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. Chairman Lindsay made a Determination of a Quorum

PRESENT:
Paul Lindsay, Chairman Tyler Altom, Town Counsel
Ken Miller, Vice-Chairman Tom Dallaire, Town Manager/Engineer
Lloyd Higuera Paula Lochridge, Main Street Program Manager
Michael Philips Carol Louthan, Office Manager Sr.
Linda Slater

% PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- The pledge of allegiance was led by Vice-Chairman Ken Miller

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.
The Gardnerville Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most efficient
manner.

Motion Philips/Slater to approve the August agenda.
No public comment.

Upon call for vote, motion carried.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
July 3, 2012 Regular Board meeting, with public comment prior to Board action.

Chairman Lindsay and Board Member Philips were absent for the July meeting and will not vote.
Motion Slater/Higuera to approve the minutes of July 3, 2012.
No public comment.

Upon call for the vote, motion carried by those present at the July 3, 2012 meeting.

Sl PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)
This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3 minutes. The

Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on
the agenda.

No public comment

i)

CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motion after public comment. Consent
items may be pulled at the request of Town Board members wishing 1o have an item or items discussed further. When items
are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda.

1. Correspondence
Read and noted



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2082 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 2

2. Health and Sanitation Department Monthly Report
Accepted

3. Approve July 2012 claims
Approved

4. Approve Town Resolution 2012R-01, a grant application to Nevada State Parks Land & Water Conservation
Fund for Martin Slough Phase IV Nature Trail amenities
Approved

5. Approve a Town special event application for Douglas Animal Welfare Group (DAWG) 2012 Mutt Poker Walk,
October 6, 2012, 8:30 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. at the Carson Valley Museum & Cultural Center, 1477 Highway 395 N
Approved

6. Recommend approval for Douglas County Outdoor Festival Entertainment Event application submitted by
Carson Valley Sertoma Club for the 22™ Annual Carson Valley Sertoma Oktoberfest scheduled for September
23, 2012 in Heritage Park.
Approval recommended

7. Approve Gardnerville Special Event Application for the 22" Annual Carson Valley Sertoma Oktoberfest
scheduled for September 23, 2012 in Heritage Park.
Approved

End of Consent Calendar
Motion Philips/Miller to approve the consent calendar.
No public comment.

Upon call for the vote, motion carried.

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
{Any agenda ifems pulled from the Consent Calendar will be heard at this poinf)

8. @ For Possible Action. Discussion to approve Proclamation 2012P-02 recognizing the week of August 6,
2012 as Brain Injury Awareness week, with public comment prior to Board action.

Mr. Dallaire read the proclamation into the record. {Proclamation read with corrected dates of August 11 through
August 18, 2012.)

Mr. Michael Smith advised the reason August 12" is important is this proclamation is dedicated to the caregivers. His
mother took care of him for 12 years. Her birthday is August 12". Also, the reason it is done this time of year is football
practice starts soon. He has been doing this speech for about eight years. Your actions by doing this proclamation are
positive. Hf you are riding your bike by wearing a helmet you set an example. He was married in October. His wife is also
brain injured. You can adapt. You can learn. We are proud of our wins. But you need simple goals. Keep trying. There is
a poster in the back and you can pretty much do research yourself. The doctors are getting better at studying this issue.
Thank you.

Motion Higuera/Slater to approve Proclamation 2012P-02 recognizing the week of August 11 through 18, 2012
as Brain Injury Awareness week.

No public comment.

Upon call for the vote, motion carried.

Mr. Smith has been promoting his public access TV show for five years with Gardnerville being a feature on many of
the shows. You have just been named the best new series in Sacramento. That is 350,000 people under Comcast. We
have the 11:00 o’clock block on Saturday morning. We are also running brain injury shows. Hopefully we are making a

difference for Gardnerville.

Mr. Dallaire presented Mr. Smith with the proclamation.

[In

9, @ For Possible Action: Discussion to approve, approve with modifications, or deny a request for a planned
development modification (PD) 04-008-4, for the Ranch at Gardnerville, LLC, requesting a modification to a




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 3

previously approved planned development; to modify the planned development boundary identified in
ordinance #2004-1108, extend and modify the development schedule and modify the subdivision designasa
resulf of changes to the road improvements and re-designing of alley ways to the streets; including
associated variances to the Douglas County Design Manual and Douglas County Development Code. The
propenriy is located south of Buckeye Road and north of Gilman Avenue along Heybourne Road, within the
SFR-8,000 (Single Family Residential, 8,000 square foot minimum parcel size) zoning district with a PD
{Planned Development) Overlay, and is located within the Minden-Gardnerville Community Plan Area, APN’s:
1320-29-000-008, -014, 1320-33-210-033 & 1320-32-501-017, with public comment prior to Board action.

Mr. Dallaire went over staff's comments and recommendations included in Board packets, for the project. There
is a spreadsheet they provided in Rob's information that has a breakdown of parcel sizes on Page 9-25. You can see
the distribution north of Zerolene, and south of Zerolene, which is in Gardnerville.

Chairman Lindsay asked what size lots were in Arbor Gardens.

Mr. Daltaire thought they were 5,000 square feet. But they have the alleys in the back. Originally this was the
same way. It would be nice to have a trail in the middle of the subdivision. He is concerned about getting some
access off Heybourne where the small open space is located. There are 14 variance requests they were asking for.
Commissioner Bonner was concerned about the block wall. We don't want to maintain a block wall in Gardnerville.
My recommendation would be, after the experience with Toler, to put the block wall on its own parcel for maintenance
and have a maintenance district. That will be for Minden to work out. They were going to reduce the coliector
separation standard between driveways and street from 200 feet to 150 feet. Staff doesn't have a problem with that i
they reduce the speed limit to 25. The variance they are asking for, the garage has o be set back 20 feet so some of
the homes have the garage in the front and the house is in the rear and some the house wraps around in front of the
garage. Rob will address the setback issue. That is one of their requests.

Mr. Miller believed they also have parking along Heybourne.

Mr. Dallaire told Mr. Miller he was correct.

Mr. Philips asked if the speed limit issue had been taken care of.

Mr. Dallaire answered on phase one, not for the entire development. The speed limit is 25.

Mrs. Slater commented on top of that you have the bicycle path.

Mr. Dallaire answered that is on Heybourne only. ki is not on local roads. It will be designated and striped. We
have to get better on the plan review side so when the builder comes in and does a plan they need to make sure the
vision circle is clear.

Mrs. Slater asked if they would deal with the individual developer when they come in.

Mr. Dallaire agreed. That would be the main concern.

Mr. Rob Anderson brought more plans for the Board to see,

Mr. Dallaire continued going through staff's comments and recommendations.

Mrs. Slater asked what pushing the first three phases out to 12/31/24 does for the intersection of Gilman and
Highway 395, the lane abutment.

Mr. Dallaire believed that was part of Phase 3C
Mrs. Slater asked if that would be removed from now through 2024,

Mr. Dallaire explained Zerclene wasn’t going to get built until Phase 3. They have the approval for all of the homes
with the exception of the multifamily units to go through Gilman. The residents will be abie to access off Gilman. The
fire department required in an earlier phase to do a dirt portion for emergency access only and then they would
actually pave it and have it improved by 2024. The county is still working on getling some property over there. But it
pushes it back one year. Then they added a couple more years in the laiter half in Minden. Amendments to the



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2002 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 4

boundary will include the hatched area in our part. We have a recorded map for Phase one, which was modified and it
created this open space parcel. They are doing a give and take section of open space.

Mr. Anderson, is here on behalf of the Ranch at Gardnerville and Carrie Macinich. Keith Ruben, from our office, is
also here. Thank you for your patience. Mr. Anderson gave some background on the project. We believe the project
is progressing very well in this economy. The street configuration in Gardnerville is essentially the same as it was in
the previous approval. We prepared a CLOMR and a floodway designation. You were in the process with Manhard of
going through and revisiting the hydroiogy. As a resuit of the floodway designation there have been changes that
dictate modification to this plan. Because of the floodway designation on Zerolene you need a 135 foot long clear
span bridge. It is not feasible for a developer with 600 lots to build a 135 foot span bridge for a regional road
improvement. They have adopted the road sections the Board previously adopted in phase 1. Heybourne Road is
largely unchanged from what you saw previously through the section of Gardnerville. For marketing reasons the
builder believed they should have a diversity of lots. Commissioner Bonner didn't want the wall facility referenced at
Minden's meeting. But in context the commissioner was referring to a presentation where the county had said you can
take the parking off of Heybourne Road, pull the road section in and build a wall on either side and make it privacy on
the back side. Mr. Bonner was reacting to this very narrow chute with a wall on either side. The developer has offered
to pay their proportionate share of Zerolene Road. They will pay all the cost of Heybourne Road and construct that.
They can't afford to do Zerolene Road on their own. That will be one of the key discussions with Douglas County as
they go forward.

Chairman Lindsay asked who will own Zerolene Road.
Mr. Dallaire thought probably Douglas County.

Mr. Anderson added at the time the project was approved the PD boundary, the area known fo be Alton Anker's
yard, was not to be a part. However in the description of the boundary it was included. It should not have been a part.
One amendment to the boundary that is to clarify that parcel is not a part of the PD. Additionally, a second change is
the triangular piece, which actually belongs to Park Cattle Company, is not part of the application. The master plan
designation of the property is agriculture. It has a receiving area designation on it that says if you bring transferrable
development rights you can develop it at residential of 3 to 12 units per acre or commercial at 10 TDR's per acre. The
developer has acquired development rights and for the initial phase purchased and dedicated those to Douglas County
and anticipates doing so for the remainder of the project. They have dedicated a little over 30 acres of the Martin
Slough corridor and are intending to dedicate another 14 acres within the town of Minden area. There is 44 acres
being dedicated to the Martin Slough corridor for public use. This is being offered by the developer as part of their
consideration for the project. They are agreeing to construct Heybourne Road. Gilman is already built. They are
proposing to pay their proportionate share of Zerolene Road. They have agreed to make a $100,000 contribution to
Douglas County’s current pending NDOT transportation enhancement grant for the Martin Slough trail. That money
would be given by the developer to use as match money to help facilitate and bring up on the rating schedule for
NDOT grants. Concurrent with phase 2A they are required to build out an emergency access road. They would also
use that for construction access. As the phasing schedule points out Zerolene is proposed at phase 3C. The original
project approval in 2004 ailowed for a front yard setback of 20 feet. That was taken from back of curb. We can go
from a 20 foot setback down to a 16 foot setback just by filing for an administrative variance.

Mr. Dallaire asked if on the final map they would add the sight visibility lines so there is some recorded document
that shows this has to be set for three foot landscaping max, no trees.

Mr. Anderson agreed. They don't have strong objections to the request and clarification on the future
improvements. If the grant doesn't get approved for the trails, then it doesn’t seem very prudent to build more trails.
We have requested there be an offer back from the Town of Gardnerville, rescindment of the portion that was
dedicated adjacent to the Minden well and then in addition, because of design issues, this area {pointing to the map)
would come to you and this area the developer would receive back.

Mrs. Slater asked about the area that would go to the town Gardnerville. Would that be dedicated on the map itself
or is that going to be deeded to the town?

Mr. Anderson is agreeable to a deed. It would be a boundary line adjustment where you would sign a deed to the
Ranch at Gardnerville and they would do the same.

Mr. Dallaire pointed out Mr. Bonner is not here. Mr. Bonner wanted to continue this and discuss the problems with
Minden and in a group work session. But ! told him all those issues are north of us.



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 5

Mr. Milier commented after hearing the presentation twice he feels we have heard everything and having
confidence in town staff, he is leaning towards approving this and not going to another meeting. Most of the problems
are with Minden and not Gardnerville,

Mr. Higuera was at Minden’s meeting also. Ken really nailed it. Staff has done a fantastic job on this. He
commended Mr. Dallaire on his report. Tom really went through everything. The only thing | see is | don't want the
town of Gardnerville to be stuck with another Toler Lane situation. | am in favor of another trail connection even if it
goes nowhere, That trail will happen. [t will be a boon to the area and would be great to have another access to it

Mrs. Slater agreed.
No public comment.

Motion Miller/Higuera to approve with modifications development modification PD 04-08 at the Ranch at
Gardnerville requested modification to the previously approved planned development to modify the planned
development boundary identified in Ordinance 2004-1108 and extend and modify the development schedule
and modified subdivision design as a result of changes to road improvements, the redesign of alleyways to
streets, including associated variances to Douglas County design manual and Douglas County Development
Cade. The property is located south of Buckeye Road and north of Gilman along Heybourne Road with SFR-
8000 single family residential 8000 square foot minimum parcel zoning district with PD planned development
overlay, is located within the Minden/Gardnerville community plan area APN 1320-29-000-008, 014, 1320-33-
210-033 and 1320-32-501-017 subject to staff conditions found within the staff report presented tonight.
Motion carried.

10. @ For Possible Action: Discussion on and possible action by providing town staff direction on proceeding
with the Old Town Days event and discuss the program options for the August 31 through September 2™
event, with public comment prior io board action. Appearance by Ken Auld.

Mr. Dallaire reported Ken Auld came before the Board in February about Old Town Days, Civil War reenactment.
There has been some politicai issues and has disassociated himself with the Battle Born Civil War Re-enactors. He
has joined the Nevada Civil War Volunteers. He still wants to put on the event. It just won't be associated with Battle
Born direcily. | have talked with Matthew Moore with Battle Born and made sure everything was okay if we just kept
with Ken. Ken has been the event planner since February. They are working on the insurance forms now. The Town
has provided Spence Commercial Properties with our insurance. We will borrow the bleachers from the fairgrounds to
put out there. There are four battles planned. We have modified the flyers to take out Battle Born Re-enactors

Mr. Auld stated there are currently four civil war groups in Northern Nevada. We have cooperation with three
different groups and partial cooperation with Battle Born. My goal is to get as many re-enactors here as possible.
They will still try to push the event forward. He doesn't foresee any problems. Nevada Civil War Volunteers, who
would like to be the re-enacting host, have insurance. The Insurance company has already sent an insurance
certificate for the Town of Gardnerville-Heritage Park and Spence Properties with the 2 million coverage. Other than
that | think we can still pull it off and have a good time. We have students coming on Friday.

Mr. Dallaire shared the original application for the use of Heritage Park had Battle Born.
Mr. Altorn will need to look into the policy. He will also look at the original application and permit.
Mr. Auld requested this event be on a different day next year.

Mr. Altom pointed out the application is for Battle Born. | don't know if the standing rules or policies and
pracedures have a mechanism where they can transfer the permit or a shorter time period.

Chairman Lindsay believed they should direct town staff to move forward and figure out something else they can
do.

Mr. Altom thought it was just a late developing situation. it is not really in anybody’s control. We want to try to
save it if they can, but | haven't looked at the policies and procedures or application,.



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 6

Mr. Dallaire wanted to make sure the Board was okay trying to do this at the last minute. The guys are set for
helping out.

Mr. Miller would like to see the insurance certificate have more detail. This is very general. As a licensed
insurance agent | am not comfortable with this certificate,

Mrs. Slater asked if they wanted to set this aside until they get the insurance and then bring it back at a special
meeting.

No public comment.

Motion Miiler/Higuera to table this agenda item #10 until we have a chance to review the actual paperwork.
Motion carried.

Mr. Auld asked if they should try to continue to advertise or hold off.
Mrs. Slater thought they should hold off until we get something back from our attorney.
Mr. Auld will fax or email the information as scon as | have it.

Chairman Lindsay told Mr. Auld they will need the original copy, but they can start the process off the copy.

i

11. For possible action: Discussion and possible action to approve, approve with conditions, continue, or
deny a request to alternate between the Towns of Minden and Gardnerville every other year, performances of
the Carson Valley Pops Orchestra as part of the Towns’ 4th of July celebrations, beginning with the July 4,

2013, performance in Heritage Park with public comment prior to board action.

Mr. Dallaire is looking for some direction. Minden does not want to give up the Pops. He talked with Judy Sheldrew.
They are willing to come and perform. As far as the 4™ of July, they talked with Roger last year and were going to switch it
back and forth. That item was dropped when Roger left. He brought up the question to Jennifer and that is how it got on
both agendas for the towns. In August Minden met a week before we do and that is what happened.

Mr. Miller was at the meeting. They had a motion to deny moving from town to town on alternate years and it died for
lack of a second. Then there was another motion to compromise and alternate years. But in earlier discussions the
individuai who made the motion said they would have their own event even though we might have the orchestra here and
they might make their event bigger and better. | commented at the meeting that | didn’t feel it should be a compaetition
between the two towns. At the time of the second motion, Charlie Condron left shortly before the motion was made
because he was ill. So it was a split vote.

Mr. Higuera stated there was a comment made at that time that this is the way we will leave it.

Mr. Miller shared the whole discussion started out with the chairman of the Minden Town Board saying, We can agree
io disagree on this item.”

Mrs. Slater believed ultimately it is not the decision of the Towns of Gardnerville or the Minden. It will be the decision of
the Pops.

Mr. Miller advised the Minden Board threw it back on the Pops. Judy Sheldrew told them the Pops would not make the
decision because Minden has the building for rehearsals and storage.

Chairman Lindsay thought Minden would ultimately take that away.

Mr. Miller felt in the future this could be resolved because there will be an adequate facility with the new senior citizen
center being built across from Lampe Park. It could be a concert there inside the building.

Mrs. Slater believed it might be nice if they came up with something original on their own.

Chairman Lindsay thought it was frustrating to me that it is adversarial and has to be two towns against each rather



Gardnervitle Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 7

than trying to figure this out.

Mr. Miller doesn't want to jeopardize the Carson Valley Pops place to play and store their instruments. | asked Ms.
Sheldrew if they might be interested in doing another three day weekend haliday for us. She would have to talk to the rest
of the orchestra if they would like to give up that time to do a concert. The only date that would be available would be LLabor
Day weekend. If we could build something around that with a concert included it would be a nice.

Mr. Philips didn’t think this was worth arguing over. Let this go until we get a place where we could offer them a place
o play.

Chairman Lindsay shared there is no harm in us approving this item, because quite frankly all it says is we are willing to
play.
Mrs. Slater agreed. It will also let the Pops know we are receptive to them in the future.

Chairman Lindsay continued, there is no harm in saying we approve this. We don't have to deny it just because they
split. It won't change a thing, but there is no harm in approving this.

Mr. Dallaire explained that to Judy. The orchestra has to play in the warmer months. There are a couple options. If we
want to do another 4" of July event he does not want to compete with the other events in the Carson Valley. If we had
something later in the evening we could do a fireworks show.

Mrs. Slater stated we have a lot of events already. | don’t think not having or not having a 4™ of July event at this time is
any big problem.

Mr. Dallaire added the movies are going well. We could add another one, but we have been showing four for a long
time.

Mr. Higuera thought Tom’s idea of fireworks has a lot of merit. if it were possible to do fireworks, it wouldn’t conflict
with any other events in the valley. It would give people around here another option. Yes, it is expensive.

Mr. Dallaire could get sponsors. Jeremy Davidson {20-30 Club) did it a few years ago for Carson Valley Days 100"
celebration. We have similar clearances at the pond and all of the open space in the wetland. July is a good irrigation
time. Itis wet.

Mrs. Slater suggested contacting one of the military places and see if you could get a military band. That would be
something that would be a big turnout. Start laying a foundation and do something on our own.

Mr. Higuera concurred it is worth getting preliminary information.
Mr. Dallaire will look into it.

Public comment.

Ms. Wenner likes the idea of the 4™ of July fireworks.

Neo further public comment.

Motion Higuera/Slater that we approve the alternating of the Carson Valley Pops orchestra between the town
of Minden Minden Park and the town of Gardnerville Heritage Park, Motion carried.

12. ¥& Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Main Street Program Manager’s Monthly Report of activities
for July 2012.

Mrs. Lochridge reported economic restructuring committee has received a letter of intent from USDA Rural for the
amount of $125,000 for the revolving loan fund. Because there are some potential risks they have contacted Rural
Nevada Development Corporation They are hoping to connect with them to insure this would be a good risk. They still
have funds available in our existing fund. The organization committee is focusing on memberships, sponsorships and
fundraising. Deb Perrell has extensive experience in fundraising and sponsorships. She is going to co- chair the
fundraising commiitee. We are going to revisit the possibilities of acquiring a 501c3. In promotions they are focusing
on several events and hoping to initiate some new events in 2013. There was a great event that Lloyd suggested that



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 8

we are going to bring to the prometions committee. The Douglas Avenue Showcase they have chosen nct to do this
year and potentially do that next year.

Mrs. Lochridge stated they are working with Alicia from the Chamber.
Mr. Dallaire mentioned Alicia has been trying to get a lot more decorations downtown.

Mrs. Lochridge commented the design committee volunteers took the opportunity to visit with all the businesses
and try fo get them to participate. That really helped. Design, we do have the NDOT grant for $4,000 to be used in the
Heritage Park Gardens for the creation of a labyrinth. Those plans are in the works. Ongce they get the details they will
bring those back for approval. Ron James has been taking over as far as the Heritage Park Gardr  joes and
wanted to make sure you were brought up to speed on what is going on at the gardens,

Mr. James reported they had the open house in June. They had 250 visitors and sold about $400. After that they
started things growing. They have 13 hay bale beds. Three of them have been used by the master gardeners, Five
of them are rented. The remainder we have used for children’s garden and growing food for the food closet. Tom
helped us out in late June by giving us connections for water. We now have automatic drip lines. That also gave the
opportunity to run drip lines in the upper part of the site. In the past they had 500 daffodils planted. We now have
pumpkins, watermelon, iris and a lot of other things. We have had to do all of this in the context that it had to be
movable because the Army Corp of Engineers has not given permission to finalize anything on the site. Considering
the constraints it has been an extremely attractive accomplishment. We now do a mini work day once a week. In
June and July they did every Saturday, in August they are doing every Wednesday night. We are getting a lot of
visibility and people interested. They will have a farmers market in August. At Oktoberfest they will be doing
something. The next project is going to be the labyrinth. They have some bids and quotes. They have to work with
Tom and the Army Corp to find out where it might be appropriate. Basically it has been well received by the
community. We are very proud of what it looks like, considering it is all volunteer.

Mr. Miller had worked with Main Street in the past before being on the town board. | have seen all the volunteers.
This Main Street program just keeps getting more volunteers. It is so positive for the community.

Mr. James stated people bring a lot of different talents. The more opportunities we can create, the better for
people to use their imagination.

The Board thanked Mr. James for his effort.

13. @_,’:Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for July 2012,

Mr. Altom reported he was out of the country for a good part of the month. Mike did more quite a bit of the work. Some
of the items that they did work on in July include assistance in preparing the resolution; Mike did work with Tom and Carol
on the Frontier Alley; on the issue with the Jones parcel access to grant Avenue; worked with Tom and Josh on the bidding
process for the Chichester crack repair project. | did do some brief work for Main Street Gardnerville on the proposed
bench sponsorship policy they are implementing. Mike worked with Tom regarding insurance. He will follow up toright on
this issue. In looking at the policy just briefly there may be some wiggle room, but on the other hand, what's the point of
having policies if you are not going to follow them. We probably want more information on the insurance certificate. As
soon as we get all the updated information we can make a decision. We worked again with Carol and Tom on this month’s
agenda. Tom did a great job on the Ranch at Gardnerville reports and he responded to everyone. They are really lucky to
have Tom on board.

Mr. Daliaire added Josh did a lot of the work.

Mr. Altom wanted the Board to know we are glad to work for the town.

14. @ Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s Monthly Report of activities for
July 2012,

Mr. Dallaire reported he was gone quite a bit of the time. In the time | was here they reviewed the Ranch. Having Josh
here has been extremely helpful. We got the crack repair bid out. We put it out in the beginning of the month and did a
combined project. We had a mandatory pre-bid meeting. We were informed by two of the contractors that attended that
their price is $1.75 a foot for crack sealing. Just their material and cost is about $40,000 to $45,000 in material costs for



Gardnervilie Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 9

the project. That was assuming most of the cracks were two inches. We ended up having to pull this project apart. |
contacted Mike about splitting this up so it can get moving and done. Impact Construction came in the low bidder at
$30,000. Jash went out today and marked it all. There are some areas where alligator cracking has started in the past six
months since we had the plans deone. There will be some additional costs to fix it all and make it right. Then it will be
micro surfaced. They are actually doing all the cracks on Petar, which are the worst ones out in Chichester. The
contractor wants to close a few roads at a time for a couple of hours. He is only expecting to be out there for three days
after they saw cut. He will type up a notice and put it out this week. We are not geing to notice the entire development only
the people who have to move their cars off the street. If they don’t move them we will tow them. He is supposed to be
done by September 9". We will put the crack sealing out to bid after this contract is complete.

Mrs. Slater suggested sending a letter to the homeowner's association.
Mr. Altom advised no action on non-action items. The staff reports are always easy to get off track.

Mr. Dallaire reported the Sharkey’s parking lot meeting was postponed until Thursday. We will still iry and see if we
can partner. He has not heard from Brian. [tis just a matter of finding out if the CDBG grant funding from the county would
be able to be used for that type of partnership. They have been working with Candace on this. Unless we awn the property
thers is not a lot we can do. If they donate that parcel with the house on it the town, the town can get funding to remove it.
He had Josh draw up the plan and split it into a phase that would include the highway improvements along 395 and 756
and then the new driveway approach that would be across from Sharkey's so we can get a good estimate on what the
costs are. They really are interested in doing it but don't have the money to do it. It would be a great opportunity for us to
help out if we can. | am hoping for more funding. | went ta the NDOT meeting with the representative from Anderson
Engineering, Stephanie Hicks. She did a presentation on the trail. We did a presentation at the last minute for crosswalks
and ADA upgrades. The crosswalks and trail tied 19 to 19. The number one ranked project was an intersection in
Winnemucca. There were six projects total that went before the board. They were ranked one through six. Instead of
having the whole board do a discussion on which one to put first, the crosswalk or the trail, | told them we would let the trail
go first. Itis a huge improvement for Gardnerville to get that trail done. The crosswalk is 3rd. The lights are on order. We
have the meter for Eddy Street lighting. We should be getiing them socn. Kingslane HOA was extremely appreciative of
the presentation we did. They are supportive of the sidewalk improvements. The two property owners along the section
are okay with installing a pipe and filing the ditch in. They were excited about the effort and welcomed it. He told them
about the flood plain. We have the flood plain meeting scheduled for August 23 here at the office. ltis just an information
workshop that FEMA is putting on. Also, Luke Opperman, who is with the State Division of Water Resources in flooding,
will be here.

Mr. Philips asked if they put more people in the flood plain than they taok out.
Mr. Dallaire replied yes.

Chairman Lindsay explained the difference is now it is real.

Mrs. Slater asked what does that do to the Ranch at Gardnerville

Mr. Dallaire responded when they did the analysis there wasn't a culvert under Gilman. They put that in since we did
the analysis. We are asking them to add that and remodel that section through the Ranch.

Josh attended a meeting on the encroachment permit. They made some corrections. It is coming a]ong nicely. It
should be over soon. Linda and | are going to a Nevada League of Cities meeting oh Wednesday, August 8" Inthe front
of the packet we have the paperwork for the Elko conference. NLC has a new website and it is a huge improvement from
what they had before.

It has been a couple of years since we have done any adjustments in staff's job descriptions and classifications. |am
wondering if next year the Board would be willing to change some of those. He will talk to Darcy about adding a park
ranger so they can write tickets to people with dogs. He will bring the item back. They allowed the TNT Cheesesteak
vendor to park at the curb so we could run power. Other pecople have parked on that side previously. Itis a very narrow
area. We had to do parking enforcement. [t is getting worse as more and more people show up to the movies. Josh is
reviewing engineering plans and gets extremely frustrated with Douglas County and how they handle things. He helps us
with the GIS side, which isn't in his job description. Josh helps us with the server and is also doing plan review which
neither is in his job description. | would like to get Josh reclassified, which is about $6,000 a year more to get to the low
end of an engineer 1 from an engineering tech. Without Josh here | am really nervous. We have a lot of preliminary work
done on the GIS side. There is a draft of an ADA transition plan. 1told Josh it will have to be our priority. With the Ranch
it's been a long haul. We have a lot to do and | am afraid to lose him. The extra money really won't be an issue budget-
wise to get him to an engineer 1 and would be competitive with what NDOT is offering. 1t will take action eventually. You



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
August 7, 2012 - 430 p.m.
Page 10

would have to approve it. Josh is applying with NDOT. He would rather work here than go to NDOT. So | will bring it
forward next month with his review. | had the option when | did his six month review to eliminate the one year probation
period. We did a six month probation period so he was able to use his vacation time over the summer. We have other staff
that is on the same level where the job description says you need a minimum of six years of experience for a tech 3 and it
has been about five years since anybody has actually advanced. They need to look at staff positiosn the next budget cycie.
Marie has more than enough experience to be a Secretary Senior. It doesn’t require a pay raise but just reclassification.

Mrs. Slater didn’t think it would hurt to look at it. If they need to be bumped up then steps should be taken.

Mr. Dallaire was not here for that previously. Darcy gave me the PMP forms. They are changing to the five-stage
instead of three. ICMA has a conference October 7" through the 10™. | am thinking about going to that but will look at the
webinar as an alternative. | will actually be in Parker, Arizona onthe 11" or 12", So| might look at taking a couple classes
down there. He will bring that back to approve.

Mrs. Slater asked about the alley next to Frontier.

Mr. Dallaire stated the common boundary fine is on the wood fence. The alley is ours to maintain and the residents
have been dumping leaves and grass. A letter was sent to fix their fences by September 1% or we would contract it out,
send them a bill and lien their property. Once the braces go away | can have Alton regrade it. The other alleys were
regraded at the beginning of summer. The letter was sent to Jenifer Scott before it was sent to the residents to make sure
Minden was okay with it.

We will be putting no parking signs at the movies. That way | can call the tow company and have them removed when
they are parking where they shouldn't.

Mr. Altom advised there are official traffic control devices. He didn't know whether those signs would adhere.

Ne public comment,

Mr. Miller will not be here for the October meeting

Motion Higuera/Slater to adjourn at 7:50 p.m. Motion carried.

Respectiully Submitted,

Paul Lindsay Tom Dallaire
Chairman Clerk to the Board



Gardnerville Town Board m
Gardneyville

AGENDA ACTION SHEET "4 Nevada
1. Title: Correspondence
2. Recommended Motion: Receive and File
Funds Available: L Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: n/a

5. Agenda: ¥ Consent L Administrative
Background Information:
This section provides copies of letters or other correspondence received, that Staff
feels are noteworthy for the Board members to review.

6. Other Agency Review of Action: Not Required

7. Board Action:

L Approved L_Approved with Modifications
' Denied L Continued

m
Agenda Item #1




MEMORANDUM

Town of Gardnerville Tom Dallaire
: TOWN MANAGER/ENGINEER
| TO: . Board Members

FROM: | Carol Louthan, Office Manager Sr.

SUBJECT: Sidewalk Rehabilitation ~ Hussman Ave

DATE: August 28, 2012

On August 22 Mr. Pardee came into the office and made payment arrangements of $100 a month for the
repairs made to the sidewalk in front of his home caused by tree root damage. We will send a bill if we haven’t
received payment by the 22" of each month.



August 12,2012

Mr. Tom Dallaire

Town of Gardnerville
1407 Hwy 395 N,
Gardnerville, NV 89410

Dear Tom:

This letter is in response to your letter dated August 6, 2012, and
the enclosed bill for $3529.28.

I have ignored the previous invoices for the main reason that[ am
mad as hell about this whole thing. To undertake a “Sidewalk
Rehabilitation Project” requiring homeowners to pick up the tab right in
the middle of a major recession where everyone’s business, including
my own, is down, is to me simply maddening. I also have issues with the
following things:

1. I don’t think that my sidewalk was in such bad disrepair that it
required $3529 worth of repairs. Your concern when I talked to you
was not cosmetic, but rather “We don't want some lawyer to be cruising
the streets looking for places to sue us.” In fact there was only about 8
feet of sidewalk that could have been considered hazardous, and at that
it was questionable. Plus I live on a dead end street where we get
extremely minimal foot traffic on the sidewalk.

2. | am being billed for repairs to the sidewalk on my neighbor’s
property. Am I paying for all the work that was done, or did they pay for
some of it? 1don’t argue with the law being such that I am responsible
for damage done by my tree to their sidewalk, but I do argue that I am
not convinced that my tree was responsible for all the damage, or if in
fact here was damage enough to necessitate repair as extensive as what
was done. [ have never seen anything that gives me any indication that
someone considered an expert made the decision that my tree was
entirely responsible. You and I both know that when there are issues of
money involved, someone’s casual opinion is not acceptable.



' Fown

Gardmwﬁl@
‘Nevada

August 6, 2012

Stuart Pardee
1514 Hussman Ave
Gardnerville, NV 89410

Re: 1514 Hussman Ave
Amount due: $3,529.28

Dear Mr. Pardee:

Enclosed please find the invoice for the sidewalk improvements completed in December of
2011, This work was done in connection with the 2011 Sidewalk Rehabilitation Project The
sidewalks damaged by tree roots are the responsibility of the property owner per Douglas
County Code 18.06,080,

We have sent invoices previously and have not had any response. Please forward your check
in the above-mentioned amount to clear your account by 9/1/12 in order to avoid further action
to recoup the monies owed and the costs, if any, of legal action. You can also pay with a Visa
or MasterCard online at www.gardnerville-nv.gov or by telephoning our office. If you are unable
to pay the balance at this time, call our office by 8/24/12 and we will set up a payment plan for
you.

Sincerely,
‘-__-—_‘______-_/

o ANCo>

Tom Dallaire
Gardnerville Town Manager

ce: file




Town of Gardnerville

invoice

Gaf'dne{vi]le
"t Nevada 1407 Hwy 395 N
Gardnerville, NV 89410 Date Invoice #
1/17/2G12 376
Bill To
Stuart Pardee
1514 Hussman Ave
Gardnerville, NV 89410
Project Terms
2011 Sidewalk Rehab Net 30
Quantity Description Rate Amount
Reimbursement 3,520.28 1,529.28
1514 Hussman Avenue
lmprovements  § 2880.00
Mobilization $§ 279.68
Traffic Control § 139.84
Testing & 22976
Total £3529.28
Total $3,529.28







PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS — 2012 August M. Plut

PARKS DEPARTMENT: The new parks mower has been delivered and will start to be used the 9™ of
this month.

Plant grasses at Tolar, run drip and Eleven stumps at Tolar have been ground from Lampe toward GES;
irrigation from Lampe to Harvest is ongoing.

All parks — mow, weed, hard edge and check irrigation.

PUBLIC WORKS: A request for red paint at Venture Dr. We quit using red paint in the past and
installed “no parking “signs. | will ask that trees be pruned near the sign.

Access has been cut with the Bobcat/Brushcat for D.C. Mosquito control to get at the back ponds
around the Martin Slough and the old V&T right of way at Buckeye.

Crack seal at Sunset Park is ongoing and about 30% complete. After this area we will move to Gardner
Park area.

Code enforcement is not able to help with parking issues in the Town.

The front pump in the transmission [sends fluid thru the cooler] on utility truck 610 went out and is
being repaired. Service is complete done by DCVM.

A large crack has been filled at the bulb end of Cheddington court.

The “dead end” sign and decretive frame have been reattached to the post at Circle and Gardner
streets.

We have had a sidewall tire delamation on the gator # 613 that interrupted some watering, tires are
on order and we will have the older tires for emergency backup. One rear tire is stifl on back order and
all are holding air well now.

Prep for OLD TOWN DAYS — DC Parks will supply 4 each three row bench seats.
Litter has been picked from ditches while they are dry.
Street lights, poles and electrical pedestal for Eddy St. have arrived.

Timer for the lights at Walgreens has been reset.

NEXT: Carpets cleaned at Town Hall Saturday Sept. 8"

A~



Gardnerville Town Board m
G dnervﬂle

AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

1. Title: Approve August 2012 claims
2. Recommended Motion: Approve claims as submitted
Funds Available: __ Yes [~ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Carol Louthan
4. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: none
5. Agenda: ¥ Consent L Administrative
6. Background Information:
This report is generated through claims submitted to the Douglas County
Comptroller by the Town. If backup material is necessary for your review it
can be found on file at the Town office.
7. Other Agency Review of Action: [ N/A

8. Board Action:

L Approved L Approved with Modifications
' Denied L Continued

M
Agenda Item #3




b1 Jo T abeg : Wd 505150 7T02/£7/80 YO UBWNoT 01D Aq uny

wm.wmw £ SUORDESURL | a2I0AUT 5123100, mz@mmx - TG JUN03Y
ST056S # 4
93/ Z102/€0/80 Z102/c0/20 TTOC/E0/80  TI0Z/LT/LD A0UD AG pled ZO000988TTITHFE -4 20000988TT sefap $87-589 1S9MUINOS - TZ0E
S70S6S # r4!
1281 Z102/£0/80 ZI0Z/E0/80  TTOZ/E0/80  ¢102/L1/L0 8D Ag pied FO0ZZCL0TIVE -2 $00FZZZL0T sefiop SE7-5E9D ISaMUIN0S - 1208
520568 # Z1
#0'5T ZI02/£0/80 Z10Z/E0/80 ZT0Z/E0f80  ZI0Z/LT/L0 ¥ayD AQ pied TTOBLLSTOOTHE -/ 2206445100 seBaA 5E7-5B0) J158MUIN0S - 1Z0E
Bunesy - £60°0TS5 WNODY
C6'ELTS 1 suORDEsURIY BDI0AUT 51210 DO - GRO0TS WNODY
897665 #
£6'ELT Z102/01/80 2T0Z/0T/80 TTOT/0T/80  Z10Z/92/L0 I8y Ag pled $08T6L T2 v08T6L ABI2ug AN - BZ67
AoMod - 680°0¥S JUNODY
S6'60L% £ SUQIIDRSURI] 3J0AUT S0 Aedey 1 oauswode|doy - RO 0TS WNOY
65665 #
96'81 ZI02/41/80 ZT02/41/80  ZI0Z/L1/80  TI0Z/TE/LO 323U Aq pred /51990 Sk/869 laguunT sYIsW - 171Z
68EG6S #
66'01 FAQTATATL)] Z102/£1/80  ZY0Z/L1/80  2T0Z/9T/L0 ¥aUD Aq pled 9£7T 1/0085£0 34eMPIBH 30V - GBATT
FEBPES #
00°089 Z10e/£0/80 Z102/E0/80 TTOZ/E0/80  210Z/9T/L0 ¥3UD Ag pred £ETL000 9cT1/180000  dwon Bupeay g Burquunid 3le;D - SE80T
Aedoy g juswsoe|doy - $RODTS JLNODY .hm
£6'bbs 1 sUORDEsURL L BI0AUT 530, JUDY x0g od febelsod - 000 08 S N0y !
898Y6S # )
£6'bF ZI0Z/E0/80 Z102/£0/80 ZT0E/E0/80  7102/60/L0 #3uD Ag ped 9F0E00009  EHTLETTOTIY suonmos Bullle d 4 - $6ZS2
DY xog 0 /obe1sod - 090 0TS WNOY
9/ lET% 7 SUOIDesuRI ] S0AL sie10) asuadxy suoydaial - §50°0TS JUn0IY
£88P6S #
£8'eh ZI02/£0/80 Z102/£0/80 ZT02/E0/80  2102/9T/L0 ¥y Aq pled  §Z0R0B09SBEZRLSLL  TT/L 958£-28L JAU0N - E0T6Z
£98b65 #
£6'F6 Z102/E0/80 z10Z/c0/80 Z102/€0/80  €I02/9T/0 soeud Aq pled  S6LTOSOPETLZRLSLE  TT/L WETL-T8L Japuoly - £0T6Z
ssuadiy suoydaia] - §50°QES JWAODY
06T 14 G SUOIIBESURE] B0I0AUT si1e] voizesusdulo] piEog - A5T'0TY WN0IDY
£TESES #
00'0zz ZT0T/0T/80 Z10Z/0T/80 Z102/01/80 Z10Z/10/80 }aYD Ag pled ITIAD  auvod 21-8 epur] J23eS - 6967
162565 #
0007z Z102/0T/80 ZT0Z/0T/80 TTOZ/OT/80  ZI0Z/TO/80 *oayD AQ plegd ITNHAD  Quvog Z1-8 [2eyty sdijiyd - 62981
#HTS6S #
05'/£2 Z10Z/0T/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 TTOT/0T/R0  ZI0Z/TO/80 *}aYD AQ pied JNAD  Quvoa TE/8 iauuy] W - 09682
£ETSES #
00'052 Z102/01/80 ZI0Z/OT/80  TT0Z/0T/B0  TYOE/T0/80 $3UD Ag pled FJTNAD  QUvY09 TL/8 v INBd ABSPUIT - £OB/LT
T0ZSES #
00°022 710Z/0%/80 ZIOZ/OT/80  ZTOZ/OT/80  ZROZ/10/80 $3ud AQ pleg IMIAD  dYv0os 2L/8 M pAON eienBIH - g8ZE
vopesuRdiio] pIRog - 5T 0TS WUN0IDY
URMPY VPAIBURLIED - TZE JswLedag
UMmo], BjIAteuUpIeg - §TO Puny
JUNOLWY 2210AU]  o)e(] jUSWARG 938 PaN=ITy 218Q 1/ 918 9N  =1e( =JI0AU}  UDSESY plop 835 UORANSS2(] 9210A0] GINERGL I0PUDA

ZT/TE/80 - T1/10/80 obuey 21eQ 1/9

Moday uonngliasia 1/ Ag ajqelAed saunodd




T 40 ¢ @Bed Wd bFI0S:H0 ZT0Z/£7/80 U0 UeLIno joseD) Ag uny
[ WATA] 1 SUOIDESURL | adi0AU] SIEI0) SIRMUO0S - O] EES JUNODDY
254568 #
LSt 710z/ve/e0 TI0Z/vZ/80 T10Z/vT/B0 ZT0Z/0E/L0 ¥28uD Aq pled 69TZ£9£60 TJdXBSMX Buneyiei 112q - 5556
SIRMUOS - Q0F EEF JUNOIDY
OR'GLES € SUDQIBSURL S B20AU] 512201 seiddng 310 - §0R'ELS UNoNY
O5HG6S # NOSIOHIIN
98'0¢ ZT0Z/41/80 ZI0E/L3/80  TI0T/L1/80  TI0T/LE/LD D AQ pleg aTIAD r4874 wesfioid JuBwaInold 6) 00 - L6621
862565 #
00'SSE Z102/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 TT0E/01/80 Z10T/1E/L0 8D AQ pled TIIAD 1819-1T 1980 wnumdo S B Y - H906
saddng s0I0 - GO EES JN0DY
80'SH0'1$ T suonoesues) adjoau] SIRY0) sa0ALeg 209 - ST TES UNODY
600565 #
89°5H0'T ZT0Z/£0/80 2I02/E0/80 ZT0Z/E0/80  2TOT/RT/LO 23D Aq pled ITIAD -6PETE 471 59[2H B amoy - 97801
. SaAlSg :wmmA - ETVET S WUNCIDY
00°000°pES T SUDIIDESLIEL | 3MOAU] S|E10 ], 59IAIRS JBUOISS3304d - DT TES JUNCIDY
£EGHBS #
00"000'H€ Z10Z/€0/80 ZI0Z/C0/80 ZTI02/E0/80  2T0Z/ST/L0 ¥3UD AQ pled INIAD T LWAd-9 JABUpLeD 1330S Wl - TH0/T
SBIAIDE |BUOISED0Ad ~ 0T TTE JUNODDY
SH'8071% £ SUQIIDBSURI L 9310AUE 51210, esuddid IBISIUY « L9107 1UNoDY nﬂ
195565 # o
L6'F 2T0Z/41/80 ZT0T/L1/80  ZTOC/Z1/80  Z10Z/10/80 YD Ag preg ITIAD T1z€8 JT1 pucaasouey - 00s
T9556S #
86 T108/£1/80 ZI0C/LT/80  2T0T/L1/80  2R0T/10/70 $BUD AG pled ATAD 75168 271 puodasoueN - 00SZ
95$56S # NOSTOHDIN
0529 ZI0T/LT/80 CI02/LT/80  ZI0T/LTIR0  RIOT/LZ/L0 $23UD Ag pled FIAL 47 wieifold uawemaold 00 0g - /6671
GEPSES #
0095 Z102/L1/80 TI0Z/LT/80  ZTOT/LT/80  TT0Z/20/80 3p3yD Aq pied 60SZTO0900TTHSES  ZT/8 6052100 SUOEDIUNLLILOY Ja)JRYD - £886T
asusdxy IDPIUY - J8T0TE WUNoDDY
00°0ST$ T SUCHDOBSURI] SMOAU] sjeyol sdigsaaquuagy - DT 0ZS WNODDY
750665 #
00081 z102/50/80 ZI0T/£0/80 2I0Z/E0/80  Z102/0T/L0 A8ys AQ pled £YE9/1 $SOB00ZT Juf {2y M35 punosbiiepurn - 8554
sthUsSI2IUBH - OLT 0TS UN0IDY
£LPees T SUONIBSURLE BICAUL §1e30) auswdinby sasea @ S1USY - L T0ES WN0ITY
/99565 #
£4°¥7e ZT0Z/L1/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  2T0T/L1/80  2Y0E/T0/80 PEUD AQ piegd ZT0/0E9TL 958660£90 uonelodion xolay - 615E
Juswdinbg sa5e97 B S1UDY - 08T 0TS JUNODY
S5'0/£1% T SLOHDRSURIL 3210AU] S[EI0L DS WHERW - £60°0€8 1UNODY
9L/ b6S #
55041 ZT10Z/50/80 2T0Z/E0/80  ZTOZ/EQ/R0  2T0Z/L1/L0 3D AQ pled ITIAD 1616 Jul a4 D8y - §5€S
OBE JURK ~ £L607028 W00y
iU Py ajtalsupien - 174 Juswiuedag
UAA0], Bf[IABURIRS - §TO DUy
JUNOLLUY S210AU]  B1E¢) JudwAed 21e(] paiiaioy Ieaq /o FEQg eng =21ed JoAU]  UOSERH PIgH STHRIG U052 AJI0AUT ‘ON 20I0AU] JOPUSA

CI/TE/80 - Z1/10/80 ebuey =1eq 1/9
110doy uonNqLIs!

Ag s|qeAed SIUNODDY



T Jo ¢ abed

Wd ¥:05:%0 TI0T/£Z/80 U0 ueno o) Ag uny

P
|
€N
Z£900°6E% Q7 suoiesues) BdI0AU] SIBICL HHUPY SjARUpIED - TZ6 Juowpedag
oo’ 1ZbS T suonesues) adoau] S0 s100[0ad HBWIS - LI87EES JUN0IDY
SE0S6S #
00" 1Zh Z102/£0/80 Z102/E0/90  Zroz/e0f80  Z10Z/LT/LD }3YD Ag pled T000/FEZ20 66T50L1DY JUT SN0l UOIOW YUBMS - STTE
spveioid flews - LI EEE WNoY
uLpY ajjalRupIeS - TZ6 JUslupedag
UMOL SiIAIBUPIEE - Q19 Pund
JUNOWY 22I0AU]  91B JUswARg 93e(] PaAlS3oy 22 /9 218 =] o920 2IIDAU]  UOSESY P[oH Sniels UONAIL53(] II0AUT ‘ON S210ALY 10DUSA

ZT/1E/80 - ¢1/10/80 9buey 12 /o

Moday uonngliasia /9 Ag sjgeied syunodd




T Jo t abeg Wd #0690 £102//Z/80 U0 ueInoT [o1e) AQ uny
mo.mm.nw C SUOIZRSURI { aDIoAL] SIEI0L 10 3 sen -~ SO0FES JUNodIY
£85568 #
79°96 Z102/L1/80 TI0T/LT/80  ZTOZ/LT/R0  2TOT/1E/L0 ¥o3YD Ag pled 808 6641790540 D71 ABI2U3 SIPAI - $T8E
9/8b6S #
T#°85 210Z/e0/80 2T0Z/E0/80 TTOZ/E0/R0  2102/51/40 }8YD AQ pred B0E8  £9/bTS0S4D JT1ABIRUT SIBAY - HTRE
HO 7 585 - £00° LS JUN0Y
wm.w._“mw T SUCHIESURL] a30AUT 51830 MO - 5E0DZS JungooY
897565 #
86'81E Z10Z/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 ZIOZ/OT/80  Z70Z/92/70 ¥a3u3 Aq pied ¥08TI6L  ZI-£ +0816/ ABsauZ AN - $Z762
HPAOG - BR0°0T S JUNODY
ZUPRT 1S 9T SUOMIBSURL| SJI0AUT Siejo: Heday 1 juawsnedsy - $0°07 6 NIy
$9056S #
$6°£H9 2102/LT/80 TI0Z/LT/80  ZT0T/Z1/80  210T/81/L0 o3 Aq pled £L212 0586775  Auedwo) Alddng epeasN UIRISaM - /SPE
7BSS6S #
0807 ZI02/£1/80 TT0Z/LT/80  ZTOZ/LT/80  Z102/61/40 303D Aq pied 04T 089/5b 35N0} SHed - 0TST
786565 #
6'S 210T/41/80 ZI0Z/ZT/80  CI0T/L1/80  T102/bE/L0 38U AQ pled 0L1F SES8SY BSNOH 5384 - OTST
785565 #
¥9'0¢ TI0Z/L1/80 ZI0C/LT/80  ZEOT/L1/80  Zi0E/bE/i0 ¥23uD Ag pled 01k 11585k ISNOH SHBd - 0TS¢
285565 #
86'9 Z10z/L1/80 ZT0T/LT/80  210T/21/80 TROT/LT/E0 ¥/ Aq pled 0/Th BLT1.60 3snoH sleg - OI52
6FSS6S #
8€°0¢ Z102/£1/80 2T0Z/Z1/80  TTOR/LT/80  2T0T/L2/L0 ey Ag pied 0451990 0T+10Z J3guinT syea - ﬁm,ﬁ
655565 #
054 Z102/£1/90 TT0Z/LT/R0  ZT0Z/LT/80  Z10Z/21/70 332UD Aq pred 051990 6£9669 13QUWINT SYIBW - TZTR]
65565 # <
89'%7 Zr0z/eT/80 TI0Z/LT/80  TI0T/LT/80  ZTIOZ/CO/L0 21D Aq pled 051990 BrEL6O Jequin syaaW - TZ1¢
6LPSES #
18'92 2T0Z/L1/80 ZI0C/LT/80  ZTOT/L1/80  2I0E/%E/i0 333D AqQ pieg TTOONIWAN ~ SHFZ6ZNIWAN |ddng suod/jelysnpul jeusised - 17887
64565 #
[ Z102/41/80 ZI0Z/LT/80 2T0T/L1/80  TI0Z/0E/L0 WRU) Ag pled TTOONIWAN  08/8ZNIWAN (ddng suod/jeasnpur [eusisey - TZ88T
645565 #
00'sz Z102/L1/80 210Z/LT/80  TTOT/LT/R80  E10T/L2/90 Y23y Ag pied TTOONIWAN  6/98ZNIWAN [ddns suos/eiisnpul jeusised - 17881
6LBSES #
91°0¢ Z102/L1/80 TI0Z/LT/80  ZT0T/L1/80  z10Z/62/90 }I8UD AQ pred TIOONEWAN  £8VBZNIWAN |dang suod/ielsnpu] jeusises - 17881
955565 #
68°L 2r0z/L1/80 TIOC/LT/R0  TI0Z/21/80  210zirEiin H8UD Ag pred ITNAD d 21+ welBo.d JUBWINI0Nd 03 00 - L6671
68ESES #
66'S ZT0Z/£1/80 ZT0Z/LY/80 TTO0R/Z1/80  ZI0Z/fEe/r0 oauD AQ pleg 9571 1/8965£0 dlempieH 90y - 59611
6BLS6S #
et zroe/in/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  TTOT/LE/80  TTI0T/0T/L0 PRI AG pled 9EzT 1/p£6540 QIEMPIRH 30V - GRBTT
881565 #
S4°052 ZT0Z/01/80 ZT0Z/0T/80 2T0Z/0T/80  2T0Z/50/L0 ¥aeYD AQ pled 91££200 7820500 JU[ SPnposd I1835p0D - /1£9
Medeay g uswesoeday - $EOOTE JUN0DY
UOBERNDY B SHied - £76 wowedag
WMOL DIJIABUBIED ~ OTY puny
UNOWY a2I0AU]  21ed JUSWABI 8380 paAlsday 2;eq /o Feq eng  2IBg adoAU]  UOSESY piaH TS UORdIose(] 93I0A0T ‘ON 9310AU]T A0pLBA

¢1/TE/80 - Z1/10/80 9bueRy &16C /9

odoy uonnglils

1/




¥T 40 5 abeg

Wd bH05:60 ZT0Z/£2/80 U0 LBYINOT |08 AQ UNY

TI'60E'2% 7 SUORDESURIY SI0AUL
26'059% £ SUORIBSURI] SDI0AUT
00°1ZY TT0T/L1/80 Z102/£1/80
86'6/1 Z10e/21/80 Z10Z/L1/80
0005 Z10z/21/80 Z102/£7/80

S)210] LUOREDIIDY 1 SiIRd - £76 Wskedag

SEI0). 5398f0d HEWS - LTH'EES JUN0DY

TI0Z/£1/80  2T0Z/10/80
TI0T/L1/80  ZI0T/LT/LO

TI02/L1/80 TI0Z/20/80

9E056S #
¥8Y7 Aq pied
95bGES #
AU Ag pled
STHSES #
¥3UD Ag pled

"

{
TO00LTEZZ0 EBTITLION JUJ S2unM3dld UOHOW JuemS - STIE
ITHAD UVTIVA 2T-4 welGold JUBWBIN0IY 82 04 - L6621
ITIHAD GSTPE JUJ SISYIB MG - ZBFDE

speloid RS - £12°£E8 WNODY
UOIIEBL0DY W SHIRG - €76 Jswedag
UmMo} SjIAISURIED - §TO pUnd

TUNOWY GaI0AU] . S18¢] JUSWABY - 938(] PoAesay 3%6d /0

Z1/1€/80 - 21/10/80 =buey 238Q 1/9
Hod9R] UollngLIs!

1/

218(] INg] 12 S0I0AU]

uoseay plon

SIS

Uondrosaq ao10AU] "ON 22I0AU] JOpUBA,



1 j0 9 2bey Wd #0560 ZT0Z/LZ/80 U0 UBLRINOT |0JRD AQ Uny
P0°9v8% 7 SUOHDBSURLY B310AL] SIBI0L HO W $8D - £00'TES N0y
£8¥56S #
50109 Z102/£7/30 CI0T/LT/80  TI0T/LY/80  Zi0T/1EfL0 ¥I8UD AQ pled 208 O ABeug s1BAld - T8E
9,868 #
66'PHE Z102/£0/80 Z102/€0/80 ZT0Z/E0/80  ZIOZ/ST/L0 323YD Aq pleg g0£8 11 ABIsug siad - p18E
[t 33 SBD - LOD'TES IUN0IDY
OD.NmmH T SUOROESURL | 2DI0AUT SiR1GE mﬁ_._mm.ﬁ_m:m = 007 EES JUN0DY
$OQsES #
00'28% z102/v2/80 ZI0Z/bE/80  2T0Z/vT/80  TI0U/lTiin ¥28YD) Ag pied T°H0T-2T 3 s3d@du0) 334n0saY - 70/Z
Buniesubug - 0RZ TEs }hony ﬁl{
06'85H$ € SLOIDESURI | SM0AL] S|BI0 ). pEOY IeK - £0T 07 S JUnoIDY !
S0/G6S # ]
00°S/2 TE0Z/HE/R0 TI0Z/vE/80 TI0Z/W2/80  ZT0Z/p1/80 3D AQ Pled INIAD SHIOM 29EL leg - 6TS8T
954568 #
98'/F 2102/41/80 ZI0E/LT/80  TXOT/L1/80  2102/L2/i0 ¥23YD AQ pled ITIAS weibold UBWaIN304d 03 0Q - £66ZT
996165 #
70911 2102/£0/80 Z10Z/€0/80 ZTOT/E0/80  ZN0Z/L1/L0 PR AQ pled SZ0YYD U] subls dygel) vewman - g5€z
DEOY K - £6T 0TS IUN0IY
£9°812°6% T SUOIDESURS] 3210AU] s1230L 5314517 198415 - SEOOF S JuNoDY
897565 #
£O'R1L'S Z10Z/01/80 TI0Z/OT/B0  ZTOZ/OT/R0  TT0T/9Z/L0 323D Aq pled $08T6. AB1aug AN - bE6T
sB1T 199015 - §50°07S JUN0IIY
S6588% b SUCHIBSURI | 330AL] se30). Hedoy @ juowaoe|day - $80'07S WNoNY
285565 #
0218 eT0zZ/L1/80 TI0Z/LT/R0  TI0Z/LTf80  Z10Z/6T/L0 H8UD Ag pled 0LTh 35NOH sued - OISZ
6LFS6S #
00'se ZT02/£1/80 ZI0T/LT/80  2TOZ/LT/80  210Z/2/90 33uD Aq pled TTOONIWAN [ddng suo/elsnpur jeusised - 12881
954565 #
00'6£8 ZIGR/LT/80 ZI02/LT/80  2T0Z//1/80  TIOT/LT/LO $ayy Aq pied INIAD  YIVTIVE T2 Lefioid JBWBINJ0N 03 00 - /66T
981565 #
§2°0S2 ZT02/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 ZTOT/OT/B0  2102/s0/L0 ¥8YD Aq pled 9TE£E200 Ul SINPOIJ 1RISPIOD - LTEY
seday g uswenedoy ~ $SH° 0TS 1ROV
SHAOM DGR 1BYIO - 976 Jusunirdag
uMo} BjpIAIRUpPIRD) - 09 pUNY
IUNCLUY SI0AU] 18] JUSWARY 218} PIAIRIDY 21eq 1/9 S1BQ 9N |38 S310AUT  U0SERY PISH snes L0JduDSRQ 3N0ALT JOPUSA

ZL/TE/80 - 21/10/80 =buey ayeq 1/9

Joday uoingiisi

1/

Aed S2UNODD




1 40 7 abeg Wd #b:05:50 2102//2/80 U0 UB{INOT (018D A LY
o
/

1£v£2°08% 50 SUCIIIRSUEL| D0ALY SIRI0] WAOL S)|IAIBUPAES - 01D BUng On.u

mm.mmmdﬁ 6T SUOIILSULL ] @dl0AU] SiE30 ] SMAOAA DG IBUIO - 826 w:memmmmﬁ_

wm.oow Z suoiesuRd ] @2]0AU] SIEI0] DOUBMIIMEN) (B4 3O « OTT'EES aUNO2Y
$LH565 #

£9°€2 Z10Z/41/80 ZIOZ/LE/B0  TTOZ/L1/80  TI0Z/0E/L0 ¥2Yd Ag pled 0£56T ¥2SL6h Pasd euAIS L1BISET - £GRE
P/PS6S #

SL°9E TIOE/LY/80 Z10Z/LT/80 ZT02/41/80  210Z/LT/L0 ¥23yd Ag pled 0£S6T qGZ/6h P24 BMSIS WI3ISRT - £G6E

BIUBLIDIUIREY jEOS HORIDY - 9T T E5S JUNodIY

MM.NN¢% 9 suopoBsSuURt] B2]0AUT SIEI0Y SUROYUN - @LOTES 1LUN0dDY
699565 #

£0'gzs ZT10E/42/80 Z10z/b2/80 ZTOZ/¥2/80  ZT10Z/30/80 ¥3YD Ag pled ITTIAD 5867 $8]RS LLIOJUN PRIV - 9995
160565 #

98°61 Z10T/0%/80 ZT02/01/80 Z10Z/01/80  CT0Z/TIE/L0 YYD Ag pled 0EL000  LE/8TINIYT JUT 0DS|Y - 5845
160S6S #

98'61 Z102/0T/30 Z10Z/0T/80 Z10T/01/80  €102/bef/0 AIBUD AQ pled 0C£000  THLOZ/NTA JU] OS|Y - GBLS
160565 #

98°6T Z102/01/80 Z10Z/0T/80 ZTOT/OT/80 ZI0E/LT/L0 $oaud AQ pled 0EE000  ZG/HEZNINT JUL 035|Y - §8/§
160566 #

9g°6T Z102/01/80 Z10Z/0T/80 ZTOT/OT/R0  EY0Z/0T/L0 #o8YD AQ pled 0EE000  €64ZT/NA JUT 025y - GBS
160565 #

98'6T Z102/07/80 Z102/0T/80 ZTOR/OT/S0  TT0Z/E0/L0 8D AQ pled 05E000 ZZBOZZNIAN JUl 035l - GB/S

SWIOHUN ~ BEO'ZES N0y
SHIOM N4 1910 - 96 Jusinedag
UMG] fHABUPIED - 010 pUnRd
JUNOLWY 22I0AU] 918 JUSUABLS oiB(] paniedsy 918 /5 D1EC] ANE] B DNI0AU]  UOSERY Dl=H Snies UORdIUDSag 2JI0AU] "ON S210AU] Joplaa

Z1/1€/80 - 21/10/80 sbuey 21 1/9

}odoy uonngliisi

1/

Aq sjqeieg s3UN03D




1T 40 § obeg Wd bb:05:60 ZT0T/£Z/80 UO LBLINOT [01RD) AQ UMy

o
$8'55% Z SUDNIRSURIE 2DICALI $|230) JUTY KoY O /obelsod - 080 07 S JUNODDY o
954565 #
26°07 TT02/£1/80 ZI0Z/LT/R0  Z10T/L1/80  TI0T/LT/L0 W8y Ag pred ITHUAD NYHLNOD 214 we.fiosd Juswainold 00 og - /6671
99865 #
6 ZT10Z/50/80 ZI0Z/50/80  ZTIOZ/E0/80  €T0T/60/L0 =YD A pled 9KDE0000S  EFZ/ETTOTHY Suonn|os Bulllel d 4 - #6752
JUTY Ko D%\@mwuwoa = 0007 S JUNodY
GLLETS 7 SuUOIIDBSURI ] SDI0AUT 51e10), Ssuadxg auoudsinl - §80° 0TS JUNODY
£88P6S #
£9'7F 2102/£0/80 ZT0T/€0/80 ZT0Z/E0/80 TT0Z/91/L0 YRUYD AQ Pled  SZOBOBO9SSEER/S/.  TT/L 9SBE-Z8/ JBRuUoL - £0167
EBBPES #
6'v6 210Z/£0/80 EI0E/E0/80  ZI0T/E0/80  2102/9%//0 PRUI AQpled  S6/Z0SOFSTLZBLSLL  TU/L bETZ-T8L lspuold - £0167
asuadxg puoyds(a) - S50°028 UNODY
05 LbETS G SUOIRZESURL T S0AUT sieio | uoniesusduiod paRoyg - g§T'0TS ILN0IDY
£2ESBS #
00°0¢ee Z102/01/80 - ZIOZ/OT/80 ZT0Z/01/80 ZI0T/T0/80 PAUD Aq pred JITAD  QYUvoa 7I-8 BpuUl 18IS - 6967
. 162565 #
00'022 ZT0T/0T/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 TTOZ/OT/80  2TOZ/10/80 243 A pled ITNAD  Quvodg e1-8 [ReYdI sdiild - 67981
$HT565 #
05'/£2 Z10Z/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80  2T0Z/01/80  Z10Z/10/80 3¥22yD Ag pied INAS  Quvog z1/8 Isuuay J8(llg - 09687
£ETS6S #
00052 Z102/01/80 TT0Z/0T/80 ZT0Z/OT/8C  TTOZ/TO/90 2u) Ag pred ITIAD  QuvYod Z1/8 Y INB ABSPUIT - £0b/T
102565 #
00°022 210z/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 ZI0Z/01/80  Z102/10/80 YD Ag pred ITIAD  qQuv0osg 21/8 M phon erenBiy - ggzy
uonesusdiod pleoy - ST 0TS UNODY
UORBRHUES 7 YIeDY - 576 WaLadag
UES T UNEDH D[IAIUDIED - TTH puny
JUNOWY 3210ALUY  a3e(] JUBlUAE] =1BQ paAladay 23eq /9 B 3ng 212 2DIoAUGY  U0SesY plaRr sSniels Uc3do53(] 230ALT ‘O S010ALT JODUBA

ZY/IE/80 - TT/10/80 abuey a1eq /9

q 9jgeied siunodd




T Jo § =bed Wd bb:05:00 2T0Z/£2/80 U0 UBLRNOT |0IRD AG UNY
IR Tad T SUOIIBSURLE 3DI0AU sie0), Juswmdmbs s5sea 13 S3UDY - 9ET 0TS JUN0DOY
£99565 #
£LH2T 2102/£1/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  TIOZ/L1/80  ZT0Z/T0/80 38U Aq pred Z10£0€917 958660£90 uonelodIoD X0RYX - 6TSE
juawdinbyg 535287 13 53USY - 9LT0TE LN0DDY
mm.omgw T suonodusulj =2/0AUT S|RI0]. fWg 3R - L60°028 JUR0DY
0/ /%68 #
56071 ZI02/£0/80 Z102/€0/80 TIOZ/E0/80  2T0Z/LT/L0 ¥8ud AQ pied INIAD FIPI6 2uf a4 DAy - 8GES
SRg WK - Z60"0TS LNy
0Eves € SUOIIDRSURIE SI0AU] s|2o0] Bunesy - £60°0ZS JUN0DDY
GZ0S6S # 4
99'€7 Z10Z/£0/80 ZI0Z/E0/80  TT0T/C0/80  210Z/L1/L0 332U Ag pled ZODOOSSRTTTHF -/ ZODODSSRTT sebaj 5B7-5BD) 159MUIN0S - TZ0€
GZ0S6S # 4
1£.°ST Z10Z/€0/80 ZI0Z/E0/80  TI0Z/E0/80  2T0Z/LT/L0 333D Aq pled Y00¥TZZLOTIVT -/ ¥0DFZZZLOT sebap, se7-5BD I59MUIN0S - (206
570565 # 71
£0°sT Z10Z/£0/80 Z102/£0/80 TI0Z/E0/80  ZI0Z/LN/L0 338D AQ pled ZZ062/5TOOTYE  -£ 2206245100 seBap $B1-S0) JSPMLIN0S - TZ0E
Bupesy - 60" 07§ WNOI0Y
08'€1Ed T SUONRZRSURL} 2ICAUL 5210 IDMOd - 5R0°0TH JUNodY
BYTSES #
08°€TE ZT02/01/80 ZT0Z/01/80 TIOEZ/OT/80  2102/92//0 32ayD Aq pled ¥08167/  TI-/ #0816/ ABIDUI AN - $26C
Jamod - 5807076 L0y O
za'z0e'ss 0T SUOIDBSURS§ 2DICAMIT s|gio | Medoy g yuswaoe|dey - $RONES WNOIDY l__..\
785565 # N
61IE ZI0T/L1/80 ZI02/41/80  TI0Z/LY/80  2102/61//0 a8 Aq pled 0LTH 089.5v 8SNOH SHed - 0IST
BSSES #
Z89¢ Z107/41/80 ZI0Z/L1/80  TIOT/LT/80  ZT0Z/60/L0 Ya3uD Ag pred 0Lk 96.551 25N0H SHed - 0TST
785565 #
55°ST Z102/41/80 ZI02/L1/80  TI0T/L1/80  210Z/50/40 33342 Aq pled 0L1F G/E5SY 38NOH sMed - 0157
6v5565 #
96°87 ZI0Z/21/80 ZT02/L1/80 2T0T/LT/90  TI0Z/TE/L0 ¥23uD Aq pled 057990 Sb/869 J2quin syeeW - 1712
TrS565 #
ISLLT'E TI0T/L1/80 ZT02/L1/80 TT0Z/LT/90  Z10Z/8T/L0 ¥23yD Aq pied S/9PT-LIV  bTZ00000L17 JUL J2)UBD BdIL YHWS ¥R - £508
ZPS565 #
00706 Z102/41/80 TT0Z/L1/80 2T02/LT/80  Z102/6%/L0 8D Aq pred GLOPT-LTY £Z6ETE JUL J2USD) 1L UNWS HeBlW - £508
BLLG5S #
88 z102/41/80 TI0Z/L1/80  TIOZ/LT/80  Z10Z/1E/40 3oauD AQ pred TTOONIWAN  SOTEZNIWAN [ddng suaD/jelsnpu] (euslsed - TZ88T
955565 #
66202 Z10T/L1/80 ZI0/L1/80  ZI0T/21/80  T10Z/LE/L0 ¥3Ud Aq prad JNTIASD MIYTIVA 2T1-2 welfioud Juawainaold 03 0Q - /6621
6BES6S #
66°07 eT0R/£1/80 ZI0E/LT/80  TIOT/L1/80  C10Z/91/L0 Y3y Ag pied 9£eT /008540 eMpiey 93y - GRGTT
GRESHS #
86'6 T02/£1/80 Z102/L1/80 ZI0Q/Z1/80  2102/90/L0 ¥3yd Ag pred 9£TT 1/555540 BIRMPIRH B2V - GRETT
Ajeday @ juswaseiday - $R0°0TS WNOY
UONELNUES B UHRRH - 626 Jusuniedag
HES 7 UIESH DIIAIBUPIRE - TTH pUNd
JUNGLUY 2JI0AU]  D3B(] JUBLUAZH 2RC] POAIBODY 21 /5 a1 9N o1eQ =0AI]  UOSESY pigH SMeIg LoRdD52( SJI0ALT BN S210AL] JODUSA

CT/T£/80 - 21/10/80 ebuey 21eq 1/9

Modoy uonnqLas!

1/

Aq sjqeAed sUNoID




T 40 01 abeg Wd Fr:0S:50 TT02/£2/80 U0 UBYINOT [0IED) A Uy

CTHEBS #

98208 ZT0Z/LT/80 ZI0T/LT/80  ZTOZ/LT/80  TTOT/1T/L0 ¥}3y3 Ag pled 60877 ¥190/66 Iypuet Ao uosles - £6851
£TPSES #

¢/ 968 Z102/£1/80 CT0Z/LT/80  TI0T/L1/80  ZT0T/TI/L0 3I3UD Aq pied 620822 0650766 lIpue A1 vosied - £585T
£2H568 #

ZTITY Zr0z/i/e0 TI0T/LT/80  2I0T/LT/80  Z10Z/OT/L0 ¥I8UD Ag pled 640822 £TE0LE6 [ipuE] AU UoSIED - £585T
£THS6S #

21655 7102/£1/80 TIOT/LI/80  2Y0T/ZT/80  TI0Z/E0/L0 HoauD Ag pled 620872 Lb66966 JIpUET AND UosIeD - £685T
£THSES #

89'61E z10Z/21/90 ZI02/LT/80  2T0Z//1/80  T10T/90//0 3osud Ag pred 6£0877 POEGI66 lypueT A3D uoste) - £5851
£2HS6S #

9/ '8TH ZT02/L1/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  ZTOT/LE/80  ZTI0Z/00/10 F=y) Aq pled 6£087¢ £526966 lypue] A uosie) - £6851
£TBSES #

05°0zk Z102/L1/80 CIOZ/LT/80  ZTOT/LT/80  2T0Z/S0/20 ¥aYD AQ pled 640822 0006966 ypueT A1) uosie) - €6851
£TPSES #

PT5EE 1o0z/L1/80 CT0C/LT/30  Z2I02/21/80  2102/50/20 32343 Aq pled 6£082Z 8668966 IypuE] A uosed - £585T
£2H56S #

9/'09¢ 2Y0z/L1/80 CI0ZILI/B0  2X0Z/LT/80  2102/50/L0 28U Ag pled 640827 +£68966 jiypue A Uosied - £685T
£TPSES #

0507+ Z102/41/80 ZT0E/LY/80  TTOZ/L1/80  T10T/%0/L0 paud Ag preg 640822 97 /8966 llypue A1) Uose) - £585T
£ZHS6S #

Z0Sib Z102/£1/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  TTOT/LE/80  Z102/v0/L0 AIBUYD Ag pled 6£08%7 5Z/8966 llypue AHD uosted - £585T
£ZHSES #

01°85¢ Z102/41/80 ZYOZ/LT/R0  TTOZ/LT80  TIOT/HO/L0 32342 Aq pled 6£08%% £2£8966 Iypuet A uosied - £5851
£TPSBS #

09°9%% Z10z/21/80 ZI0T/LT/80  ZT0Z//1/80  ZTOZ/E0/L0 }3UD Aq pred 60822 £198966 [IypuE] 1D uose) - £585T
£2HS6S #

pp'196 TT0Z/L1/80 TI0T/LT/80  2T0Z/L1/80  TT0T/20/L0 ¥ays Aq pled 640822 7£28966 |njpue] AD uosied - £G8ST
86/¥6S #

og'y Z102/20/80 ZT0Z/E0/80 ZTIOZ/E0/80  210T/Ee/l0 ayd Aq pleg ITIAD THEB-TY saweuApmolBy Auag - 01911
[6/165 #

0Lf Z102/£0/80 Z10Z/€0/80 Z10T/E0/80  ZI0E/oT/i0 #03UD Ag pled ITNAD SZE6-2T sojusreuApmoIBy Ajjusg - DISTT

asuadxy jupueT - L61°078 JUNOY —_

£ 20TS { SUDIIDESURI] 3I0AL] 51210, Dsuadxd PULBIUY -~ LET 0TS NODY .‘\
195568 # D

86F% Z102//1/80 CI0T/LT/80  ZI0Z/L1/80  ZTOZ/T0/R0 ¥3UD Ag prad ITIAD Trees DT PUORSOUBN - 0DS/
195565 #

6% 2T0Z/£1/80 TI0Z/L1/80  TI0Z/L1/80  Z10Z/10/L0 33D AQ pleg ITIAS 761¢8 DT PUGIBSOUEN - 00S/
OGHSES # NOSTOHDIN

0579 2102/£1/80 ZTOE/LY/80  TTOZ/L1/80  210T/LEli0 oy Aq pred ATHAD 14374 wesfosd sWalndold 09 0q - £662T
6EL56S #

66°GE Z10e/21/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  2T0E/L1/80  T10T/Z0/80 PR AG pled 60SZTO0900TTHSE]R  21/8 6052100 SUOBRIIUNWILIOD JaMeY) - /885T

Bsusig IDWIBIUT - F9T 078 LNy
uoneEues @ yyee - 76 uewuedaq
UEG I 1ES ) B}IAIBUPIED - TTO pund
JUROLLY @2310AU]  @)8(] JUSWAE] 218(] PIAlR Y 227 1/9 S eng]  9IeQ 8d10Al] | Uoseay PloH SMRIS uondudsaq sI0AUT ‘ON 2210AUT TOPUSA

ZT/TE/80 - 21/10/80 =buey 818Q 1/9




T Jo TT abeg

Wd ¥¥0§:%0 TT0Z/£7/80 U0 UBLINOT [018D Ag UNY

9g'sTH TT0T/£1/80 TT0Z/LE/80  TROZ/LT/80  TROZ/9TI/LO xumszwmmmmm 640822 BEVYL66 lypue AtD uosied - £585T
81°8TH TT0T/LE/80 ZT0T/LT/80  ZTOE/L1/80  TI0T/STILL V_umsmumwmmmh 640822 £8T1/66 lypue AxD LoSHED - £58ST
TErb T10z/LE/80 ZI0T/LT/R0  ZT02/L1/80  TI0T/ST/LO V_um;wmwmmm& 640822 6L1VL66 lypue A uosie) - £685T
01'GHE TI0Z/LE/80 ZI0Z/Z1/80  2T0T/L1/80  Z10Z/ST/L0 v_um;wmwmmummm 6£0827 vLIVL66 ypLee AyD Losse) - £G8ST
98 bbb T10z/L/80 ZTI0Z/LT/80  2Y0Z/L1/80  ZI0E/vT/s0 %Ewmwmow_mm 640872 9Z6EL66 lypue AND UosIED - £68ST
2T'585 Z102/41/80 Z102/4T/80  T0Z/L1/80  ZI0Z/ET/LD xum:wmwmm%_mm 6£08¢Z 065466 lypue A3D uosse) - £585T
Z1'98¢ Z10T/21/80 ZI0T/LY/80  2R0Z/LT/R0  2T0Z/0T/L0 xum;mumwmmmmm 6£0877 1967466 lypue 3D uossed - £585T
0LEhb 2102/£1/80 ZT0Z/LT/80  TIOT/LT/80  2102/0T/L0 xumsmumwmmmmm 64082 PEBZLE6 lypue AnD uoseD - £585T
99'S0€ 2102/£1/80 ZI0Z/LE/R0  2T0Z/L1/80  ZTOZ/GT/LO v_umsw.n.wmm%_mm 6£087¢ ¥E9TL66 lypue AyD uosie) - £686T
00°c6h TI02/£1/80 TT0Z/L1/80  ZEIOZ/LT/80  TI0E/6T/L0 xumsw.n.wmmﬁmmm 6£082Z £997/66 llypue AD uoseD - €585 1
9Z'SLE TT0T/£1/80 TTIOT/LN/80  ZYOZ/LT/R0  ZT02/6T/L0 v_um:wwwmm%mm 60822 0992266 lIUpUE AXD UOSIED - £S8ST(
0C'9Z Z102/£1/80 ZT0T/L1/80  2Y0Z/L1/80  ZTOZ/RT/LO xum:mumwm_mmmm 6£082¢ PTHTL66 lypue AYD uose) - mmwmﬁ
9T'L0b ZT0T/L1/80 ZT0Z/L1/80 TIOZ/L1/80  TT0Z/8T/L0 xumsmumwmmw_mm 6£087¢ 1££2£66 llypue A0 uosieD - £68ST
pRZ9Y 2T02/L1/80 ZT0Z/LT/B0  TT0Z/L1/80  ZT0Z/RT/L0 v_umsmumwmmmmm 620822 £9€7466 lypue AHD uose) - £585Y
Z6°09% TT07/41/80 ZT0Z/LT/B0  TTOT/LT/B0  TI0Z/LVILO v_umszmew._mH 60827 1902466 lypue AD UOsIeD - ESBST
8LPLS T107/£1/80 ZT0Z/LT/80  2T0T/L1/80  TI0T/9T/L0 v_umszMmmMmﬂ 62087¢ 8141466 (lypue AUD UoseD - £SBST
Z1'98€ Z102/£1/80 TT0T/LT/80 TIOT/LT/B0  EI02/ET/L0 xumcwmwmmw_mm 62087C £611/66 II4PUET AUD UCSIED - £5BST
PRIEER Z107/£1/80 ZT0Z/LT/80  TT0Z/Z1/80  ZI0Z/ET/LD %Ewmwmmmmm 620872 0711466 II4PUET AND UOSIED - £685T
F0'98 Z10Z/L1/80 TIOT/LT/80  ZIOT/L1f80  EI0B/ZT/LD xumswmwmmum_mm 60872 9680/66 fIgpue] AND UosIED - £5BST
Z6'6TH TT0Z/LT/80 ZIOE/LT/B0  TTOT/L1/80  TI0Z/ZT/L0 v_um;wmwmmmh 6£087¢ 5680466 lypuey A1) uosie) - £685T
2E'0SE ZT0T/4T/80 ZI02/L1/80  TTOZ/L1/80  ZI0T/ZT/L0 xum;wmwmmhmm 6£087T P680£66 ilypuet Al uosie) - £586T
PEGTH Z102/L1/30 Z10Z/LT/80 210T/£1/80  210E/TT/L0 xuw;wmwmmw_h 6208¢2 1950466 ilupuet AYD uosie) - £585T
ssusdX3 [HIPURT - £5T°0ZS RN0IDY
HOEIHUES 17 YRR - 576 uswedag

UBS 2 L2ESH SjAIDUPIED) - TTO pung

JURGILY 200AU] 918 IUDWARS oiB(] PaAIoldy EERRIS) JIEQ ONQ |12 odl0Al] | UOSESY pPloH STEIS UORALIIEa(] aoloAU] "ON SDI0ALIT JOPLDA,

ZT/1E/80 - Z1/10/80 sbuey a1 /9

Joday uonngLst

1/

Ag s|qeAed S1UN0DD




b1 Jo 2T abeg Wd pb:0S:b0 2T0Z/£Z/80 UO UBYINOT |0IED AG UNY

Mm.h.miw g SuopIBsSULL; adloAauY SIRIGE SULIOMUNY - G70'EEC N0y
680565 #
£0'8et Z102/ve a0 Z10Z/¥2/80 2T0Z/b2/80  2T02/80/80 AeyD Ag pled 3TAD 5867 SB(eS LLIOJIUM PRI - 9995
160565 #
9861 Z10Z/0T/80 ZT02/01/80 ZT0Z/OT/80  2I0Z/1E/L0 $2syD) Aq pled 0EE000  Z&482/NFWN JUl OJS|Y - §8/S
160565 #
98°61 Z102/01/80 ZT0Z/0T/80 ZTOZ/OT/S0  210Z/%Z//0 YaayD AQ pled 0EE000  TH/9Z/N3IYT JUT 025y - 58§
160565 #
98'61 Z10z/01/80 TI0Z/0T/80 2T0T/0T/80  ZTOZ/LI/L0 33U AQ pred DEE000  TSLbTINTYT JUl OOSlY - S§8/5
T6056S #
98'61 ZE0Z/0T/80 TT02/01/80 2I0Z/0T/80  ZTOT/OT/L0 3y Aq pied 0EE000  26£ZZZNTHT Jul 035Y - 6875
160565 #
98'61 210z/01/80 ¢T02/01/80  TTOZ/OT/80  2102/80/L0 ¥3UD Ag pled 0EE000  ZZBOZLNZYN JuJ OOSIY - 6875
SHLIOHUT - 8ZOZES IUNOIY
£1'620°c$ T SUONDBEStRIE S0I0AU] $|€30). 1O 1B 589 - £00°TES LN03Y
£8KS6S #
Er164'T Z102/£1/80 Z102/LT/80 ZTOZ/L1/80  ZYQZ/1E/L0 3ayd Aq pied BOES  BBLTZSOSHD I ABlaug siedid - $18E
9/8b65 #
04280t ZT02/£0/80 Z10Z/E0/80 210Z/c0/80  TTOT/ST/L0 24D Ag pled 80€8 £9LPTS054D DTt ABssug s1sAld - HISE
110 g 5B - £0Q°TES JUNOY
00°09% 1 suoIDesuUR: ] 3M0AUT S|210 . 1507 UOIIIB||0a-1RB8T - GET TR IUNCOY
9SHS6S # NOSTOHDIN
00'09 Z10z/21/80 TT0Z/LT/80 2T0Z/L1/80  TTOT/LE/L0 ¥23uD AQ pied INIAD (4074 welboid JUAWaIN304d 0D 0 - /6671
1507 UOND8|j0g-12857 - GET TZS WNoDY
00°09% T SUCHIESURL} 2210AUT S[R30, Se3ARG (89T - DETTES N0y
600566 # A
00°'09 T10Z/£0/80 ZI0T/E0/80  TTOT/E0/80  Z102/81/70 338D Aq pied ITNAD 65517 d1152(eH @ BmOY - 91R0T
SIDIALEG 12637 - OET TS JUN0YY
96°/70'8T% Bl SUDIZESURLE 3DI0AUT 510, osuadxy [JUPURT - 26T 075 JUN0DDY
£THSES #
95°¢8h Z10e/21/80 Z10Z/LT/80 2TOT/L1/80  2R0T/1e/s0 ¥aud Aq pred 60872 £5/5.66 llypueT AD Uosled - £585T
£ZHSES #
89°LLS 210243180 210Z/LT/80 ZI0T/LT/80  CTOT/0E/L0 3D Ag pled 640822 PEPGLE6 [pueT AxD uosieD - £685T
£THE6S #
91'8/£ Z102/41/80 CIOZ/L1/80  ZTOT/LT/R0  2102/e2/L0 ¥oauD Aq pred 60877 ThLbLB6 fipueT A uosieD - 5851
£2H565 #
90°6LF Z102/27/80 2T0Z/LT/80  TT0T/LT/80  Z102/22/10 }RuD A pied 60872 12.4466 lypuet A uosie) - £6851
ETFSBS #
86°/0% ZI0Z/L1/80 ZI0Z/LT/80  TT0Z/Z1/80  2T0Z/9R/L0 33ud Aq pied 640822 6bbb/66 HYPUET AIID U0SIED - €585
£2H566 #
2 08F 2107/41/80 ZY0T/LT/80  TI0Z/LT/B0  TI0Z/9T/L0 ¥2343 Ag pled 640872 Obbbr66 3pueT A UOSIED - £585T
asupdiy JIPUET - L6T 0TS N0y
UORENUES B UMY - G746 JudWLdag
UBg 3 YLD BI{AIDUPIES - TTE puUnd
JUNOWY 22i0AUT  238(] JUBLLARY 91E(] PaAISDaYy 23eq 1/9 918 aNg =38 22l0AU]  UOSedY plep SNJBIS UCNAUDSQ) 2010ALE ‘ON 2010AL JODUSA

ZT/1E/80 - 2T/T0/80 abuey a1eq 1/
odoy uorngLIs!

Aq ojqeArd SIUNOID

1/




1 Jo £1 afied

IWd 0510 ZTOZ/£Z/80 UC URINOT [0JED) AQ UNY

ERR

0EE98'9TS 9@ SUOIDESUR | 2DI0AUL S[RI0L UBS 13 UNES| SHIAIBUDIRD - TT9 Pury
0£°E98'9TS OR SUORIBSURI] 3D0AU[ 5|L10] UOIIBIIES F LUEDY - g6 Wownedsq
0t 791°1$ T 5UORDIRSUR | 3310AU] 5|B10 | RABRMIIOS - QDR ET Y IUN0DY
752665 #
0€°£9T'T 2102/¥2/80 TI0Z/PE/B0  TTIOZ/bE/80  ZTOT/0E/L0 P2UT AG pred 69TZ£9/60 T4dX85MdX Bunayiel 1eQ - 5556
DI2MUOS - GO EES JUNODY
GHG/ES T SUOIDESUEL | 9DI0AU] s1€10). sayddns 20140 - §Og EES JUN0IY
95b565 # NOSTOHDIN
S8'07 z102/L1/80 ZI0Z/£T/80  ZT0Z/4T/80  TIOC/Lziin P32y AG pred aMIAD 4074 WeJIB0ld JUBWRINI0I 03 00 - Z662T
862565 #
00°6SE Z102/01/80 ZI0Z/0T/80 ZT0Z/OT/R0 TTOC/IE/L0 PR Ag pred NIAD 18T9-11 19840 WNWRdO S B Y - 4906
sayddng 22140 - 008" ££5 UN03YY
uonejues 3 YIRdY - g6 Jwauniedaq
ueg 7 YHEIH 2fIApupIes - TE9 pun
JUNGLLY S0I0AUT | B18(] JUSUIAB]  23e(] paAlmlay 218Q 1/© 2] 2NQ o9IeQ 92I0AU]  UOSEdY pjoH [THEIS ucndudsag) adiomly "GN 2210AL] 1CPUBA

ZT/1£/80 - Z1/10/80 obuey a1eQ 1/9
poday uoinglisi

jqeAed siunosd




1 jo 1 abed

Wd pb:05: 40 ZTOZ/LZ/80 UC UBLINOT |0I8D AQ UNY

16'859'801$ 95T SUCHIESLE | 3310ALY S[E10 1 pueIn ANANDY 1834 (23S JOHd = 4
06005625 T SUCIIDESURI ) BDI0AU] sjej0), foug ded j2a Py SIIAD - 19 puny
06'005°62% T SUONZESURL Y 22I0AUT g20) foyd ded jeA py 214D - 0S£ Jusuniadag
06'005°62% T SUORDESURI L BDI0AUT sie1oy suswdinbg 3 ABUIDEK - DOS PG JUNODY
¥18565 #
06"005'6¢ Z102/v2/80 Z10Z/ve/80  TI0ZT/HT/B0  TTOT/Z0/80 U Aq pled 69EFT ITIAD L9TT03 J0BIL, (€D PIW - 04F9
wamdinb g m ASUIYDER - S PES WNOY
foag den jep py 9jaD - gL UswLedsq

lodg dey @A Py 211IA,5 - $TO DuNY

WNGLLY SI0AU] 1B 1USWARY 2)2(] PaABIoY S8 /5 FIeQ 2NQ 218 FJ0AUT  u0seay pPlIoH smes LONL3Sac] 9510AU]T ‘ON 92I0AUT JOPUIA

CT/1£/80 - Z1/10/80 sbuey 21e@ 1/9
Oty UOIINGLI3S]

1/




Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardnerville
"<~ Nevada

1. Title: Approve the revised planned development modification (PD) 04-008-4, for the Ranch
at Gardnerville, LLC, requesting a modification to a previously approved planned
development; to modify the planned development boundary identified in ordinance #2004-
1108, extend and modify the development schedule, and to modify the subdivision design as
a result of changes to the road improvements and re-designing of alley ways to the streets;
including associated variances to the Douglas County Design Manual and Douglas County
Development Code. The property is located south of Buckeye Road and north of Gilman
Avenue along Heybourne Road, within the SFR-8,000 (Single Family Residential, 8,000
square foot minimum parcel size) zoning district with a PD (Planned Development) Overlay,
and is located within the Minden-Gardnerville Community Plan Area, APN’s: 1320-29-000-
008, -014, 1320-33-210-033 & 1320-32-501-017,

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

2. Recommended Motion: Motion to approve planned development modification (PD) 04-008-4,
for the Ranch at Gardnerville, LLC, requesting to modify the planned development boundary
identified in ordinance #2004-1108, extend and modify the development schedule, and to modify
the subdivision design as a result of changes to the road improvements and re-designing of alley
ways to the streets; including associated variances to the Douglas County Design Manual and
Douglas County Development Code.

Funds Available: " Yes v N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire

4. Meeting Date: August 7, 2012 Time Requested: None, unless pulled

5. Agenda: ¥ Consent " Administrative

6. Background Information: The Ranch at Gardnerville submitted a plan last month in which the
Gardnerville Board approved and Minden Board continued. The Town managers, Douglas
County staff, and Rob Anderson, had a meeting to come up with suggestions for the development
and RO Anderson revised the plan. The changes shown on the revised plan include the creation of
a small parcel that will contain the perimeter wall and landscaping and will be maintained by a
single use homeowners association. This area extends north of Zerolene and is not contained
within the Gardnerville Town Boundary. This plan was revised and Town Counsel deems it
necessary to have action on the item. The approval letter from the town to county staff is included
with the backup material. There are NO changes proposed within the Gardnerville Town
Boundary (from Zerolene Road south) of the development.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: ¥ Yes ™ N/A
Minden Board, Planning Commission, and County Commissioners
8. Board Action:
' Approved ' Approved with Modifications
" Denied " Continued

m
Agenda Item #4




August 8, 2012

Dirk Goering, Associate Planner

Douglas County Community Development
P.O.Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423

RE: PD 04-008-4 (Planned Development); The Ranch at Gardnerville, Located south of
Buckeye Road and north of Gilman Avenue along Heybourne Road extension; APNs: 1320-29-
000-008, -014, 1320-33-210-033 and 1320-32-501-017.

Good afternoon, Dirk.

The Gardnerville Town Board took action at last nights, August 7" Board meeting, to
conditionally approve remaining phases of the planned development. The conditions listed in the
provided staff report are attached, and one modification that was discussed during the meeting is
now included in town staff report,

The following comments are the modified recommended conditions of approval prior to the
Final Map Submittals;

1.

L o

The developer work with the towns and county on a compromise solution to the Zerolene
Road crossing which would allow for the crossing of Zerolene in a flooded condition.
Trailhead access with parking shall be constructed.

Town streets require all street signs to be per the approved Town standard, decorative
style.

Town streets require “acorn” style lights on black steel fluted poles (NV Energy
standard). Lights shall be installed at turning points, cul-de-sacs, and intersections only.
Coordinate design with Town.

The Town will not accept dedication of and maintenance of neighborhood monument
signs and fences.

Multi-family units shall be served by 2-cubic yard dumpsters, one dumpster per four
dwelling units, dumpster location, access, and size shall be coordinated with the Town at
the project design review stage.

All nrigation and/or storm water conveyance facilities shall be piped with exception of
the Martin Slough and Park Ditch. The Park ditch needs to extend from Gilman to the
Martin Slough Ditch. Ditch maintenance path and pedestrian access shall be provided.
Stormm drain facilities proposed are required to be maintained privately, including but not
limited to storm water treatment devices, piping, catch basins, and retention/detention
ponds, that will convey runoff into Town maintained storm drain systems shall have a
maintenance and operations plan reviewed and approved by the town. Applicant is
required to submit such plan before improvement plans will be approved. Adequate
funding for perpetual maintenance of such facilities must be demonstrated.




The Ranch at Gardnerville PD 04-008-4
First Review comments
Page 2 0of 2

9. The following Standard Town Conditions of Approval shall apply:

a.

b.
C.

All administrative, engineering, or legal fees incurred by the Town in connection
with reviewing the project shall be reimbursed and paid to the Town,
[mprovement plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Town’s engineer.
Estimate of value for all offsite improvements dedicated to the Town is required
before final acceptance of those improvements,

Trash enclosures shall be constructed to Town standards and access for service
vehicles shall be approved by Town staff,

All drainage and agriculture irrigation facilities shall be piped and placed in the
public right-of-way, with the exception of Martin Slough and Park Ditch which
shall remain open in this project.

Construction runoff and dewatering practices shall be in accordance with the
appropriate permits obtained from the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection. Discharge into existing Town storm drain systems will only be
allowed upon written approval from the Town, and will be subject to discharge
quality and storm drain cleaning requirements as set forth by the Town.
Maintenance plans and level of service for landscape areas proposed for care by a
homeowner’s association are required to be submitted for review and approval by
the Town Board, who will either recommend approval or denial to the Board of
County Commissioners of the maintenance plan.

Any damage to the Town’s existing infrastructure, including, but not limited to,
streets, curb and gutter, sidewalks, or drainage systems caused by the
development of the project shall be repaired or replaced by the developer.

One paper copy of the record drawings and an electronic file in AutoCAD format
2012 (or less) is required before final acceptance of improvements.

10. Additional items discussed during the Town Board Meeting;

a.

The board would like to see one additional trail link from the sub division to the
proposed Martin Slough multi-model trail.

The final map should indicate the required sight visibility areas at all the proposed
intersections. This will be easy to identify the areas possibly within the building
envelope that will not be allowed to be blocked by shrubs greater than 3’ high and
structures. This will allow the developer then to utilize the requested 10 setback.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide these comments; further comments may result from
review of documentation related to this application that is submitted in the future. 1f you have
any questions or comments, or if you require additional information, please contact me at our

office.
Sincerely,
{

Thomas A. Dallz;ire, P.E.
Gardnerville Town Manager/Engineer.

Ce:

Keith Rubin, RO Anderson Engineering, Inc.

H4-2



MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 24, 2012

TO: Tom Dallaire, Town Manager
TOWN OF GARDNERVILLE

FROM: Keith Ruben, AICP (@

R.O. ANDERSON ENGINEERING, INC.

SUBJECT: The Ranch at Gardnerville Plan Revision
Hi Tom,

Please find attached revisions to the tentative subdivision map for The Ranch at
Gardnerville. This latest revision places the landscaped wall located along a portion of
Heybourne Road within a separate parcel. The Owner and their legal counsel have
considered the various proposals for the ownership and maintenance of the proposed
wall and landscaping and have decided to own and maintain these improvements
through a “single purpose” property owners association, thereby negating the need to
form a landscape maintenance district.

Also, some of the text of the phasing plan have been edited due to some confusion with
the prior language regarding the construction phasing of Heybourne Road
improvements.

Should you have any further questions, please contact Rob Anderson at 775.782.2322

Thank you.

END OF MEMORANDUM




TH
LI L] || e N
uBoSh 2 H
- == PROPOSED UL TI=FAILY 200 5 - G =
FRIERG A LARN Y RESCENTIAL DEVELOPRENT | | P:.’;.E' c'a:%— £ ég"ﬂ,‘.’ﬁ,,. .
i 7 Ay MaTeH exisTING | [ ASTER D A AP TURAL
o A, X | i UNDEVELORED
. L “o \ I
inkahodmehade it M L Ji mucKETYE ROAD
St [ Rp—— = 2t e e —— =N AF CWNER[S) ZOWMING  |ABTER PLAN | SEVELOFED
'%ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂf'g"}ﬁlﬁf‘ ey 1 _]1220-22-501-012 |FRABER REVOCADLE TRUGT Bt INEUATRIAL TES
PBEFNEDILDCATIEN Y ] FRABZR & TRUsT e HOUSTRIAL G
TO DE RILOCATED 1 8 }1320-32-501-0i4 |FRADIR REVOCABLE TRUST ot INSUBTRIAL YED
WITH PROJEST g% :zm'm'l.l.NE UNITED "% | 1320-82-681-000 |SULERIN, cHRID € RERT o IHDUETRIAL YES
ﬁ, FARDIERD. ToLETHoNE AnD % |1320-83-%01-0'6 |SEEHAN FAMILT TRUST ey ACRA ves
o ,}/ EASCMENT "“,2“‘.2-‘,"., L {1320-32-651-060 |POUCLAS COUMTT TRAUSTEE SFR 3,000 BER Ten
RCUNDABOUT % /‘r;‘ (w\pﬁﬂa‘;::’,g)) T {1320-B2-£c1-004 |KALL, RONALD K 4 JOAN 9 BFR 8,000 R re
& To BE IELOGATED‘ 6 {1320-32+4514010 [SUTIMERSD, L 8 I DFR & E00 BFR N
EN S ’.f WITH P 25T A FI820-32-418-006 |BLANCS, GUILLER™MO ¢ JEAMI GFR 5,000 BFR TS
} : 1§ 11320-82-518-C07 |ALL, RONALD K 4 JOAN B SFR 8,000 BFR TS
¥ i 11| 1220-02~&13-038 | SUAMERS, JIFF & SR E,GG0 oFE YIS
24 ll 13 {1320-32-613-024 |SurERS, JEFF A AFR 5,550 AFR YES
A i 1 12 {132Cn32wki3edp DANGDERG YRUBT AFR B OGO DR TES
, %to ! }' AN T3R0-2h-B00—GL (4 {1320-82-6M-0H |WITT, CRAMG M & CAREN & SFR 8,000 SR hird
“ 3 | PARK T T Sy AT 15§ IB20-D2~IB-0B] |WMITT, CRAIG 1M & CAREN A BFR_8, 000 3FR YRS
i % F hasTen: Fmﬁgﬁl&?l—wm 1 1320-32-413-020 [GARDNERYILLE, TGN OF PF G TEG
= t : i 17 ]1320-52-413-002 |DINAMORE FAMILY TRUDT BrR 000 SFR YEB
5 I 13 {1220-22-6G1-0t4 |OHSMORE FAMILY TRUST ELLE-X SER HO
i [ §{ 1% | 1820-30-#01-0'6_|owoDT, RODERT M § REIBECCA |OFR 5,000 SFR ES
‘\ Tone 44 M 20 | 13202613008 [IPHILIFD, MHCHAEL S 3R & A SFR 8,000 FR S
Z;a'i'i;"(',"je- Ly E: Ed TT, GUARLES L § MARI : SFR 8,000 SR TS
Loop B3 5la
Y i Olg 22 { 13Z0-32~753-D17 |OROBY TRUBTS HFR PR TES
: Y o zoimae 3 5}1 33 _{1320-33-301-003 |DOUGLAD COUNTY SCHOOL DDl pF o TES \Qg@w T _MAPR
- it | ] =y B 24 (1920-33+301 008 {GARDNERVILLE, TOWN OF [ o He NOT TO SCALE
H A ~1 2% | 1930-30-381 007 [GREEN SPRINCH ASPEN LLG FFR, 81 [HFR, NOUST. O
. / amny t30-ga;bo1-oca i 1 ll [2é {ia20-33-210-001 [HALEFTY 187 FAFILY TAG TR FFR: ey
/ PRy M ] 50" oSO CADEMEZNT 27 |1970-33-30-00% |CUTIERREZ, DAVID ¢ HARGARET]  FFR T ves
FASTER LAt H 1 7“;5 e RELGEATED. 26 | 1329-33-311-00% |CLASGIC HOMES LLC FR HPR IS
R ee RREL ! 4 WETH PROUEET 2o |1330-53-31-607 lCLABBIC HOMES LG TR, MR YIS
I 32 {13T0-33,AN-000 | JACKSIN, SCOTT D 4 CRYSTA HrR FMFR TED
1 L3 1230=-38-DH-00 [BRAHMNAN, KYLE B & KATHERI HIFR, PR TED
il 52 [1320-35-31-F10 |COLAVEGHID, NCBERT 4 LIND TR, HAR vEn PROJECT SUMMARTYT
ri'-. 33 | IA30433-RH-GIl (RUPPEL, ROBERT ¢ HELEN rR MER TES
“,';l' 34" |1320-30-0u-c12 {E € P TRUST HER R TE£5 APN lszo—zq—ooa-oo:
~ i :]‘ % & H HFR, HER, TES APN luo:g;:glog—-g‘la
2l ne | 1330-88-3=tld ILECHMANN, REGINA MR FIFR TEE INE| AT GARDHERVILLE | LLC
3 / 37| ING0-58-AH-018 | AN, RAJAT £ LAURIE PR FIrR vzu 1830 COLLEGE PY #200
\\/" ey ! 5 [1920-85-3-c1s_[SPBNE cormiReL FRoRERTIES | HFR Gy 0 CARSON &ITT, HY 84706
INBUSTHREAL S | ENGINEER: B2 ANDERSON ENGINEERING, INC.
/ IINDEN, NEYADA 89423
{776) To2-7322
e
XBTING BEAIR LINE AND e EXIBTING ZONING: A=18
20 SELCRLIE EAscmenT e i PROPOSED ZONING: SFR-B,000/PD/MFR/PD AND A-lS,
j APN 152653 -001-008 : : EXISTING MASTER PLAN: RECEIVING AREA, AGRICULTURE
PARK :A!,Tr.l:fcr:wm i PROFOSED MASTER Pi-AM RECEVING AREA-PD GVERLAY, AGRICULTURE
~ONG. he i
MADTER PLAN: AGRICULTURAL
FLOOD EONE:
unpevELOrED ! UNSHADED &, SUADED X, AE PER FIRM MAP PANEL 32008C0235G
TOTAL PROPOSED SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS: 592
y EROFSSEP TOTAL PROPOBED MULTI-PAMILT UNITS: 4t
! (MPROVEMNTS TOTAL DENSITY UNITS: £33
R ¢ RREET e, oss snas
LYY APHN 1370-32-501-00! - Ot .|
5 mbmy NEVADA CCRF, ! Xy AVERAGE LOT SITEs 7,628 5,F.
'~ HASTER PLAHI AGRICULTURAL : E HlNIHqu LT SSI?ZE.- ﬁszgzagif
: ; i BT S A AR 5
O = AT Al .
I PO ; ! I PARK AREA: 1.03 ACRED (0.4%)
%5JéNﬁ1:DADéD I’ 1320-32-80t-or%’ hen i oo HE OPEN SPACE: 49,0 ACRES (24,41}
RO AHEER, ALTON APN 133033 =00 -
1AL L NgreEE : oy A i PROFESED ROMNVLDEL poap - pemax LF
1, =n N -
RN Pon BoS. 1. 35700 : T R T i B ST Eogt.em:olﬂzg?zgzmggﬁ_n;f;g* 2008 L
~, *, L . NG 2ETO0 -
~ Y k| |5 _dlt '
pot Iww g s g PROJECT SETBACKS:
I’ F? I‘:;"i.;'i sa'l wlw r 10" FRONT YARD
1 I 20 GARAGE
HAY 18] <
: i) ! o STRELT SIDE TARD
i —}E"r i &' REAR TARD
; i
e ;'F‘ : Pﬂm'%nmgmﬂliﬂ SHOWN ON MAP,
§ | T : 5' ALONG ALL SIDE ¢ REAR LOTLINES
Z i | 78 ALONG ALL FRONT ¢ STREET SIDE LOTLINES
; T e W i anee sowey S ‘
. 2 3 REY R AR pTes i AR e ; WATER:  TOWN OF MINDEN
i £ 2 AcRICULTURAL, %' MASTZR FLAN, ASRICULTURAL : : gm‘nﬁhm}i@& :LD;BUE
2 Rt ) WHBEVELCPED I ¢TE) Joz-ma7e
& N upt H
a mi‘:‘;”i;‘f}g&& "1:1 LIMITS oF : BENER MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
ans : =~ - RECEIVING AREA &2y
§ ho TE rsmam comrarer || '- =T AND THIS PROIECT. ! CUNDEN, NEVADA 89423
H| i e kK ™~ z (75) foz-22d8
g S AP v | GARBHERVIELE T3 wla|ulolelile N I ELECTRIC:T NV ENERGY
3 ® e /ﬁg'rﬂ:c " " ?lsnefé;asfnzrf‘m%aﬁ 2a77%
! S _oade
il PHASE #l
él o | b oHE: Es"i‘g”é'h‘fﬁc.u STREET
] H
) " i GARDNERVILLE, NEVADA 841
g N n (776} T62-0%%%
P
[ — I SOUTHNEST GAS CORP.
4 /szo FUTURE [ GAS: iga1, S48 C
~— EXTENSION OF H CARSON CITY, NEVADA &9702~1im0
z HEYBOURNE ROAD Hi (776) bod-ap7
- K i
PROPOSED r— th
Azt +% PARICING 1 AP fal
1 FUEDAND OPEN o o i1
) Bt DO —
> == — !
y 3 2 e\o|s|els]e|slolololo) .|
i . . @
H \ i j
et e e i Ny L A
S N, 0\\ R >/ " b— | criciEsTES] EsTRTES | |
e > . % - A
~— 2 aPom OO - =
~— \
— N nd N\ A ~
m— s
NG REVISION I3 BY. 4 DRAWN :
S 27716712 |TODIFIED PLAN PER _DO.CO. & T0G COMMENTS ®oR| o : T IE RANCH AT <;ARDN ErRVI LLE PLANNED DEVELOP' IEN I EGINEER Dm?“?::-oaq
TODIFIED PLAN PER DO.CO. % TOM MENTS R3R g ’
3 OT/2IA12 F! con MODI F|C A TION ROA | SEE PLOT STAMP
H oo o 1ee SCALE: SHEET:
o AL 2 2024 o !
al SCALE: I' = 100 i ; e, Mo pve COVER SHEET DAT]E ~ 300 |
] PUGNE: £T7%) T82-0%52 £ FA: (TT5) T02-To84 -
‘,’I SITE Hrirt ROANDEREGM COr OB/21/12 |OF: 6 SHEETS

4~S




J

POHOLITHIC

POUR
orYe.

e

TYMCAL 4" CONCRETE 3IDI

ROLL-TTPE PCC CURD

AND GUTTER {TY*.}

LOCAL STREETS CROSS SECTICN

HT.S.
COMPACTED TO %I MDD

KT.8.

OO ROM,

T6.00' RCH.
51000

ZEROLENE ROAD CROSS SECTION

Ta "L MDD

'L 2, CLASD D AGGREGATE BASE

HEYBOURNE ROAD CROSS SECTION WITH WALL

& TYP
COMP

HETBOURNE ROAD CROSS SECTION WITHOUT WALL

(TC BE GRANTED
AT FINAL DESIGN
BCALE: 1" = 150"

IF NECHaART

HT.B.

o
o
o

PV

>

g
LR

23

e

]

R/H

e

=3

PEDICATION

=
o

b

b

2
£

3

L))

£

Lo

(3

e
=3

¥
§

EASEMENT PER DOGC. NG,
186280 (BEARING
SBV2HANE)
W
B
ot =]
(3

LeT
i

T

BT
£
8

s

i
T

LA

v
=

s,

ROAD_

§
&
57 54|

.f
P! |
=
T

ROAD

=

RBAD ¢

1O

B
i
B

05T 3T

3

LOT &8

T
(OAF 5

ROAD

HA

BUCKETE

'F

RoAD

Er A

T

15

RrEETretsses

A2 ADDITIONAL RN
FGR. FLOGD CONTROL
FURPOSES

£T0 B GRANTED
IF_NECEaDARY

AT FINAL DEBS|IGN)

QOZB-0549
SHEETS

DRAMING:
ROA | S2E PLOT STAMP

_Fn
Q77272012 |OF: ¢

ENGINEER:

DAY

E73(1

SINGLE SPLIT RAIL

[{—4'x4' WESTERN RED CEDAR SPLIT RAL
WESTERN RED CEDAR SLATS
WESTERN RED CEDAR POST

-yl
l— 4t

Esl
PARKINAY FENCING DETAIL

MODIFICATION
SITE PLAN

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 4]

|
|
|

E:

e

THE RANCH AT GARDNERVILLE

. 352.7084

i

L’l"“(@

= 100

1o

SCALE: 1Y

<l

O

ST

R

HMEDIFIED PLAX PER DO.CO. ¢ TOG COMMENTS

NE. | DATE
A |ernena

/i lorrmana [HODIFIED PLAR PER DO,CO, § Tt COMMENTS.

IS W WM Ld 60 DOS/E/S SR aciady



3
SHEETS

DRAPING:
ROA | SEE PLOT STAMP

TAT
Ss27s012 |om 6

ENGIMEER:

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 43
MODIFICATION
SITE PLAN

THE RANCH AT GARDNERVILLE

nig,
<%
0 mw ........ -
¥ M.%
1]

z

1]

u |

o

s

I3

N

HARTIH SLOUGH TRAIL.
CEHCEPTUAL ALIGNMENT
(GON-!\TP;UE?E BY

\ EK‘A
u

- w
5 \w‘
55 9%
\/m_m._\A
mm mm
\ ] ..mm .
..... N Sl |
...... “ele !
2 kK
gi8
B
Hels
RRE |
Srds ”

HMUTLL M UNUAE b PO TORAEEA S SOOI e v,




i 0
gkl <+ @
SEeE o
um Bolg &
I « o] o
R
AR
BERE

R

!
M 3
] 1 i
w — A Al N I B L T L _ o mw N
| § § By BB | RE | WE| §R | BE| | 5% 5 il
: § _ Z
_ T = ~ - _ _ _ i
m =¥ h 4 ‘ EMIN
% By e b P
) = as | os5 | as| as g8 /7 Omv..N
“_ ! 8L | 5% 8% &% | :_I_uTA
: 5% M B% N VA.. m;._
i o s |3 RS,
: g | e w jal [ oL
| 8% | &8 & 55 /v Al =
: o
: um. “ .l 8% Ja ¢ wmow
| S Tl ® WM
! x5 gy 7 !
! 58 ~
_ nW =% . M—
" nm o 8% | &f mM Jmm.m o
| 51| 3 8y
! e X 5 5 M & mm . o
, .,”mm. 3 uw i TR $ mM B 1
S e 5 .
H ] ’ " 2 A L] Wm B L
' & § /=Y iy 8 -
i FOE AT Y, > o | m A >
T LI N 55 w e :
: m i 0 & B m_u\ 5 3 5 ¥ mm._ .,% R
llllllllll R . " 3 & *
- f mm 3 mw.“ B w.rB . mw N E] .m.m & E
|||||||||| I ) ...” .R_ ..n” _Pv F3 23 T £ =3 E.E - 5 Es & m..w as.. N
S LM EEE FERE AR R IS I NG N O @ N A
o R N el S N Bl el el el el B . D - e A o AE
R e - dAi¥a ___lia ___ 3idivis 5 N / g e \q 35 v
= - ik e = JM_ E T N & & 54 s\ 8/, 4 =S 4
b8 il R RN - mw gl 5 - § o S 3 B L)
.‘BL _Si .F“ 3 ﬂ_... o 7
¢ 5 mmﬁz.umwu , +
1 < sl ]
Y ” N mw ol ,..Ma wU ,w_..... a m A
. B 2 mm.WWso_me“ r__yw
: PR LN I
,Jmammw e B ow P ﬂc C
P e [ = N
o U_ £ ﬂw ks "w B ﬂty ___w. / N
B = i 7 b ogs & 2 ! >M/ A
fx Wm. [\ X [ Hw ] m@v 1+ .tw. g o \ PN MW ﬁu..o.. ~ R
= F o Y o5y YO ah & mW__._ \ 5 N ._,MM_/ o =
w g5 | = ,|\l..|hu\|l .mmm. g - @ u.h 'S W..m. A m..m 4 I
! P ,... aks \A‘Q E
— NN umm oS T
epk [N
mmm N +
L] u,
£
B
5 g
P i M.m.n._ WM
LY 1] "
7»/ X & =5 mrm mm %
YR N i
N\ : T
BT N B 2 ”v_b_
/wm x)///_.A mm mmr \ ﬁue\_,u
g % £ o
. 2}
Wmmm &
mm(m ' sl
/ 5
) % Soood
g Z
uh o ;r—# £ _%/.// \ - m
5 4N Vg o -
74 Ny dé —— [
' I~ \A
7R S
\ =
W 7 ..-.I...l.l\u\.\
”H \\ . -mmm
% . ﬁ(% 256
N S B8
P 7 , E(H
X g[8
= [Ny [
= v Sy e
3 hl/“ Tal
N 33
f W 5lg
I 3 Lk
| g[8
_ Elg(s
1 358
0]
S wE g

[y

AT M WS B/ OO LY




1152102 AM Lonathan W, Maxwell

RAINTS_MAP.dug 82472012

\

SCALE: 1" = 200'

A PN, [320-29-000-0/5
PARK CATTLE COMPANT

4PN 1320-29-000-008
RANCH AT GARDNERVILLE
LLC.

NoTE:
IN AREAS WHERE EXISTING ES CONFLICT WITH PROPOSED LOT
BOUNDARIES, CONFLICTING UTILITIES WILL BE RE-LOCATED.
# \\ \ ‘\ / B \
\ 5
NN \ e
P AN : - \
\\ \ \ _/
X \\ \ "/
A.P.N. 1320-33-00/-008 bR o \
PARK CATTLE COrmPANY R P

% ‘ A.P.N. [320-33-00/-0)2
B PARK CATTLE COMTPANT
‘ A
3

(/3 .
/ Sl
0 o % IS
BENTLY PRESSURIZED o aA-'*?f',r--—
BEARING €O. " 5 "_,/46;“;’ hE T
et
{ 1
W, "///////////”i
|/
' :I WETLANDS 3 &
A (UNDIS TURBELS ) N
' ' erreicar,) )
TN
!
!
‘Ejﬁin = r’nﬁ* l
[IZTIT] 40 ADDITIONAL R/W Cad : LR r—py VA
<o e s FLOOD ZONE BOUNDARY COPEN SPACE
CDEDICATED PER FPHASE
s mmm RECEIVING AREA BOUNDARY : NS AL B
EEmmeeT  PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT \ i ﬂoﬁsﬁﬂfkwus 3 # orew seace.
\ ofy 3. : L
AR X -32-60/-007 % WELL SITE . DEDICATED PER \\
—— {8 ——  EXISTING SEWER MAIN ‘Ei' qA ngéﬁi% j?mﬁs{r ?\ & . .") (DEDICATED FER PHASE \ el -""""*‘.F"z:(.fn ONE FINAL 4P
N “ i B\ AGREEMENT f) Wi o PafAVIE/ ;2.’.;#\13.3 /"gg/w s S 320/;33‘-__2/0 oo,
EXISTING WATER MAI ; \ Vv b Qs  AINEN \ = leARDNERVILLE
% T \% \Q Q (}:-’“ I.N rm%g‘gg/g.;{_pf B oy’gg.:‘f,.,:::; -t ; o G
i A ) Wi B ——— = 7 oon FLOOD 2= = B N ]
NG| DATE REVISION BLOCK BY g e v | DRAWN: "
/\ |o7/16/12 | MODIFIED PLAN PER DO.CO. ¢ TOG COMMENTS RSR ' o n 2 435 Ao H 0028-069
e e = THE RANCH AT GARDNERVILLE |PLANNED DEVELOPMENT | (e o¥o) eameen " rommre
naerson
e MODIFICATION - gl st v e
O ccalE 1t mor | e st o s e e R
SCALE: I' = 200' . i
PHONE: (77%) T82-2322 / FAX: (776) 782-7004 s A | MA i
N CONSTRAINTS P PAT 727,12 oF: & suseTs




| o1 [
IS uERIEDj » EHASING SCHEDULE.
I
\ | suB No. OF RECORDED
| | PHASE _ﬂ-!ﬁﬁ LOTS/UNITS BY: REGIONAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT
: G 22T ) 30 RECORD GILMAN AVENUE EXTENSION; MARTIN SLoUGH CORRIDOR (PH. |) DEDICATION; TOWN
g | OF MINDEN WELL SITE; AND, HEYBOURNE ROAD, PH. |
P : I &8s 12/31/18
: HEYBOURNE ROAD (THROUGH PH. Il1A); AND, EMERGENCY ACCESS ROAD (ALONG
_______________ ROAD ! A 2z HETYBOURNE ROAD ALIGNMENT TO ZEROLENE ROAD, THEN WEST ON ZEROLENE TO
i L e = e—— THE WESTERN BOUNDARY OF PHASE IIIC.)
AETE 0 B 8
IoTe &
o [ | = I D 8
) A
é) = = LJ.%EQ?J L & j I E 14 HEYBOURNE ROAD (THROUGH PH. IIE)
2%
: E) s | [ e IT = 12/31/24
) el
Zl o A 38
) 8| I B &
(y | HEYBOURNE ROAD (THROUGH ZEROLENE ROAD); AND ZEROLENE ROAD (FROM
/4 oo c 27 HEYBOURNE ROAD TO U.S. HIGHWAY 2395
I 56 12731727
JAVARFCN 20
= : BUCKEYE ROAD FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS HETYBOURNE ROAD (BUCKETE ROAD SOUTH
o™ &1 | ~z B 39 l |
\ TO 'ROAD F')
Ed 3
consERvaTION q : AT 39 12/31,2a CENTRAL PARK
1)
f‘_ B 107 12/31/33
\ = [ T A 27
Weme : I B 12
‘ 370|371 M C 16
7\
o\ —--— - ~T D 24
3 L G ML E 24
360 <
= : T a9 12/31/35
) ML A 58 HETBOURNE ROAD ('ROAD F' SOUTH TO 'ROAD ™M")
0 M B 41 MULTI-FAMILY SITE
300
~ ~TIT 130 12/31/39
25' PEDESTRIAN = o e 2 &
PATH EASEMENT s / T A 22
/4 & VT B 20
¢ 3
- : SOIL < 21
@ CONSERVATION .
* EASEMENT Voon ML D A0 HETYBOURNE ROAD (ROAD 'S' SOUTH TO ZEROLENE ROAD)
22 E 14
%— - 0D Bt
#\ = T F 13
: N il ) i * RECORDED
() ZEROLENE | ROAD \ NG m * ASSUMES THE PENDING PINENUT CREEK FLOOD STUDY HAS BEEN APPROVED BY FEMA.
@ | o
80 o) 122 183 / s o L) ‘2615551951555(1'5‘ 52|81
™ ““ " L —
- & A C w1 o lele 7 @afwn| | 2]
Uiy "m oz ) i e 74| "J Rl
o A . |
b3 =l [
% il " = N [ 22 [ e a 7] !
3 4
3 Sl < . QR ‘ PARCEL
i [ m 2 “‘_. \ 4% ~ [« J
3 gt oba.ra:aaz /" > % i ’T '
i MAINTENANCE & A o e 8
PEDESTRIAN PATH fI_ \ N ; = 7 !
% { el
g i I < > |
i ,‘:l" o S sille [u]e | n|o] 7]
= P P 4 B OX YOKE COURT |s | \
Ll A & a1 . £
H G 2 TOWN OF MINDEN & - */n ] B : ‘
2 ’ o V4 3 ; = |
8 WELL SITE 7 T s = g :
. - i ENE
5 Bl N I8 S ‘ VICINITY MAP
/Q& y e < e | NO SCALE
5 = 3 ] Z 2 I
% o - - B
Y'\. ‘-”“Jg:"\‘* ‘/ \'\_‘J‘_& 5 [ "} m]: ! |
: 3 ?7;,~ﬁ ‘
% GILMAN 7'</E. o
— i W e
PX. DATE REVISION BLOCK BY DRAWN: \
07/16n12 |MODIFIED PLAN PER DO.CO. ¢ TOG COMMENTS RSR 1 o RSR 0028-069
| 2\ |07/27/12 |MODIFIED PLAN PER DO.CO. & TOM COMMENTS RSR E R O Anderson THE RANCH AT GARDN ERV' L-L-E PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ENGINEER: DRAWING:
e S ERR L MODIFICATION e
G AR - £ i ERALDA AVENVE ¢ POST OFFICE BOX 2229 1" = 300"
i =R =i e B o s PHASING PLAN BATE, é
2 WED SITE, WH. RDANDERSON 20 07/16/2012 |OF: & SHEETS

M~



Gardnerville Town Board m
of .
Gardnerville

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 4 Nevada

1. Not for Possible Action: Presentation from A. J. Frels, Executive Director for
Carson Valley Visitor’s Authority on “The Power of Tourism, Carson Valley’s
New Brand.”

2. Recommended Motion: None
Funds Available: “ Yes L N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date:  September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 20 minutes
5. Agenda: | Consent ¥ Administrative
Background Information: To be presented at meeting
6. Other Agency Review of Action: | Douglas County v N/A

7. Board Action:

L_Approved L_Approved with Modifications
" Denied L_Continued

e e o o e e i e v
Agenda Item # 5



Carson Valley, NV
BrandPrint Report

June 29, 2012
AXED.
ooEP" PE" PEACH, .
av Lg
N E V A D A
North Star Destination Strategies June 29,2012




ABOUT NORTH STAR DESTINATION STRATEGIES

North Star Destination Strategies comprises over two dozen talented individuals dedicated to
growing community brands through integrated marketing solutions. North Star offers
communities a combination of research, strategy, creativity and action. This process — called
Community BrandPrint™ — provides direction for the community's brand development, like a
blueprint guides the construction of a home. And just like a blueprint, the priorities and targets
of each Community BrandPrint™ are stated in clear and unambiguous language. The resulting
brand personality is as revealing as an individual's fingerprint, and just as unique.

ABOUT THE BERANDPRINT PROCESS

Through the Community BrandPrint™ process, North Star determines Carson Valley's most
relevant and distinct promise. From that promise, we create a strategic platform intended to
generate a brand position in the minds of residents, visitors and businesses. We then develop
powerful Brand Action |deas and a Brand Identity Package (creative expressions), all of which
reinforce the positioning and ensure brand equity and growth.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 50f 145

5-3




BRANDING PARTNERS:

The Carson Valley Visitors Authority contracted with North Star Destination Strategies to
determine and define the area’s true, unique and relevant destination brand position to stand
out in the marketplace. The following Executive Summary represents a snapshot of the critical
highlights from the BrandPrint process. Detailed findings are compiled in the BrandPrint report
that follows.

4 UNDERSTANDING (Research findings):

North Star conducted more than a dozen pieces of research to identify what differentiates
Carson Valley from its competitors. By examining the community (stakeholders), consumers
(visitors, regional and state tourism officials and meeting/convention planners) and the
competition, North Star determined a strategy for the destination to assert across all tourism
assets to implement an effective, meaningful and relevant brand.

Important findings are summarized below.

RESEARCH THEMES
* Natural beauty
o “Scenic/beautiful” was best-matching description from the CAP Study
o “The viewscapes and open space can be breathtaking.” — Vision Survey response
* Authentic nature
o “Historic significance of the area” was the highest-rated experience from the
CAP Study
o “They have a truly authentic ambiance with local small cafes and the Genoa bar. |
would key in on that authenticity.” — Perception Study interviewee
* Outdoor adventure
o The many activities available to visitors, from golfing and hiking to camping and
horseback riding, were seen as major assets by both stakeholders and outsiders
o CAP Study respondents cited “outdoor activities” as Carson Valley’s best
description
o “Diversity in outdoor activities and centralized location™; “All the outdoor activities that
can be done in the mountains and in the valfey” — Vision Survey responses
*  Western heritage
o The cowboy, ranching and early settler heritage is seen as a strong differentiator
and opportunity. The importance of the area’s heritage came through strongly in
the Vision Survey
o “The heritage has a strong west feel. People are still in love with the idea of wild west
and the romance of horseback riding and gun slinging. Those things should have some
place in the Carson Valley.” — Perception Study interviewee
o Research also showed that, while important, western heritage might not be able
to stand on its own for a brand, mainly because the importance of ranching for
the region has been waning in recent years.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 6 of 145

S -4




* Openness

o

(@]

Q

“Open” is seen as the area’s most distinguishable asset and also what
differentiates Carson Valley most from Lake Tahoe

“They’re different from everything else because it’s a valley — lots of open space with
natural beauty.” — Perception Study interviewee

The openness was also seen as a challenge ~ “The area is too spread out. in terms
of both geography and interests. We are spread thin.” — In Market interviewee

*  Unprocessed
o The highest-rated physical asset from the CAP Study was “Appeal of the area’s

o]

raw hature” — receiving a score of 8.2 out of 10

“We're not a staged version of the west. We are a real, natural and maybe a bit
unrefined, kind of destination. But that’s what makes us different.” — In Market
interviewee

The raw nature of the area was also seen as somewhat of a challenge.

Many stakeholders and outsiders commented that the area’s lack of polish in
terms of ready-to-market assets and organization of those assets holds the
destination back.

* Location and geography

o

o]

O

Carson Valley's proximity to Lake Tahoe was seen as both an assetand a
challenge. Carson Valley can piggyback on Lake Tahoe's prestige and high levels
of awareness. However, Carson Valley will needs to work hard to differentiate
itself from the very established Lake Tahoe brand, while still aligning enough with
it to lure Lake Tahoe visitors

Topaz Lake is seen as disconnected from the rest of the Carson Valley region
Carson Valley is very large, and thus it is sometimes difficult to get all
communities and areas on the same page politically

Packaging Carson Valley assets with assets of surrounding areas was seen as a
major opportunity for the destination due to its location and diversity of activity.

*  Awareness

o]

o

Perception problems persist with outsiders either thinking of Carson Valley as
being “backwoods”, or not thinking of Carson Valley at all.

Lack of awareness in the marketplace creates an opportunity for Carson Valley
to reintroduce itself to the world with the voice it wants to have.

Research revealed that Carson Valley is a destination of great diversity of activity, expansive
geography and an enviable location. When pulled all together, these assets fall right in line with
one of the biggest opportunities mentioned throughout research — the idea of packaging assets
both inside and outside of Carson Valley for greater impact. Upon further examination of the
research, North Star discovered that Carson Valley's personality would strongly aid in a
packaging approach to marketing the region. The culture is described in research as friendly,
open, laid-back, raw, natural, a little rough, adventurous and rugged.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 7 of 145

5~5




Carson Valley is like a friendly guide to all of the raw, wide-open adventure within it and
around it. It is like the tourism outfitter for an even larger region — and has the potential to
outfit visitors with itineraries, packages, deals, information, and of course, a great few nights’
stay. It can match up specific visitor types with just the right activity from the wealth of choices
available, as well as authentic Basque cuisine, gaming fun, historic encounters and more.

Carson Valley is a better-suited base to a larger region because of its rugged persona, giving it
credibility to be the most knowledgeable about the true, raw, unprocessed grandeur of Nevada
and into the Lake Tahoe area.

< STRATEGIC BRAND PLATFORM:

North Star funnels these strategic insights for the brand into a single sentence, the brand
platform. The brand platform is used as z filter for the formation of creative concepts and
implementation initiatives. All communications, actions and product development should

connect to the essence of this relevant and defining statement,

Target Audience: For those who desire to explore

Frame of Reference / the Carson Valley, nestled between the mountain
ranges in the Reno-Tahoe area

Point-of-Difference: is the region’s outfitter for authentic Nevada
adventure
Benefit: offering you unprocessed, unparalleled options (in

any direction).

<t IMAGINATION (Creative |deas for Building the Brand):

The brand platform serves as a guide for the positioning of the brand. From this statement, a
creative concept is born; a concept that aligns creative treatments of the brand in a variety of
communication mediums and action ideas.

The creative concept developed by North Star is based on the approved brand platform
positioning Carson Valley as tourism outfitter for a larger region — and a guide to all authentic
Nevada adventure. The concept draws inspiration from Carson Valley’s very reachable location,
which allows visitors to reach for whatever Nevada adventure they may be seeking. it plays off
of the proximity to Reno and Lake Tahoe, while simultaneously setting Carson Valley apart.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 8 of 145

56




Visuals reflect many of the words discovered during the research process such as raw,
unprocessed, natural, and history. Textural elements accompany many executions to convey
the historic, rugged culture of the destination. The photographic style is evocative of an
advertising campaign a recreational outfitter might run — sweeping mountain vistas, beauty shots
of green valleys, and people enjoying their experiences with just the right gear. To further the
outfitter thought, many recommendations include a focus on matching visitors with that
appropriate piece of gear — whether they be golf balls, a saddle, or directions to a great

Basque dinner.

The rustic colors of the brand palette evoke the scenery of Carson Valley — the blue of the
open sky, the green of the valley floor in spring, and the brown of the mountain sides in the
summer. The logo directly references Carson Valley’s superior openness through use of an
eagle icon. The eagle’s outstretched wings are a reference to the activity available in any
direction. At the same time, the bold typeface used on the logo helps to ground the mark, and
sets a solid, rugged tone, which the destination most assuredly delivers.

SAMPLE CREATIVE DELIVERABLES

[T IR T

OUTFIT YOUR ADVENTURE,
TODAY'S GEAR i8]

L 1 1

MOMIT VNI CUO( | ACIARED | MAAIC NOWRTION | comtig

CROTES

MUGGED. RELAXED,

"
f BRI

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 9 of 145




WHERE THE BRAND HAS BEEN AND WHY

This stage addresses the community’s current brand positioning. We assess the environment;
demographics and psychographics of residents; perceptions of visitors, residents and
stakeholders; current communications and the competition. Most importantly, we gather input
from Carson Valley and its constituents.

We are looking for current attitudes regarding the brand. We are also trying to spot behavioral
trends that exist around that brand. This stage is critical because it uncovers the relationship
between three factors: the community’s physical qualities, communication materials and the
position the community holds in the minds of its consumers.

Carson Valley
BrandPrint Positioning

Vision of Community l. Competitive Opportunity

Perception of Consumers &
Influencers

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 10 of 145

S~§




IN-MARKET STUDY
Purpose

The purpose of the In-Market Study is to gain understanding of the perceptions and attitudes of
Carson Valley residents and stakeholders towards their community and to experience first-
hand what makes it a unique destination for visitors, residents and businesses.

Methodology & Results

The following summary reflects observations and input received during the North Star
Destination Strategies In-Market visit from September 26 — 30, 201 |. The information is not
meant to be all-inclusive, but rather highlight the most common themes experienced on

the trip. This includes an area FAM tour, stakeholder focus groups, stakeholder one-on-one
interviews and local community one-on-one perception interviews.

MATERIALS REVIEWED:
As part of the Research & Materials Audit, prior to the In-Market Study

Electronic Sources C,/i_"fg;()z.‘.f.?{/

*  North Carolina Core Market Survey (201 1) S CsonValley

e CCBoard (2011-2012) iy

e Genoa Workplan

* Annual Report (2009, 2010)

e Gardnerville, Nevada Main Street Program Strategic Plan
(2011-2012)

* Tremendous Trails Action Plan for CYVCCVA

General Tourism

* Mormon Station State Historic Park brochure
* Lahontan National Fish Hatchery brochure

* Soaring NV Skyride information card

* Topaz Lodge brochure

* Northern Nevada Museum Guide brochure

* The Divine Nine golf courses brochure

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies Il of 145

S -9




* Fearn’s 101 Fun Things to do at Lake Tahoe map and guide
* Travel Nevada book
* WA SHE SHU: The Washoe People Past and Present report

Genoa

¢ Genoa Historic Ghost Tours brochure

¢ The Genoa Bar info brochure

¢ Genoa brochure

* 2nd Annual Genoa Cowboy Poetry and Music Festival (May
2011)

Minden

¢  Minden Facilities brochure

* Minden-Tahoe Airport brochure
¢ Minden brochure

Douglas County
* Douglas County Historical Society Brochure
* Douglas County Economic Vitality Vital Progress pamphlet

Carson Valley

e Carson Valley Trails Association brochure and trails guide
* Carson Valley Inn Casino check-in envelope

* Carson Valley Arts Council materials .
* Carson Valley Walking/Driving Tour Map brochure >
* Magical Carson Valley visitors guide book

* The Carson Valley Visitors Authority customized report

Gardnerville
¢ Gardnerville brochure
* Main Street Gardnerville folder package.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 12 of 145

R T




IN-MARKET INTERVIEWS

Most-Mentioned Assets:

Primary Assets
* Genoa — oldest settlement, Genoa Bar
* Devine Nine
* Soaring
* Open Space — differentiates from Tahoe
* Fishing on Lake Topaz
* Proximity to Lake Tahoe

Secondary Assets

e Casinos

* Basque heritage, food

*  Walley’s Hot Springs

* Events

* Natural beauty, views

* Douglas County Fairgrounds

e Trails — current and proposed

¢ Outdoor recreation — especially cycling
* Seasons

* Antiques

¢ Tahoe Ridge Winery

* Downtown Minden

* Growth of Carson Valley Inn — good promotion partner,
signature property

*  Western outpost history (early settlements, ranching
heritage, Pony Express), museums

*  Gateway/hub location for Northern NV and Tahoe

* Relaxed atmosphere, unpretentious (Compared to Tahoe).

Most-Mentioned Challenges:
* Lake Tahoe — but can get daytrippers from there
* Unwalkable corridor - 395
¢ Outdoor recreation that there is, isn’t well organized or promoted
* Assets are scattered throughout region
e Topaz Lake is completely disconnected
* Genoa is only ready-to-market tourism experience
* Infighting/political discord between communities
* Ranching importance is waning — “can’t hang your hat on it”
* General lack of awareness
* Perception as being backwoods and/or poor (compared to Tahoe)
* How to differentiate from other small western towns
¢ Lacking enough activities for extended stays, lacking restaurants
* lack an event venue like a theater.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies

I3 of 145

S~




Most-Mentioned Opportunities:

* Main Street Gardnerville

* Make downtowns more pedestrian-friendly.
More ped-friendly areas in general.

* Events — Cowboy Poetry seen as having a lot of
potential. Other towns could develop
signature events

* Small groups market — golf, reunions, weddings

* Outdoor recreation on multi-use trails

* Better interpretation of area history in
attractions/assets

*  “Develop a signature attraction and a 4-5 star property”

¢ Connecting the communities more — especially Topaz
Lake area

* Currently not much interaction with the rivers —
opportunity in the future

* Marketing in general.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies

14 of 145

5-1an




STAKEHOLDER VISION SURVEY
Purpose

Part of the Understanding stage includes collecting stakeholder perceptions of Carson Valley.
What do stakeholders like and dislike about their community? How would they make it better?
What kind of things do they associate with Carson Valley? After all, no one knows your city
better than those that form its backbone.

Methodology & Results

To understand stakeholder perceptions, a Vision Survey was emailed to key stakeholders in the
region, identified by the brand drivers. All questions were open-ended, allowing for a qualitative
measure of stakeholder perceptions. Many of the questions in the survey focused on Carson
Valley’s direct strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. Other questions focused on
brand perception, allowing the respondent to translate the intangible elements of a brand into a
tangible noun.

65 stakeholders responded to the survey. The answers most reflective of all stakeholders are
shown below. Please see Appendix A for a copy of the Stakeholder Vision Survey.

1. Describe the Carson Valley area as o whole to someone who has never heard of the
area before.

2. H you could only use three words to describe Carson Valley, which three words come to
mind?

|

3. What is the first adjective phrase that comes to mind when you think of the following
communities areas?
Cwmenia |

Canca |

wnges I

Tresx caarrrs |

4. For the destination as & whole, what is Carson Valley's single grentest tourism asset?

§. What is the single g halleng facing Carson Valley in terms of tourism?
Please explamn.
6. What are the biggest opp for tounism develop and for Carson

Valley?
|
=

7. List J places within Carsen Valley where you would take a visitor so they would always
remember their visit (L.e. an attraction, restaurant, or place te s¢¢ something memorablel

B. How wiould sutsiders elsewhere in Nevada er in Calitomin describe Carson Valley?

Carson Valley Vision Survey

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies I5 of 145

S -3




DESCRIBE CARSON VALLEY:
Describe the Carson Valley area as a whole to someone who has never heard of the area
before.
*  Beautiful
o “A beautiful valley with snow peaked mountains that flow into a agriculturally diverse
area that is rich in history and a gateway to the great outdoors...”
*  OQOutdoorsy
o “A friendly and historic community with dramatic scenery and almost overwhelming
opportunities for outdoor recreation,”
*  Near Lake Tahoe
o “An off the beaten path destination with Lake Tahoe in the backyard offering diversity
in people, places to visit and things to do.”
= Good people.

If you could only use three words to describe Carson Valley, which three words come to
mind?

*  Beautiful
»  Qutdoors
* Historic.

List three places within Carson Valley where you would take a visitor so they would
always remember their visit.

* Genoa (overwhelming answer) / Genoa Bar

* Basque Restaurant

* lLake Tahoe.

How would outsiders elsewhere in Nevada or California describe
Carson Valley?
*  Beautiful
*  Don’t know/nothing there
o “They don't know anything about it or it is difficuit to get to.”
*  Small.

If you could change the name of the area currently known as Carson Valley to best
communicate its offerings, what would you name it? Why?
«  “The first thing that came to mind is Emerald City because the valley is a green jewel.
Others are Big Blue Sky, Heaven, Hometown, River Runs Through It.”
»  “Carson River Valley.”
+  “Mountain View. But, I've heard that's actually been tried before.”
»  “Sierra Foothills perhaps.”
«  “The Valley.”
» “East Tahoe Basin.”
+  “Carson City has no draw. The word Carson is unfortunately in it and is associated.
Douglas County may be a better brand, and if Minden, Genoa, and Gardnerville would all get
along we could brand the macro area rather than the micro.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 16 of 145

S-1Y




In your opinion, what is the most interesting and/or compelling story in Carson Valley’s
history?

* Earlyffirst settlers

= Genoa

* Snowshoe Thompson.

What is the greatest hidden tourism gem or most under-appreciated/unrecognized trait,
characteristic, or resource in Carson Valley?

»  Trails

* (Genoa

« Camping/wild lands.

* Dangberg Ranch.

You have been instructed to take ONE picture of something within Carson Valley that
best represents the area as a whole. What would you take the picture of and why?
= Job'’s Peak...
o “is beautiful and you can see if from the whole valley.”
“Represents the beauty, and the adventures that could be taken in the area.”
“is the landmark.”
“with a snow capped sunset. It is simply breathtaking”
“allows you to instantly identify the valley.”

000

CARSON VALLEY COMMUNITIES:
What is the first adjective that comes to mind when you think of the following
communities/areas?

Gardnerville: small, basque, home

Minden: quaint, downtown, historic

Topaz Lake area: recreation, fishing, lake

Genoa: historic, quaint, stick to themselves.

COMPETITOR COMMUNITIES:
What is the first adjective that comes to mind when you think of the following
communities/areas?

Carson City: capital, historic, unattractive

South Shore —Tahoe: beautiful, casinosfgambling, lake
Reno: bigger city, casinos/gambling, entertainment
Gold Country California: historic, wine, pretty
Central Yalley California: farming, hot, wine.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 17 of 145

S-S




In your opinion, what other areas/communities compete with Carson Valley
for visitors?

* Lake Tahoe + Sierra Foothills
* Reno + Bayarea

*  Virginia City * Nevada City

+ Fallon * Grass Valley.

What is different or advantageous about Carson Valley's outdoor recreation
offerings in the context of its competition (Lake Tahoe, RenolSparks, etc.)?
* Less crowded
o “Less traffic, easier winter driving (most of the time), less congestion, cleaner
views, more remote.”
* Location in Nevada
» Hiking trails.

DIFFERENTIATING CARSON VALLEY:
What makes Carson Valley distinctively different from the above communities and areas?
*  “Beauty and close to all near by communities. We could be a gate-way to all.”
«  “Central location close enough to visit but away from the crowds”
*  “ltis naturally beautiful, largely unspoiled by ‘commercialism,’ and has access to most of
the competing communities.”
«  “More home town, less commercial, more ‘real’ including the people.”
« “More historic, ranching, and cultural heritage such as the Basque.”
*  “We have charm and there are less people here, for better or worse. Reno and South
Lake feel more congested. Gold Country is similar too, but way more spread out.
The Central Valley is not a destination for anyone.”

ASSETS AND CHALLENGES:
For the destination as a whole, what is Carson Valley’s single greatest
tourism asset?
*  Qutdoors
+  Beauty
+  History
+ Lake Tahoe.
What is the single greatest challenge currently facing Carson Valley in terms of tourism?
Please explain.
*  Marketing/advertising
o “Getting the word out that there is "something for everybody" - hiking, bicycling, fishing,
museums, history, gambling, restaurants, shopping . . and getting them to think of the
CV as a ‘destination’ not just passing through.”
* A signature attraction
*+  Communities working together.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies I8 of 145

S




OPPORTUNITIES:
What are the biggest opportunities for tourism development and promotion for Carson
Valley?
» Educating people about the area
* OQOutdoor recreation
o “Outdoor activities, Minden airport fly ins and soaring, expand RV and camping
facilities, access and convenience to Lake Tahoe,”
» History.
o “We have a lot of history, need to capitalize on that more and not just in Genoa.”
o “Qur ranching heritage is a big opportunity. There could be a lot more done with our
ranching and agricultural roots. That makes us stand out from Tahoe, too.”

ATTRACTING VISITORS:
Describe the different types of visitors who come to Carson Valley.
*  Qutdoorsy
» Passing through to other destinations
*  Qolfers
* Retirees.

What types of visitors should Carson Valley be targeting?
*  Outdoorsy
*  Younger generations
*  Older generations.
o “I'would love to see a bit of a younger age demographic, but | don't think that will
happen. So | would stick to the almost retired visitor.”

If you could add one thing to Carson Valley to grow tourism development, what would
you add?
+ Event Venue
o “An events center that could handle a few thousand - indoors or out.”
o “A center to house the visual and performing arts.
» Emphasize History.
o “A significant western-themed historic feeling attraction of some sort.”
o “An old west heritage experience/attraction. Wagon rides, river float, trails, campfire
performances.”

OTHER PERCEPTIONS:
What role should Carson Yalley’s ranching and agricultural heritage play in terms of a
tourism identity?

= “Alarge part - you should never lose sight of your history and what got this valley to the point it
is at today. Agriculture should always be part of its sustained future.”

«  “Critically important, it @ major component of the rural character and charm - when you come
here you want to relax on the front porch of a ranch house or sit in front of an old barn and
watch the world go by. You are supposed to be more relaxed and comfortable.”

= “This is an important component in differentiating the Carson Valley from competing
destinations.”

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 19 of 145

S-17




*  “It should be noted, but they're not going to draw tourists directly. Events and activities planned
around that - yes.”

* “It's important to be preserved, but it can not open wallets and help with income.
Driving through our county and seeing cows does nothing as the land somewhere else. We
don't need to abolish that, there's just no angle to sell that or make it sexylinviting.”

How important is Carson Valley’s proximity to Lake Tahoe for its tourism identity
currently? What role should that proximity have?

*  “Everything. We are a watershed for them and need to proudly tie on to that in any and all
ways possible. Tahoe's Backyard, Tahoe's playground, The Tahoe Starting Point,

Bargain Tahoe."

*  “We don't leverage it enough, We can offer a Tahae trip without crowded roads, high prices,
and crowds.”

»  “Critically important. We are Tahoe's backyard where as Reno is Tahoe's front yard {more
traffic, more busy).”

*  “Tthink most people describe Carson Valley as ‘being near Lake Tahoe.” So that proximity has
played an important role in our tourism identity., The challenge is to determine if the goal of
our tourism identity is to get people to spend the majority of their visit in the Carson Valley or if
we are content on being the bedroom and hub for excursions beyond the Carson Valley."

Does the destination’s name, “Carson Valley,” have a well-know, positive tourism
reputation?
*+  Yes, because..,
o “Encompasses our whole area.”
o “Many people have discovered Carson Valley in the last 25 years and have spoken
positively about our area throughout the west.”
o “This incorporates a large area comprised of smaller communities. And it is a valley...”
o “What better describes our dramatic mountains?”
* No, because...
“Sounds like we are part of Carson City.”
“It is a group of small towns. Does not always feel cohesive”
“Not well known enough. Almost a secret.”
“It has not found its true identity yet.”

O 0 00

Note: Both answers received the exact same number of responses.

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 20 of 145

55




CREATIVE PROJECTION QUESTIONS FOR CARSON VALLEY:
If Carson Valley were a famous person, who would it be? Why?
* |John Wayne
o “Diversity in character and old west charm.”
o “Tough, rugged, kind, country & classy.”
* Kit Carson
o “The pioneer of the valley.”
*  Norman Rockwell.
o “Our small town atmosphere reminds people of their past and days gone by.”
o “That folksy attitude.”

If you were to depict Carson Valley as a person, what would this person

be like?

The following response is representative of the responses received.

= “This person would be in his or her mid-40s because that reflects a connection with the past

and the future. He or she would be married and have children because family life is important
here. This person works in or owns a small business and participates voluntarily in the arts
because he/she believes in a well-rounded lifestyle. Helshe dresses casually, even when
attending more formal events since this area still has the “feel" of the old West. The person is
easy-going, but has strong traditional beliefs. This person, like most Americans, is concerned
about providing for histher family, especially in the current economy. This person has two
automobiles, at least one is an SUV because of the rugged terrain and the unpredictable
weather. Neither vehicle is new.”

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 21 of 145

S5-19




OVERNIGHT VISITOR ORIGIN STUDY
Purpose

An Overnight Visitor Origin Study was conducted to understand the markets from which
Carson Valley’s overnight visitors originate.

Methodology & Results

We collected over 47,000 overnight visitation records from the Carson Valley Inn and the
Holiday Inn Express and Suites. A random sample of 5,000 records was selected. Each record
was geocoded (assigned) to a Core Based Statistical Area (CBSA) — the geographic area used to
define advertised markets. The following information should be considered when selecting
markets for brand communications. Additional variables like cost of advertising and distance
from Carson Valley should also be taken into account.

The complete set of results and associated reports for the Overnight Visitor Origin Study can
be found on the Final BrandPrint CD.

Please see Appendix B for a larger version of the origin map and a Customer Geographic
Summary, detailing the top 20 states, zip codes, counties and CBSAs for inquiries.

TOP FIVE OVERNIGHT VISITOR STATES OF ORIGIN:
The largest majority of inquirers originated from California.

. California 62.7%
2. Nevada 12.5%
3. Washington 3.0%
4. Oregon 2.9%
5. Arizona 2.1%

TOP 10 OVERNIGHT VISITOR CBSAs OF ORIGIN:
The highest ranking CBSA of origin is San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont, CA.

I. San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont, CA 9.9%
2. Sacramento-Arden-Arcade-Roseville, CA 9.1%
3. Los Angeles-Long Beach-Santa Ana, CA 8.0%
4. Reno-Sparks, NV 4.5%
5. San Jose-Sunnyvale-Santa Carla, CA 4.0%
6. Riverside-San Bernardino, CA 3.9%
7. Stockton, CA 3.1%
8. Gardnerville Ranchos, NV 2.7%
9. Las Vegas-Paradise, NV 2.3%
10. Modesto, CA 2.1%
Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies 22 of 145

S~A0




OVERNIGHT VISITOR ORIGIN DOT-DENSITY MAP:

Legend
~N ®  Carson Valley

Source: Northstar Ideas

Carson Valley BrandPrint | North Star Destination Strategies

23 of 145

5-2\




Gardnerville Town Board /l:\?\/\
Gardneyville

AGENDA ACTION SHEET "“'gg— Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion on Planned Development Modification (PD) 09-
001-1, for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd., requesting a modification to the
Planned development boundary, incorporating areas of the approved 2011
development plan, and a request to amend areas of the A-19 zoning to General
Commercial, within the A-19 (Agriculture 19 acre minimum parcel size) and GC
(General Commercial) zoning districts. The subject property is part of the
Virginia Ranch Specific Plan and is located north of Charlotte Way and east of
US Hwy 395 in the Minden-Gardnerville and East Valley Community Plans,
APNs:  1220-10-501-006,  122010-110-007,1220-10-101-002,1220-03-000-039,
1220-10-501-008 and 1220-10-510-009, with public comment prior to board
action.

2. Recommended Motion: Staff recommends to the Gardnerville Town Board to
approve the modification to the planned development boundary (PD) 09-001-1, for
Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, based on the findings and conclusions in the staff
report. Please mention any additional conditions identified during the discussion of
the item.

Funds Available: L Yes ¥ N/A

3. Department: Administration

Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 20 minutes
5. Agenda: ' Consent ¥ Administrative

Background Information: This application is before the Board this month as a
formality. The existing planned development boundary does not match the
proposed planned development map. The applicant will receive an additional
2.22 acres of commercial zoning, reducing the receiving area on the remaining
parcel. The PD Boundary will now match the approved tentative map approved
by this Board at the June, 2012 meeting. This area also will include portions of
the Jewel Commercial Park Phase II, adjacent to Highway 395 and Charlotte
Way. See the attached staff report for more information.

6. Other Agency Review of Action: ¥ Douglas County [ N/A

7. Board Action:

__Approved L_Approved with Modifications

" Denied L Continued

m
Agenda Item # 6




m Paul Lindsay, Chairman
ow n

Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Ga dneer]].e Mike Philips, Board Member

st 1Ny Linda Slater, Board Member

C\ ‘1 Lloyd Higuera, Board Member
MEMORANDUM
Date: August 27, 2012
To; Gardnerville Town Board
From: Tom Dallaire, P.E., Town of Gardnerville
Subject: PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification); for Sierra Nevada SW

Enterprises, Located in the Town of Gardnerville, north of Charlotte Way and east
of US Hwy 395; APNs: 1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-101-002, 1220-03-000-039,
1220-10-501-007 and 1220-10-510-007

I. TITLE:

For Possible Action. Discussion on Planned Development Modification (PD) 09-001-1, for
Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd., requesting to modify the approved planned development
boundary, incorporating the areas as shown on the 2011 development plan and request to amend
areas of the A-19 zoning to General Commercial (GC) zoning districts. The subject property is a
part of the Virginia Ranch Planned Development and Specific Plan. It is located north of
Charlotte Way and east of US Hwy 395 in the Minden-Gardnerville and East Valley Community
Plans (APNs: 1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-101-002, 1220-03-000-039, 1220-10-501-007 and
1220-10-510-007).

II. RECOMMENDATION

Recommend to the Gardnerville Town Board a conditional approval of the planned
development overlay (PD) 09-001-1, for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, based on the

findings and conclusions in the staff report and subject to the following recommended
conditions:

The following is Staff’s recommended approval with the following conditions, prior to the Final
Map Submittal of the Land Division Application:

1. The applicant shall continue to resolve the Grant Ave. entrance issue at Barry Jones property
prior to approval of the Phase 1 Final Map for this development.

2. The previous comments and conditions from the Town of Gardnerville regarding LDA 12-
004 Virginia Ranch Commercial Subdivision Map are applicable to this Planned
Development Modification.

If you have any questions or comments or require additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact me at (775) 782-7134.



Notes:

PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)

September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
Page 2 of 8

Wal-Mart is waiting on a resolution of the private drive to Barry’s property in order to
proceed with the offsite improvements. This is holding up the construction now as the
contractor was told not to touch anything adjacent to the Jones’s property. The pond
design is extremely conservative and pond is technically much larger than what is
required due to the 5 Minute time of Concentration and 100 year pond volume that was
used.

Discuss adjacent property and conversations with Mr. George Keele who represents the
adjacent property owner, Barry Jones.

NOTE’s from Board Meeting:



Page 3 of 8

 S6f  AYMHOIH 'S'n

] \
[
\

001-1 (Planned Development modification)

PD 09-

September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting

Figure 1.0 Virginia Ranch Development Plan

(3unLnd)

AVMNHYd

== in i
500001 A laAl)  sspamg : _
VZVid !
8. VIuy _ T TR TT T T |
aNIgIINg ’ :
i i i
& 7 4
=] f g
B P, 9 / v JAlHA
45 00801 154076 45 POLEL J1VAIHd
..... S
o @
g
= - =
SO = &
2 R ==
S o L PP il A 2 “_.n nnnnnnnnn ..\. o
S I o A e B~
> i K EELEL .cnﬁ,.f.
= . e 1 = b,
| = w2 Y D
, = ' B
; = = P '
= E
985 J4OLS @2 - i}
e — | Fndi hifl
| = gt
{ I HS0ELL VIVl 1590551 E BTN
i
=




PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)
September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
Page 4 of §

IV. DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION

Master Plan and Zoning Consistency: The majority of the project site 1s designated in the
Master Plan as Receiving Area and a portion of the site is Commercial use. The remainder of the
167.77 acre parcel is designated as Receiving Area. The remainder portion is part of the Virginia
Ranch Specific Plan and is primarily planned for residential uses.

The majority of the zoning is GC (General Commercial), with a portion of the proposed lot 1
being A-19 Agricultural. The applicant is requesting to change this zoning designation within
the Phase 2 prior to the Final Map recording, as required in the staff report for the LDA 12-004.
The Original planned development only included 22.84 acres of A-19 zoned property within the
master planned receiving area. The proposal now is to include all the property associated with
the commercial area as proposed and approved by the town board at the April 2009 meeting:
Existing Commercial zoned and master planned property for the proposed and approved project
consisted of 24.84 acres. The proposed overlay district now contains 40.15 acres, producing
15.31 acre increase over the previously approved overlay district.
The 15.31 acres includes;
e 222 acres of new A-19 zoned property to be re zoned to commercial.
¢ An area for the Muller Parkway right of way dedication (also currently A-19 zone)
An area was not determined or provided in the provided paperwork.
¢ The remaming of the PD boundary will encompass the existing commercial areas and
Grant Avenue which includes the remaining portions of the previously zoned commercial
property of APN: 1220-10-510-002, and 1220-10-11-007 and 1220-10-501-006. These
three properties are not part of the specific

Area 1 & 2 of the attached plan, not including the right of way of the future Muller Parkway is
2.22 acres, including the small sliver of the Wal-Mart parcel. The remaining of the side, beside
the area for the road dedication is already within the existing commercial zone.



PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)
September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
Page50of 8

2004 Specific Plan: The specific plan, dated September 14, 2004, page I-1 indicates a
commercial area as planning area or Phase 6 to include approximately 22 acres within the
specific plan. This plan does not include the portions of Jewel commercial park Phase II as
indicated on the attached plan, highlighted in green. The area, I assume, does not include the
right-of~way for Grant Drive or Muller Parkway. Muller Parkway was the cutoff line for the
commercial area and is proposed that way on the plan. The plan also does not include the
parcels that were already zoned commercial property. This will tie all the commercial
development in this plan together, creating unity in the construction and architecture used and
will be based off the current Gardnerville structures architectural elements. Per the settlement
agreement up to 100 acres of commercial can be zoned commercial when this project is
completed.

Summary of 2009 Virginia Ranch Specific plan Settlement Agreement (Case 06-CV-(149):

1. Allowed Curb Gutter and Sidewalk on Virginia ranch road foe the future RV park site
{(Located across from Gardnerville Water Company Property)

2. 2 years from the agreement to record a Tentative Map for phase 1.

3. Waving the Code section 20.676.100 (a) (2) - 30% of the commercial site shall be open
space.

4. The ordinances, resolutions or regulations applicable to the Virginia ranch specific plan
land shall be those in effect at the time the Board of County Commissioners approved the
plan.

Not pertinent to the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan
Not pertinent to the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan

7. Douglas County shall allow Muller Parkway to be constructed as needed in phases with
development contemplated by the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan and based on traffic
analysis consistent with section2.14 at the time of the specific plan was approved and
applying AASHTO standards that are in effect at the time the plan was approved. Each
section of Muller Parkway shall be constructed in accordance with the design criteria and
improvement standards adopted and in effect at the time the Plan was approved.

8. The Virginia ranch specific plan may include up to 100 acres of commercially zoned
property, in any combination of general commercial, office commercial, neighborhood
commercial, mixed use commercial or tourist commercial as set forth in the DC Code
section 20.650.010 (C) (2-6). 1,020 dwelling units (including additional multi-family
units as needed) shall be permitted on land Subject to the Virginia Ranch specific plan.

9. Added 10 years to allow the SNSW fulfill its obligations.

10. Ord 2009-1279 was created to allow large assisted living facilities.

11. The Virginia Ranch specific plan is valid for thirty (30) years approval of the plan.

12. Stock pile material on Virgina Ranch is permitted to remain in place 5 yrs from approval
and an additional 5 years if construction begins on the portion of Muller parkway
obligated by SNSW.

=

6 G



PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)
September 4, 2012 Fown Board Meeting
Page 6 of §

V. PLANNED DEVELOPEMNT FINDINGS

Pursuant to County Code, Section 20.708.030, the following findings must be made for approval
of a Tentative Subdivision Map 20.676.040:

1.The plan is consistent with the statement of objectives of a planned development contained in
the master plan and in this chapter

2.The extent that the plan departs from zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise applicable
to the property, including but not limited to density, bulk and use, are deemed to be in the
public interest.

3.The ratio of residential to non-residential use in the planned development is consistent with the
master plan.

4.The purpose, location and amount of the common open space in the planned development, the
rchiability of the proposals for maintenance and conservation of the common open spaces are
adequate as related to the proposed density and type of residential development.

5.The physical design of the plan and the manner in which the design of the planned
development makes provisions for adequate public facilities, as required by this code.

6.The proposed development is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of
adjacent development and neighborhoods.

7. Any development-related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual nuisances, or
other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and neighborhoods, are mitigated by
improvements or modifications either on-site or within the public right-of-way.

8.Where a development plan proposes development over a period of years, the sufficiency of the
terms and conditions intended to protect the interests of the public, residents and owners of
the planned development and the integrity of the plan and, where the plan provides for
phases, the period in which the application for each phase must be filed.

9. That each individual unit or phase of the development, if built in stages, as well as the total
development, can exist independently and be capable of creating a good environment in the
locality and be as desirable and stable in any phase as in the total development.

10. The uses proposed will not be a detriment to the present and proposed surrounding land uses,
but will enhance the desirability of the area and have a beneficial effect.

11. Any deviation from the standard ordinance requirements is warranted by the design and
additional amenities incorporated in the development plan which offers certain unusual
redeeming features to compensate for any deviations that may be permitted.

12. The planned development will not result in material prejudice or diminution in value of
surrounding properties, and will not endanger the health, safety and welfare of the
community,

13. The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development meets the requirements of the
Nevada Revised Statutes and this code.

14. The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms to the density
requirements, lot dimension standards and other regulations applicable to planned
developments. '

15. The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms to the improvement
and design standards contained in the development code and adopted design criteria and
improvement standards.

16. Where applicable, adequate transfer development rights have been established consistent
with the number of proposed units within the planned development.

17. The planned development has a beneficial relationship to the neighborhood in which it is
proposed to be established.

6~'(



PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)
September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
Page 7 of 8

Conclusion:

The proposed only changes the overlay district on a project previously approved by the town
board in 2009 with the Wal-Mart design review and again with the market place at Virginia
Ranch. This is before you to review because of the overlay district does not match the proposed
and approved Commercial Subdivision plan. The right of way areas are included in this proposal
and should be deducted as they do not require transfer development rights to be developed,
additionally the existing commercial zoned property that is now being included in this Planned
Development Overlay should not be included in the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan area
calculations. I have discussed this with Douglas County Staff and they concur. This Application
does clean up a tracking mess for the future.

Based on the findings and conclusions in this staff report, staff recommends to the Gardnerville
Town Board to approve the modification to the planned development overlay that now outlines
the proposed Tentative Commercial Subdivision Map. Any further conditions discussed during
the item at the Town Board meeting will be added to the letter to county staff after the meeting.
These conditions will be shared with County staff for the Planning Commission and Board of
County Commissioners consideration.

Figure 2.0 Area to be Incorporated into PD Boundary

e sila |

de:-119.719564 N




PD 09-001-1 (Planned Development modification)
September 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
Page 8 of 8

VI. ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS

The Gardnerville Town Board options for reviewing this Tentative Commercial Subdivision
Map are as follows:

1. Recommend approval of the project to Douglas County Staff, subject to the conditions
found within the staff report:

Advantages: Staff believes the approval of this modification cleans up a large zoning mess
created by the specific plan and an overlay district. The plan has been approved and the

boundary needs to match the approved plan. This was required by county staff to correct the
overlay district.

Disadvantages: None identified at this time.
2. Recommend denial of the proposed project to Douglas County:
Advantages: None identified at this time.

Disadvantages: Staff believes that a recommendation for a denial would not be consistent
with current codes and policies.

3. Continue this request with the applicant's consent to address other items that may arise

as a result of the public hearing that need to be addressed prior to granting approval or
denial:

Advantages: Ifother issues are brought up at the meeting that were not addressed by staff or
the applicant and the Town Board Members would like further review of the project, with the
concurrence of the applicant, the Town Board should continue the item to a time certain in
order for the issue to be explored and possibly resolved. This will result in a more informed
decision.

Disadvantages: The final action by the Board on this project would be delayed.

Attachments:
1) Applicant’s Statement of Justification
2) Proposed PD Boundary with highlights by staff
3) Previous Zoning map from County staff at BOCC meeting
4) Previous PD Boundary

69



VICINITY MAP

A

o

T ROAD

ANMILL
Q)

=

L

R O Anderson

1603 ESMERALDA AVENUE / POST OFFICE BOX 2229
MINDEN, NEVADA 89423

PHONE: (775) 782-2322 / FAX: (775) 782-7084
WEB SITE: WKWIW.ROANDERSON.COM

NO SCALE

VIRGINIA RANCH COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT
SIERRA NEVADA SE ENT, LTD. ¢ WAL-MART TRUST

VICINITY MAP

0396-126

{1
-
s

08/06/12

6-10



si3ans | do|Zisaseg, o ieremcorn tum e |
- AdvaNnod dd LSAAL LaVL-TIYM # 'ALlT ‘INI MS VAVAIN VRIS |wwnSiT i 00" 5728 1

g assodoad HONVE VINIDAIA LV IOVvIdL3dalvid SHL | uosispuy Oy | e

2 o a0 _ P EEER ML) EFS=N M=)

SLE AVMMDIA ST
AMVAONNCOR Ja QABOSOM

y " ‘ov sior
i o AdvaNnnog ad

sED PO BOUNDART

=

- THE e W 100 Ty
ARVONON Od Q3500

B Lt
j e
. & os.e..i.,uwxﬂ..-..t.uu.....n...m...r.n..........‘.f.“.
: %,
pole 7t
: g e =3 e !..u.»...“
i S e @ Nl o S -

e g e ©

Féase oo @ oe o..- - od /
LN e SVItL Vit 1] Du.uw“b:lc,ﬂ.ﬁ. X -a-wa -~
Lo ez i ﬁ,mw N ELAY

~ )«ﬁéui;_w.nu
<222 Y =R e T QmQ J«llﬂ.l.

(@IHSUINMO SASINSBALNT ME VAVATN wandis)
HIANIVLIT™

(A PMAIT AT T UL N )

oo T

( <32 N 'L u_q

T A LY Rt DA B RS GEM G MU B I I LT o e Tet

6 -1\




AN STEAUENGHYD

WA 1V 3OVIdLINHVIA

I¥D)

Jvl“ =
[at;
¥
2
o2
B5
EIRT . :
$E b o
M i Mm CENLRRRE] AL
3= &
T
A
i i
E;

va

AHYAONNCH LNIWH0TIAI0 O3NNY 1 NIHLIM LOM
4 AHYONNOS LNSWGOTIASO NIHLIM SYIuY

AHYONNOE LNINJOT2A30
Q3NNYId DNLLSIX3

V99T NNG D

AUVONNOE dYH

SALVINGL Q3S040Hd =

(uvd v LON)
130UYd LEWN-TVAA

W=IniSnCERN

N

6=\



PROPOSED TENTATIVE
MAP BOUNDARY

WAL-MART PARCEL
{NOT A PART)

EXISTING PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

AREAS WITHIN DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY
NOT WITHIN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

k|
g
&
:
i
¢
I 4
AP
SCL AR
EEEET
EEEEEE
d4
A-19 mmmm
dH
8% I f
(]
13
mW
\eN
=
)

TO\:;?
an

G

| |

SHEET NO.

G—07

ZONING MAP
MARKETPLACE AT V.R.
GARDNERVLLE, NV

s

¢ (3




TNClient Files\03967\0396 - 12TNCADNSUrvey \Exhibits\0396 - 12TEXH-PD.dwg 2/9/2009 10:22:06 Al Cory J. Kleine

' A, PN LZP0-O3 000135
? SIERRA NEVADA Sid
7 ENTERPRISES
‘ J
A

A PN, L2220 10 /0-007 / / /
SIERRA NEVADA Siv
ENTERFRISES / /

A PN
L2200~ 10-5/0-002
SIERRA NEVADA
Sk ENTERFRISES

300! o 3007 600! EXH I B | T
PROPOSED VIRGINIA RANCH

R O Anderson COMMERCIAL P.D. BOUNDARY
i PORTIONS OF A P.N.'S 1220-03-000-038,
1603 ESHERALDA AVENUE / POST OFFICE BOX 2229 1220-10-110~-007 AND [20~-10-B10-002
HINDEN, HEVADA 83423
PHONE: (T75) T82-2322 7 FAX: {77%) 702-7C04 C2/06/,09
WEB SITE: KWW ROANDERSON.COT 0396~ 127EXH-PD.dwg

b~ (Y
(OLD 2009



TAClient Files\0BA6M\O39% - 127NCADNSUr vey \Exhibits\OBA6- 1I27EXM - RA dwg 4/3/2009 1:00.04 PM Marie A, Huise

A PN, IPPO-IOHO~OO07
SIERRA NEVADA Siv -
ENTERFPRISES
-

BERNARD

12/31/1
v,

300! o

R O Anderson

03 ESMERALDA AVENUE / POST COFFICE BOX 2229

MINDEN, NEVADA BA423
PHONE- (778} TB2-2202 # FAX (775) 762-7084
WEB SITE W ROANDERSON €O

PROFPOSED P.D.

BOUNDARTYT
24.84 AC.

Eony

/ . . — —

\ A PN
L220-10-5/0-007
S/IERRA NELVALA
S ENTERFPRISES

3o 600!

AP N [ZEO-03-000-238
SIERRA NEVADA Siv

EXHIBIT
RECEIVING AREA WITHIN
PROPOSED VIRGINIA RANCH
COMMERCIAL P.D.

ENTERFPRISES

BOUNDARY

04,02,09
0596 ~127EXH-RA.dwy

b-1S

OLY 2o



[1 # Wa)] epuady
fqed] 3
. 844
T ZT64
LG L il
B D
6451 N

]

61~V |

2
b ozl
8
Tlogii
Iy
2

nCHARY
2

Lr o)

e R A

S Vol Tl SO ke uun\“
LT \ e 5

T wr +

(6007¢ 9210J9(Q) SUIUO7Z SNOIAJIJ

6-1



Town of Gardnerville ; .

1407 Highway 395 North m
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410

(775) 782-7134 Ga dnervﬂle
(775) 782-7135 facsimile J evada

www.gardnerville-nv.gov

PROJECT REVIEW APPLICATION

Location

Street Address: U.S. Highway 395/Charlotte Way

Assessor’s Parcel Number:1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-101-002, 1220-03-000-039, 1220-10-501-008, 1220-10-510-008, 1220-10-501-006
Current Zoning Designation:  GC-PD, GC, A-19

Project Description

y of the PD district
consistent with the approved commercial tentative subdivision map.

Applicant:

Name: Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd.

Address:_Post Office Box 1700, Dayton Nevada 89403

Telephone Number: ( 775 246.0121 Fax Number: (775)_246.0471

Owner: Same as above, and

Name: Walmart Real Estate Bus Trust - Ref Store #5864-00

Address: PO Box 8050, Bentonville, AR 72712

Telephone Number: () Fax Number: ()

Name:_R.O. Anderson Engineering, Inc.
Address: 1603 Esmeralda Avenue, Minden Nevada 89423
Telephone Number: (775 782.2322 Fax Number: (775) 782.7084

By signing this application, the applicant agrees to reimburse the Town of Gardnerville for all expenses
reasonably incurred by the town in the process of reviewing the application, including, but not limited to,
engineering and legal expenses. A $75 deposit is included with this application.

Applicant or Applicant’s Representative:

Keith Ruben, AICP ol '

Printed Name Signa}rure Date

{When projects are located or proposed to be located within the Town of Gardnerville, Douglas County requires
review and comment by the Town Board before making a final decision on the project. The Town of Gardnerville
makes recommendations to Douglas County on all development to be located within the township boundaries.
Douglas County will not render a decision until a letter of recommendation has been submitted by the Town.}



Douglas County Community Development Department FOR STAFF USE ONLY
1594 Esmeralda Avenue
Post Office Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423 File Nurmnber Receipt Number
(775) 782-6217

Received By Date

MIXED USE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTY/
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

INSTRUCTIONS TO APPLICANT

The following application form is provided for persons who propose to submit for a Mixed Use
Commercial Development or a Planned Development. The submittal must be in conformance with Douglas
County Code, Chapter 20.676. For applicants proposing a MUC project, the submittal must also be in
conformance with Code Section 20.664.125 (MUC Specific Standards), and where there is a conflict between
the provisions of 20.676 and 20.664.125, the provisions of 20.664.125 govern.

As an applicant, you must complete this form and incorporate all requested information, as prescribed by the
application submittal requirements and Douglas County Code, before the application is accepted for processing
by the Community Development Department.

:i<=i==§<>i=**********#************************%*******=§=***=§==i<*$***********************************
A, Project Location

Street Address (if available): _U.S. Highway 395/Charlotte Way  Community: Gardnerviile
1220-10-501-006
fﬁSSGSSDF’SI)arceiPJUﬂlbeY(S)J 1220:10-110-007, 1220-10-303-002, 1220-03-000-039, 1220-10-501-008, 1220-10-510-009

Approximately 0 -Feet North or South of _ Charlotte way
(Circle one} {Street Name)
Approximately 0 -Feet East or West of _ U.S. Highway 395

{Circle one) (Street Name)
********************x********#*************$***********************************$****$*****

B. Project Description

Request to develop a total of _ 40.15 acresinto __ n/a parcels and __ n/a total units.
Types of proposed uses (please check all applicable):

__ Single-Family Residential ___ Commercial (retail, office, medical, restaurant)

_____ Multi-Family Residential _.... Industrial (manufacturing, warehousing)
Current Zoning designation(s): Gc-Pb, A-19 Current Master Plan designation(s): c.RA&cF

Proposed Zoning designation(s):  GC-PD Proposed Master Plan designation(s): _ not applicable
Floodplain designation(s) (from FIRM maps): __ A0-1.X  FIRM #;3200500265G FIRM Date: 11202010
List any previous applications which have been filed on this site: (PD 09-001) (DA 04-155) {DA 09-056) (LDA 12-004)

MUC/PD Application — November 2010 R A
F/Planning and Development/Applications and Forms/Mixed-Use Commerical — Planned Development: .+, © 70 %
Page 1 of 9 UM

6-1¢



APPLICANT:

Contact Name: _James S. Bradshaw Company:_Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd.
Address: p.0. Box 1700 City/State/Zip:_Dayton, Nevada 89403
Telephone No: (775 ) 246-0121 Fax No: (775 ) 246.0471
E-mail:
OWNER:
Contact Name:  SAME AS ABOVE Company:
Address: City/State/Zip:
Telephone No: ( ) Fax No: ( )
E-mail:

ENGINEER/REPRESENTATIVE:

Contact Name:  Keith Ruben Company: R.0. Anderson Engineering, Inc.
Address: _ 1603 Esmeralda Avenue City/State/Zip: Minden, Nevada 89423
Telephone No: (775 ) 782-2322 Fax No: ( 775 ) 7827084

E-mail: kruben@roanderson.com

*****************Ht********************************************;§=#****$*******************=i=*

LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION

This letter shall serve to notify and verify that l/we am/are the legal owner(s) of the property being considered under this
application and do hereby authorize the above representative to file and represent my/our interest in this application.

Ifwe am/are the legal owner(s) of said property; have read the foregoing Letter of Authorization and know the contents thereof;
and so hereby certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the information contained in this
application is true and correct.

R

OWNER(S) of RECORD: (Include e%sé necessary)

w f rhitgs q_g ?}”)ﬁﬂ?ﬁi{’?m / \N%_;—»\ _____ 55/';/5)
Printed Name Signature > Date
Printed Name Signature Date

Note: This application must include the names of all owners and, if a corporation, all stockholders and
officers (Douglas County Code Section 20.04.010).

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the applicant and that the foregoing statements and answers contained herein and the
information herein submitted, are in all respects true and correct. I also certify that all plans and submittal requirements are in
accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and Douglas County Code, have been drawn to a standard engineering scale (e.g.,
["=20, 17=50°, 1"=100") or architectural scale (e.g., '/”=1", '/"=1) that is appropriate to the project size, and clearly define and
identify all of the required information. .

APPLICANT/APPLICANT’S REPRESENTATI‘VE: 7
Keith Ruben, AICP ;C:“’” \!‘ B &7 / 12
Printed Name Signature ' Date

MUC/PD Application - November 2010
P/Planning & Development/Applications & Forms/Mixed Use Commersial — Planned Development
Page2 of 9

6-19



APPLICANT:

Contact Name: _James S. Bradshaw Company:_Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd.
Address: _P.0. Box 1700 City/State/Zip:_Dayton, Nevada 89403

Telephone No: (775 ) _ 248-0121 Fax No: (775 ) 246.0471

E-mail:

OWNER: - - . Wal-Mart Real Estate Bus Trust
Contact Name: . 5ubivy Ol il Company: _Relerence Store #5864-00
Address: _PO BOX 8050 City/State/Zip:_Bentonville, AR 72712
Telephone No: ( ) Fax No: ( )

E-mail:

ENGINEER/REPRESENTATIVE:

Contact Name:  Keith Ruben Company: R.GQ. Anderson Engineering, Inc.
Address: _ 1603 Esmeralda Avenue City/ State/Zip: Minden, Nevada 89423
Telephone No: (775 ) 782-2322 Fax No: (775 ) 782-7084

E-mail:  kruben@roanderson.com

ekt e bk b etttk stololl ol ot s ol R sk of ke et sl ol ol sl o skl of s sl ko ks e ks s ook o e e el o oo o o o

LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION

This letier shall serve to notify and verify that I/'we am/are the legal owner(s) of the property being considered under this
application and do hereby authorize the above representative to file and represent my/our interest in this application.

/we am/are the legal owner(s) of said property; have read the foregoing Letter of Authorization and know the contents thereof:
and so hereby certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the information contained in this
application is true and correct,

j 7
OWNER(S) of RECORD: (Include extra s@ﬁ;ﬂﬁ (_!,.,
Jhn . dcrpps AL §-1-2013
Printed Name Sig]égg/,/ ( U Date
Printed Name Signature Date

Note: This application must include the names of all ovwners and, if a corporation, all stockholders and
officers (Douglas County Code Section 20.04.010).

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the applicant and that the foregoing statements and answers contained herein and the
information herein submitted, are in all respects true and correct. I also certify that all plans and submittal requirements are in
accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and Douglas County Code, have been drawn to a standard engineering scale (e.g.,
1"=20", 1”=50°, 1"=100") or architectural scale (e.g., Yo=10, §"=1") that is appropriate to the project size, and ciearly define and
identify all of the required information. -

APPLICANT/APPLICANT’S REPRESENTATIVE:

Keith Ruben, AICP = jfﬂ 8 / 7// 2

Printed Name Signaturé Dat{e/'

MUC/PD Application — November 2010
P/Planning & Development/Applications & Forms/Mixed Use Commercial — Planned Development
Page 2 of §

(L -a0D



A RAIA T

(AN A FTULLER PARKIWNA Y.

REMHAINDER
(DIERMA NEVADA Did ENTERBRIDES WHERDHIFY
- - R
g O I I
o et
\\ Ry gy g A THAS
& i i
o 23 Py
. -.'..ell.l.itl.ll.nn.ll.l! mv\,.&..n.vc T = i
7] ULLER Pt H
3 s :
= - K ¥
m .......................... S i i
PR | H
) o SO 3y 3
o ff kY ' i3 \
uw [} i\ g
m i ! e )
- H ' § \ &
; § . B 4
B | H : 3 ]
: H H b 1Y
i i § \
Py ¥ 1%
HE . 15
P4 m 1%
............... 4ot { <
. ! : !
o b . - i :
N \ ' ¢
i ! T
H : PD BOUNDART e
HE W] 2545 AL .
HY H g
! 1 e, T
1 m i i LARSEN
VG
H ! s e
H {
; 1
; !
! i
H ;
H ;
i i
H )
! !
P
} ;
H {
!
w# .............................. AP A
;!
Rl xv—. -._\
Ms
/1 Lo
i 3 .. .1\_4 e
; Pt . e NI
! % Byt
I
5 4
}
-
L i
s Y
7 e,
A

FROPOBED P BOINDARY

LS. HiGiivay 8395

M PR SV ¢ T Orieh TOr T
o, Abvsi ek
s TS NA-SSHE 4 s [T0) s
il T, e AR

T AL P TS AL g LoV Ae T 0N TYED GO0 g 0H Bl L Gy . xmim

> UOCZU\W_N@;%‘ o g

S
| B

DATE:

TR, | DETE REVICion uoee By, =
=== s | RiO|Anderson | THE MARKETPLACE AT VIRGINIA RANCH FPROPOSED e
N - it SIERRA NEVADA S ENT, LTD. ¢ WAL-MART TRUST ==

0BATHNT

AE 63 Jp

b -2\



RECEIVED

MAY 04 2011

BOUGLAS (ouy
COMNIRITY DEVELOPHE
Assessor's Parcel Number(s):_1220-10-110-007,

1220-10-501-007, 1220-10-510-007, 1220-10-101-002

1220-03-000-039, 1220-10-501-006

Date: MAY 4, 2011

When Recorded, Mail to;

Name: Douglas County Comm Development - Att: Dirk Goering

Address: PO Box 218

City/State/Zip__Minden, Nevada 89423

Real Property Transfer Tax: $_nia

Final Development Plan for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, LLC
(Title of Document)

(#2011.090)

6-22



Final Development Plan for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, LLC
Planned Development (PD) 09-001

Assessor Parcel Numbers (APN):
1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-501-007, 1220-10-510-007,
1220-10-101-002, 1220-10-501-006 and 1220-03-000-039

An Overall Development Plan, for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, LLC to accommodate
future commercial development. The project site is located in the Town of Gard nerville,
approximately 600 feet south of Service Drive, along U.S. Highway 395. The Planned
Development is part of the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan.

As conditioned, the applicant has submitted a Development Plan in final form (See
Exhibits A, B, C, D and E).

Exhibit A: Final Overall Development Plan

Exhibit B: Final Pergola Design

Exhibit C: Conceptual Elevations

Exhibit D: Legal Description

Exhibit E: Letter of Conditional Approval of PD 009-001 dated June 5, 2009

Per Dougtas County Code 20.676.220 C., the Douglas County Community
Development Director finds that certifies that this final plan is in substantial compliance
with the PD 08-001 as tentatively approved:

P/

¢
Mirhi Moss, AICP
Douglas County Community Development Director

£G:2lHd n- A¥H 1102
¢77

-

b



As witnessed by their signature below, the Owner of the above-referenced properties
acknowledges recording of the Final Development Plan of PD 08-001.

SIERRA NEVADA SW ENTERPRISES, LLC

By: Corporate Management Services, Inc., a Nevada corporation
Its: Manager

James's. 'é’radshaw
President

STATE OF NEVADA )

) 88.
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS )

onthis [[Th dayofA*WJl _ 2011 bgpore e L Lmo(cx (ulberkonNotary

Public, personally appeared , personally known
to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in
his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument the person,
or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Junda gplbertys-

(SIGNATURE OF NOTARY)

N
DA G"_BERTSO
L“:,IOTARY PU yBLIC

OF NEVADA
. APFS*TQT%%asn -5 AMENDED

. EXPIRES APRIL 10, 2012

6-AY



As witnessed by their signature below, the Owner of the above-referenced properties
acknowledges recording of the Final Development Plan of PD 09-001.

WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST,
a Delaware statutory trust

T JohrTE. Clarke

Vice President of Real Estate

STATE OF ARKANSAS
COUNTY OF BENTON

The foregoing instrumeniwas agknowledged before me this QS"Lday of
z ) “4&5 ; , 2011, by , the Vice President of
Real Estate of Wal-Mart Real Estgte Business Trust, a Delaware statutory trust, on

behalf of the trust.
Notary@‘b!ic -7

My commission expires: __3-({2-A(

ek

RN PN R PP

Jane Bennett
County of Benton
Notary Publie - Arkansas

il ittt o T



EXHIBIT A

DUILDTNG AREA SUMMARY

DDA RS
TOTAL BLTLDING AREA w #9354 =1
BAING
L1 188
PROVIDED »1%3

IS AREY I

TUTAL BILDHT AREN = £5,619 5%

FARICNG

PROVIDED = 208

et
TOTAL BUILDIKG AREA = 9,300 &F
PARKING

AL DY LX)

DBLANYT ST LT
TOTAL BUHLDING AREA = 182,401 SF

TOTAL BUALDIHG ARER

IRSIDE XOWEL PARN COMICERLIAL PARK
-25,251 80

INSIDE VIRGTNIA RAMCH SPECTFIC M
- L8D 9T GF

TOTAL BUTLOXIT ARYA = 157,216 £F

ST FRAE NPT,
FOR BUINGING RREAS A, B, AND C, FIAL

Planned gﬁoﬁaﬂsﬁégrg ’ - . Final ndm.w.u__ aﬁ-_ov?esn ...._ur.. 5 PENTACOR™
Falwary 2, 2318 MR ke bt 1)

[

6-A6



GIEE YT ARmogay
ulijsogejoBag [eujd

440 o

EXHIBIT B

]

sy apfinausudoacg paueg
AP

,!:;,ii
| i

T Ay

£k T

6-27



XHIBIT C

E

NOITE:

1, FINAL BUILDiKG DESIGN SHALL BE
DETERMNED THROUGH SUBSEQUENT DESIGN
REVIEW APPLICATIONS. ARCHTECTURAL DESIGN
TMUST BE CONSISTENT WITH THE GUIDELINES
WITHIN THE VIRGINIA RANCH SPECIF'C PLAN AND
MUST INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING
ARCHITECTURE ELEMENTS: AWNINGS, VARIATION
IN RDOF HEIGHT, STRONG HORIZONTAL CORNICE,
PITCHED ROOFS, aND THE USE OF VENEER OR
FULL BRICK LEDGER STONE ON THE FACADE,

2. THESE CONCEPTUAL ELEVATIONS ARE AN
EXAMPLE OF A DESIGN WHICH MEETS THE
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS,

e -

CONCEPTUAL EL

-0 RETAL BULDNG

e

EVATION 100

ﬁ.\\zﬂmm.._‘.chr ELEVATION 120 -0 RETAL BULIING

CONCERTUAL TLEJATON '50'-0° RETAL BULDNG

o]

Nmowb-—&ﬂﬂuﬂﬂ THE MARRKRETPLACE AT VIRGINIA RANCH CONCEPTUAL

st o o U.B, HWY 395 ¢ VIRGINIA RANCH RCAD EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

6-A%




e o

;
Ly S

ey :
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT : F:mnugmcn
: ngineering an
1584 Esmeralda Avenue, Minden, Nevada 85423 Bulkiing Division
. Reglonal Transporiation
Mimi Moss :
Water/Sewar Util
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR Rmrmm;nl;zg
775-762-6201 Code Enforcement
FAX: TT5-782-8297
wabslle: wwer.douglascountynv.gov
o S
=
i o
June S, 2009 MAIL DELIVERED : - B -
i Lo —
James Bradshaw ;. ,EE-_';-* @ 1':'—
Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, LTD. . ‘ g = g
P.O. Box 1700 § =
Dayton, NV 89403 5 ~n
3 —

Subject: PD 09-001 (Planned Development); for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises,
Virginia Ranch Commercial Planned Development
Located in the Town of Gardnerville, approximately 600 feet south of Service Drive,
along U.S. Highway 395 within the Virgirtia Ranch Specific Plan boundary
APNs: 1220-10-110-007, 12206-03-000-038, and 1220-10-510-002

Dear Mr. Bradshaw:

On May 7, 2009, the Douglas County Board of Commissioners approved with conditions a request
for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, for a Zoning Map Amendment establishing a GC (General
Commercial, 10,000-square foot minimurn net parcel size) Planned Development (PD) Overlay
zoning district over a 24.84-acre site, to accommodate a fiature commercial development, including
the abandonment of a portion of Larson Way and a storm drainage easement, The project site is
located in the Town of Gardnerville, approximately 600 feet south of Service Drive, along U.S.
Highway 395, within the A-19 (Agriculture, 19-acre minimum net parcel size) and GC zoning
districts. The Planned Development is part of the Virginia Ranch Specific Plan and is designated a
Receiving Area (RA) in the Master Plan (APNs: 1220-10-110-007, 1220-03-000-038, and 1220-10-
510-002).

In addition, on June 4, 2009, the Douglas County Board of Commissioners adopted Ordingnce No,
2009-1285, an ordinance for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises establishing a GC /PD-Overlay zoning
district over a 24.84-acre site,

THE FOLLOWING SHALL BE COMPLETED WITH THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT
PLAN:

1. The applicant shall provide evidence that the TDRs have been certified to the satisfaction of
Douglas County and that the TDRs are conveyed to the Planned Development.

HAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 218, Minden, Nevada 89423

£-39



PD 09-031/Virginia Ranch Planned Development.
Page 2 of 2

2. The applicant must submit a final development plan and a Design Review application to the
Community Development Director that meets the provisions of County Code and Douglas
County Design Criteria and Improvement Standards within two years. The Design Review
submittal must include, but is not limited to, a revised traffic report and a drainage report.
Extensions of time may be granted in accordance with County Code, Section 20.676.020.

3. The applicant shall be required to meet all the requirements of the Virginia Ranch Specific
Plan (DA 04-155) and other agency requirements prior to any development on the parcels,

THE FOLLOWING SHALL BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO REQUESTING AN ORDER OF
ABANDONMENT FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT:

4, The applicant shall ensure that the abandonment of the right-of-way is consistent with
Sections 278.240 and 278,480 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

5. The applicant shall ensure the future drainage facilities which will allow the abandonment of
the existing storm drainage easement and detention pond be constructed and approved by the
County prior to the recordation of the Order of Abandonment for the existing drainage
easement.

This is the final decision regarding your Planned Development. If you should have any questions,
please contact me at (775) 782-6212.

Sincerely,

/Q//"/C/g

Dirtk Goering, Assistant Planner
Pouglas County Community Development BErA

oc:
Keith Ruben, AICP, R.O. Anderson Engineering
Barbra Resnik, PE, Civil Engineer 0

Town of Gardnerville

Douglas County Clerk

File: PD 09-001

6-30



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT | Planning Division

1594 Esmeralda Avenue, Minden, Nevada 89423 Engine‘ering Division
Building Division
_— Regional Transportation
Mimi Moss Code Enforcement
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

T75-782-6201

FAX: 775-782-8297

website: www.douglascountynv.gov

July 9, 2012 ' MAIL DELIVERED

James Bradshaw

Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd.
PO Box 1700

Dayton, NV 89403

Re: LDA 12-004 (Commercial Subdivision Map) for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Lid; Located in
the Town of Gardnerville, north of Charlotte Way and east of US Hwy 395; APNs: 1220-03-000-
039, 1220-10-101-002, 1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-501-008, & 1220-10-510-009.

Dear Mr. Bradshaw:

On July 5, 2012, the Douglas County Board of Commissioners approved (5-0) Land Division
Application (LDA) 12-004, for Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd., requesting a 22.13 acre Tentative
Commercial Subdivision Map within the GC (General Commercial) and PD (Planned Development
Overlay) zoning districts. The subject property is within the Town of Gardnerville and is a part of the
Virginia Ranch Planned Development and Specific Plan. It is located north of Charlotte Way and east
of US Hwy 395 in the Minden-Gardnerville and East Valley Community Plans (APNs: 1220-03-000-
039, 1220-10-101-002, 1220-10-110-007, 1220-10-501-008, & 1220-10-510-009),

Included in the motion to approve, the Commissioner’s authorize the Community Development

Director to adjust the final development plans to reflect the agreement between Sierra Nevada SW Ltd.
and Barry and Karla Jones.

Both parties, Jones’ and Sierra Nevada SW Litd., each articulated on the record they had reached a
mutual agreement to cooperatively participate in the redesign and sharing of costs to adjust the

alignment of “Private Drive” per the Grant Drive/Private Drive Intersection prepared by RO Anderson,
dated May 10, 2012.

‘.,.,.-—
oy
fa

3

6E:€ Hd 6-T1AF E10E

6 -3\

malLING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 218, Minden, Nevada 89423



LDA 12-004/Virginia Ranch
Page 2 of 5

The following conditions apply:

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MUST BE MET PRIOR TO PHASE 1 FINAL MAP
SUBMITTAL:

1.

The applicant must complete all on-site and off-site improvements necessary to serve Phase 1 of
this commercial subdivision map, as shown on the improvement plans for SIP 00676-02 and SIP
00676-03. If the applicant proposes to secure for any of the required improvements, the applicant
must enter into a security and improvement agreement with Douglas County on a form provided by
the County. The security improvement agreement and the security deposit shall comply with
Douglas County Code Sections 20.702.020 and 20.720.030.

The applicant must submit the Phase 1 final map with the following dedications to the County and
other required easements:

a. The applicant shall dedicate a minimum of 82’ (eighty-two feet) of public right of way for the
portion of Grant Drive located within Phase 1.

b. The applicant shall dedicate a minimum 20’ (twenty foot) radii’s at street intersection with
Grant Drive and US 395;

c. The applicant shall dedicate a minimum 15” (fifteen foot) radii’s at street intersections, within
Phase 1, with Grant Drive and at Larson Way and Charlotte Way;

d. The applicant shall provide an access easement and driveway from Grant Drive to serve the
Jones parcel as agreed to in the letter to George Keele, dated November 25, 2009. The
driveway shall meet all requirements for Douglas County Code and the Douglas County
Design Criteria and Improvement Standards manual.

e. The applicant shall provide evidence of a recorded 30-foot shared access easement and
construct paved driveways, minimum 2-way, extending from the northern property line at Les
Schwab property (APN 1220-10-510-001) up to, including the main drive aisle which
provides direct access to both Charlotte Way and Grant Drive.

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MUST BE MET PRIOR TO PHASE 2 FINAIL MAP

SUBMITTAL:

3. The applicant must demonstrate that all improvements associated with Phase 1, SIP 00676-02 and
SIP 00676-03, have been completed or secured.

4. The applicant shall submit a Boundary Line Adjustment to separate the approximately 167 acre
remainder parcel which is not a part of the subdivision map.

5. The applicant must amend the Virginia Ranch Planned Development Boundary (ref. PD 09-001)

and obtain a zoning map amendment amending the zoning district for a portion of Lot 1, Phase 2,
from A-19 (Agricultural, 19-acre minimum parcel size) to GC (General Commercial) or revise the
commercial subdivision map boundary to only include property zoned commercial.

-3



6.

LDA 12-004/Virginia Ranch
Page 3 of 5

The applicant must complete all on-site and off-site improvements, within Phase 2 of this
commercial subdivision map, as shown on the improvement plans for SIP 00676-02 and SIP
00676-03. If the applicant proposes to secure for any of the required improvements, the applicant
must enter into a security and improvement agreement with Douglas County on a form provide by
the County. The security improvement agreement and the security deposit shall comply with
Douglas County Code Sections 20.702.020 and 20.720.030.

The applicant must submit the Phase 2 final map with the following dedications to the County and
other required easements:

a. The applicant shall dedicate, on the portion of APN 1220-03-000-039 which is associated
with this subdivision map, 105* (one hundred five feet) of public right of way for Muller
Parkway/Mathias Parkway as required in Development Application (DA) 09-056;

b. The applicant shall demonstrate and ensure that the proposed right-of-way and road
improvements fall within the Wal-Mart original proposed alignment for Muller Parkway.
Refer to SIP 00676-02 improvement plans to ensure conformance with Wal-Mart’s proposed
design.

¢. The applicant shall dedicate 60’ (sixty feet) of public right of way for Carrick Lane;

d. The applicant shall dedicate a minimum of 82° (eighty-two feet) of public right of way for the
portion of Grant Drive located within Phase 2;

e. The applicant shall dedicate a minimum 15° (fifteen foot) radii’s at street intersections with
Carrick Lane and Grant Drive, and Carrick Lane and Service Drive;

f. The applicant shall provide a public pedestrian access easement on Lot 1 consistent with the

recorded Development Plan required with the Virginia Ranch Planned Development (ref. PD
09-001).

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MUST BE MET PRIOR TO RECORDING A FINAL MAP
SUBMITTAL:

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The applicant must comply with all conditions placed on the project by the Town of Gardnerville
pursuant to its June 5, 2012, Board Meeting.

The development will be served by a public water system, and the following conditions apply:
a. The applicant must meet the requirements of the amended review letter from the Gardnerville

Water Company dated May 18, 2012, with the exception of condition #7 (See Condition #23
and PC Attachment 6).

The development will be served by a public sewer system, and the following conditions apply:

a. The applicant must meet the requirements of the “Sewer Will Serve” letter or other letter of
intent to serve.

The applicant must provide documentation that all required improvements are constructed or
secured.

The applicant must provide documentation that all utilities are installed or have been secured.

The applicant must provide evidence that the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDQOT) has
reviewed and approved any development within their jurisdiction.

&-33



14.

LDA 12-004/Virginia Ranch
Page 4 of 5

The applicant must provide evidence that the GIS Department has approved all new street names.
Any easement or road (public or private) providing access to two or more parcels must be named

and street signs erected per Douglas County Code, Chapter 20.900 Numbering Structures and
Naming Streets.

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MUST BE MET WITH THE SUBMITTAL OF A FINAL
MAP:

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The applicant shall ensure erosion control measures are maintained on all newly created lots, and
also be consistent with SIP 00676-03, specifically as it relates to dust control.

The applicant must submit a copy of a recorded deed restriction stating the following;

“Douglas County has declared it a policy to protect and encourage agricultural operations. If
your property is located near an agricultural operation, you may at some time be subject to
inconvenience or discomfort arising from agricultural operations. If conducted in a manner
consistent with proper and accepted standards, these inconveniences and discomforts do not
constitute a nuisance for purposes of the Douglas County Code.”

The applicant must submit documentation that all property taxes and any agricultural liens of the
property have been paid in full for the current fiscal year.

The applicant must comply with the Final Map requirements as prescribed by NRS 278 and
Douglas County Code, Chapter 20.708.

The applicant must submit an affidavit stating that the person proposing to divide the land, or any
successor in interest, will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by chapter 375 of
NRS and for compliance with the disclosure and recording requirements of subsection 5 of NRS
598.0923,

The Final Map must show the following:
a. The applicant must separately identify and delineate the following feature that applies:
special flood hazard areas as delineated on the Pine Nut Watershed LOMR;
b. Drainage easemenis as necessary for mitigating onsite, offsite, and cross-lot drainage
impacts. All drainage easements must be shown as private;

The Final Map must provide notes that read as follows:

a. A ten (10) foot wide public utility easement along all road frontages and a five (5) foot public
utility easement along the side and rear lot lines.

b. The Community Development Certificaie must state the County rejects the offer of
dedication for the public roads with the reservation to accept the offer at a later date.

c. All construction and development within the floodplain must comply with Douglas County
Code, Chapter 20.50 Floodplain Management.

d. Maintenance of all drainage facilities and easements must be the responsibility of the
individual property owners or other private entity, including a homeowner’s association.
Douglas County rejects any offer of dedication of drainage facilities or drainage easements.

e. Obstructing the flow or altering the course of a drainage channel is prohibited, unless
permitted by authorizing agency.

6-34



LDA 12-004/Virginia Ranch
Page 5 of 5

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE APPLICABLE THROUGHOUT THE LIFE OF THE
PROJECT:

22,

23.

24.

25.

20.

The applicant shall be required to meet all applicable requirements of the Virginia Ranch Specific
Plan (DA 04-155) and other agency requirements prior to any development on the parcels.

Future development within the Virginia Ranch Commercial Subdivision boundary, which is
located within a Wellhead Protection Zone, must provide safeguards as outlined in the 2012
Douglas County Wellhead Protection Plan.

The applicant shall maintain the site free of weeds, trash, and other debris.

All future buildings located within this subdivision shall require design review approval and must

be consistent with the final development plan as required with PD 09-001. Each building shall
have sufficient loading areas to serve each use.

This Tentative Subdivision Map approval will expire four years from the date of approval if a final
map application that conforms to all the conditions of approval is not recorded prior to the

expiration date. Extensions of time may be granted in accordance with Douglas County Code,
Section 20.708.050.

This 1s the final decision regarding Land Division Application 12-004, a Commercial Subdivision
Map, for the Sierra Nevada SW Enterprises, Ltd.

Sincerely,

/QZ/\//% |

Dirk Goering, Associate Planner
Douglas County Community Development

CC:

Mark Forsberg, Scarpello & Huss
George Keele, Law Office

Keith Ruben, ROA

Mark Smith, M & K Realty Investment
Barbra Resnik, Civil Engineer 11

Jeff Foltz, Senior Civil Engineer

Tom Dallaire, Town of Gardnerville
Douglas County Clerk

File: DA 12-004

6-35



Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardneyville

AGENDA ACTION SHEET "4 Nevada

1. For Possible action: Discussion to award, deny or re bid, the Chichester Crack
Fill project (project number 2012-11). The project consists of noticing adjacent
residents and providing materials and labor to fill the remaining two (2) inch
and smaller cracks and gutter pan cracks on Gilman Avenue, Chichester Drive,
and sections of Marion Russell Drive, Lampe Road, and Harvest Avenue and
additive alternate on Petar Lane. Awarding the project will include authorizing
the town manager to sign the contract and authorize the billings in addition to
10% over the total contract amount, and to cover any change orders during
construction, with public comment prior to board action. (approx 10 minutes)

2. Recommended Motion: Dependent upon results of bid opening and board
discussion.

Funds Available: 2 Yes L N/A

3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire

4. Meeting Date:  September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 10 minutes

5. Agenda: ' Consent ¥ Administrative
Background Information: This is the second project of a three part plan for the
repair of cracks in the Chichester area. The cracks larger than 2 inches have
been cut out and patched and now this project will fill in the cracks between %
and 2 inches as well as the gutter pans in preparation for the final part which
will be microsurfacing. The filling of the smaller cracks is necessary prior to

microsurfacing because the microsurfacing will only fill cracks up to % inch
wide.

6. Other Agency Review of Action: I Douglas County T N/A

7. Board Action:

L Approved L_Approved with Modifications
' Denied L Continued

M
Agenda Item # 7



Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardnerville
"4 Nevada

1. Not for Possible Action. Discussion on the Main Street Program Manager’s
Monthly Report of activities for August 2012. (approx 5 minutes)

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Funds Available:  OYes X N/A
2. Department: Main Street Program
Prepared by: Paula Lochridge
3. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 5 minutes
4. Agenda: O Consent X Administrative
5. Background Information: See attached
6. Other Agency Review of Action: X N/A
7. Board Action:

OApproved OApproved with Modifications
ODenied OContinued

m
e ———————————————————————————
Agenda Item #8



- To:
Fr:
Re:

MAINFSTREET,
L& L=}

S R Y A

Gardnerville Town Board
Paula Lochridge, Main Street Gardnerville Program Manager
Program Manager’s Report for September 4, 2012

Here are some of the items that 1 will be reporting on:

Main Street Gardnerville is a sponsor of the Chamber’s “How to Profit from the Arrival of Wal-
Mart” Seminar on September 13", Here is some information on the seminar:

o Have you reserved your seat for the 'How to Profit from the Arrival of Wal-Mart'
seminar? Are you giving your business the best chance for success when the new store
opens in January? Get the lowdown and practical advice on what small businesses can do
in the face of this new competition for your customer's dollars at this Chamber
presentation on September 13th.

o Author, speaker and small business expert Barbara Wold brings the message at two
seminars that day at Carson Valley Inn. Choose either the morning session from 9 to
11:30 or afternoon from 1 to 3:30 here. Cost is $15 for Chamber or Main Street
Gardnerville members, $20 for all others.

o Ms. Wold's appearance is sponsored by the Chamber, Douglas County Economic
Vitality, City National Bank, Heritage Bank of Nevada, the Business Council of Douglas
County and Main Street Gardnerville.

o This event is not just for small retailers, but also for the accountants, lawyers and techs

who work with them, it's for anyone who has customers!

Committee Updates:

o Economic Restructuring:

*  We are re-launching our Revolving Loan Fund campaign. We have close to
$30,000 that we can loan out at this time.

* The committee has researched the parameters of the Intermediary Relending
Program (IRP) and discussed it with members of Rural Nevada Development
Corporation (RNDC) who currently run the only other IRP in Nevada. The ER
Committee will finalize their report at the next ER meeting on Sept. 11™ and
make their recommendations to the board on September 19" whether we will
move forward with this program or not.

o Organization:
* TFocusing on Memberships/Sponsorships/Fundraising,.

» Looking at alternate ways to bring in membership and sponsorship
dollars.
* A subcommittee will resume discussions in September to determine the
possibilities and logistics of acquiring a 501¢3 status.

Agenda Item #_&i



* Monthly morning coffee meetings are going well. Feel free to join us the first
Tuesday of each month, 8:30 -9:30 am at Sharkey’s Casino (in the Rib Room).

o Promotions:
= Focusing currently on these items:
»  Wine walks
o One wine walk left to go this season. We will then focus on
event surveys, meet with participating businesses and volunteers
and begin making plans for next year’s season.
» Holiday Shopping Bazaar (November 10™ at St. Galls)
o Are actively seeking vendors and raffle donations at this time.
o Plans for this event will be finalized at a meeting on August 30™.
» Merry Main Street Day Activities in park and throughout town for Dec.
1* (parade of lights).
o We are awaiting the next meeting with the Chamber and other
participating agencies to begin planning for this.
» Cash Mobs, October-February (which promote small businesses).
Emails were sent out to MSG Business Members to determine the level
of interest in this promotion. The findings will be presented at our next
Promotions Meeting on September 5.
* A potentially new event for 2013 will be presented to the Promotions
Comumittee at our next meeting on September 5™,

o Design:

e  Work continues with the Heritage Park Gardens (HPG) Project. The
gardens are really growing and some of the food items have been
harvested and donated to the local food bank. (Photos of garden
included in my report.)

e A fall event is in the planning stages for Saturday, October 13™.

e Committee members are researching labyrinths in the area and will soon
create a design that will work within the HPG area.

o Once a design is approved by both the committee and the board,
we will bring it to you for final approval.

o Also researching the different types of legacy stones for use on
this project. Once the type of stone has been decided upon, that
too will come to you for final approval.

Thank you so much for your continued support of the Main Street Gardnerville Program!

Gila. borectze

Paula Lochridge,
Main Street Gardnerville Program Manager

Agenda Item # %fﬁ



Heritage Park Gardens, August 17, 2012

e e




Printable

1of2

http://www.recordcourier.com/apps/pbes.dll/article? AID=/20120829..

g g~ Leadership class to produce oral history

AUGUST, 28 2012
BY SCOTT NEUFFER
SNEUFFER@RECORDCOURIER.COM

- Shannon Litz / R-C file photo A clearer picture of the formative years of one prominent pioneer family in Carson
Valley, and hopefully other historical figures to come, is being produced by students of
Leadership Douglas County.

Students of the program, which is organized by the Carson Valley Chamber of Commerce, decided to create an oral
history of the Henningsen Family Ranch as their class project for the year.

Videotaped interviews with John Henningsen are tentatively scheduled to begin Sept. 10 inside the Carson Valley
Museum & Cultural Center.

“Qur area is based on history,” said Paula Lochridge, LDC student and manager of Main Street Gardnerville. “It's
something we don't want to lose. We need to stay in touch with our roots. Our class had a lot different ideas when
we first started in January. We thought this would be something that would leave a legacy.”

Classmate Brian Fitzgerald, who is also the recreation manager for Douglas County, put together a summary
explaining the scope of the project.

“The Henningsen Family Ranch and history is on the short list of Nevada Centennial Families,” read the summary.
*John's grandfather Carsten Henningsen migrated to the Carson Valley from Denmark in 1874. There is much
documented history of Carsten Henningsen, his dairy business and involvement in the creation of the Douglas
County Creamery. Carsten's two sons, Clarence and George, both inherited parts of the original ranch. Clarence
and then his son John continued to operate a dairy business until 1992. John is a graduate of the Douglas High
School class of 1943. He and his wife Virginia have many stories of growing up in the Carson Valley, working a hard
farmer's life and can provide a unique perspective of our community and the changes witnessed over decades.”

Included in the summary is a list of topics for the interviews, including immigration to America, childhood in
Douglas County, school years, family ties, first jobs and careers, marriage and raising children, then-and-now
comparisons, retirement, family and personal legacy.

“LDC 2012 classmates hope to create a comfortable environment for John, one which will encourage reflection,
trigger memories, and generate discussion about the good old days,” the summary read. “We hope to capture
thoughts on life, the good times, the hard times, the challenges. We want to talk about the Henningsen Barn, old
family photos, and about family values.”

Lochridge said the class hopes to have interviews wrapped up by September, editing done by October, and a
finished product by mid-November. She said Lloyd Higuera of Douglas County Cable Access Television will assist
with technical setup and will broadcast the interviews at a later date.

The group also hopes to collaborate with the Douglas County Historical Society and Douglas County School District.
“Cur hope is to not only make it available at the local museum, but online on YouTube and other websites,”

Lochridge said. “We've formed a legacy committee to work with the historical society and the high school to see if
they can continue on with this program.”

8/29/2012 8:43 AN



Chamber to bring noted retail expert to Carson Valley.

HOW TO PROFIT FRON\

THE ARRIVAL OF

S EP ‘I 3 Renowned author, speaker and small business expert
Barbara Wold will bring her knowledge and insights to

Carson Valley at two seminars on September 13, 2012. Each
two and halfhour session will focus on how small businesses
can dowhat Walmart cannot — by providing an exceptional
experience and products that will bring in new customers,

(ARSON VAl_I_EY keep them coming back and encourage them to become

(H AM B ER 0 F goodwill ambassadors for your business.

COMMER(E Bele e RET N0

NEED TO KEEP THEIR NEW
'I 5 e CUSTOMERS”
“Wow! Thank you. Your "WOWED”
keynote was refreshing, 85OOVCE) ’(?) 5
thought-provoking and z
SEh S = PEOPLE FROM
RESERVE 0N|.| NE definitely motivational. ALL 50 OF
. G National Association of THE UNITED
OR CALL 782-8144 Purchasing Agents STATES

Each seminar is complete,
choose the time that works best for you!

artsronsgmlf  @he Record-Convier ///

MORNING SESSION

AFTERNOON SESSION entage

of Nevada DouGLAS R COUNTY
““““““““““ A GREAT PLACES

?’(0

MAIN STREE:F
Gar(lnervxlle
NEVADA




Gardnerville Town Board

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

1. Not for Possible Action. Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report
of activities for August 2012

2. Recommended Motion: None
Funds Available: ' Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 10 minutes
5. Agenda: | Consent ¥ Administrative
6. Background Information: Presented at meeting
7. Other Agency Review of Action: _ Yes ¥ N/A

8. Board Action:

L Approved L Approved with Modifications
" Denied L Continued

T SRy
Agenda Item #9



A
Gar: dnervﬂle

Nevada

(Gardnerville Town Board

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

1. Not for Possible Action. Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s
Monthly Report of activities for August 2012

2. Recommended Motion: None
Funds Available: I Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: September 4, 2012 Time Requested: 10 minutes
5. Agenda: ' Consent ¥ Administrative
6. Background Information: See report
7. Other Agency Review of Action: L Yes ¥ N/A
8. Board Action:

L_Approved L_Approved with Modifications
" Denied L Continued

Agenda Item #9



A Town = Paul Lindsay, Chairman
of ’ e Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
G&rdnefwne Mike Philips, Board Member
= amr= Nevada Linda Slater, Board Member
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member

Town Manager/Engineer’'s Monthly Report
September 4, 2012 Board Meeting

A. State Lands Q1 funding For the trench excavation was extended: We prepared a report a

few months ago requesting that State lands extend the $307,250 in construction funds to the
Town for an additional year while we get the water model complete and improvement plans
done. | have been in contact with Denny Peters and we are scheduled to meet next week on
the outcome of the mode! and our preliminary design. The preliminary numbers indicate that
the water will be flowing too fast through the channel and erosion control measures will need to
be provided so in the large events the sediment from the trench stays in the trench and does
not fill the pond. Orin larger events we could clean up the sediment and the trench in those
few instances where we would flood, and focus our funds now on the trench and a smaliler 10
year storm. Either way we will work through this to start construction next year as long as there
is funding available.

. Toler Lane Improvement Plan: — Staff has installed more drip, brought in a couple more
rocks. Stumps were removed. We are working on matching the DG the School District used at
GES. We have looked into contracting this out to a landscaped professional. | am meeting
with Tina Fixman, who has done the work on County Road on Friday August 31",

. Chichester Crack Repair project is complete: — This project went over budget. We added
more cracks than was bid and pavement failed areas that needed to be replaced prior to micro
surfacing was added under a different contract. There was double the square footage than
what we estimated. The saw cut contractor was not able to get on the edge of the crack as we
planned on and cut more of the asphalt. The contractor had a difficult time placing the AC in
two lifts. After reviewing this with the saw cut contractor we authorized the straighter cuts
which required more square footage. The results were a better wider patch, creating a better
patch in the long run, but this was at a cost. The base material looks great under each crack
and not washed out or showing signs of failure, confirming that the asphalt is just shrinking and
is the cause of the crack problem. We can cut the AC every 30 to 40 feet in an effort to control
the crack by allowing smaller cracks instead of fewer larger ones. This effort was not pursued
due to being over budget on the crack repair project. The crack seal project is on the agenda
for this meeting and we can discuss this at that time. This is a public bid and was placed on the
website and advertised in the paper. Public Works/Parks staff are out of crack seal material and
we have ordered another 3 pallets of a newer product in an effort to save time. We are anxious
to see how this will work.

. Walmart: The Contractor cut the road on Service Drive and has poured the concrete apron for
the new road to Grant. The ground water issues along the storm drain are finally coming to a
close. They will be doing the repair as the Douglas County standard detail for water stops.

. Minden Gardnerville Trail Plan: | went to the meeting earlier this month and the trails and
town crosswalk plan were selected as #2, and #3 out of 6 grants applicants. The new NDOT
director will start September 5™ and we should be receiving more information on the amount of
funds used for the TE program in the near future.

. Public Facilities: The Gounty is working on the Public Facilities Element of the master plan.
Please pass along any information you would like changed in the document. |t can be
downloaded from the County website. There really is not much as the Town of Gardnerville

Manager/Engineer Project Status Report Page |8-2



A Town _ Paul Lindsay, Chairman
of ' Tt Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
ai' d@i" V11i€ Mike Philips, Board Member
e " Nevada Linda Slater, Board Member

Lloyd Higuera, Board Member

goes. [t covers mostly waterand sewer systems in the county. | am planning on looking at the
information on the recycling section of the solid waste element. Candice says it was included in
the draft online.

G. Eddy Street Lighting: The light and poles are in as of this week. We will advertise the bid next
couple of weeks and we will award this contract in the middle to end of the month. We do need
to obtain NV Energy approval.

Also, a guy hit the Eddy Street planter last Friday. He has paid for the repair of the
damaged area. JB is on board to fund the remaining fix to relocate the wall. We signed a
contract today (Thursday) to have that performed.

H. Kingslane Sidewalk: NDOT is still working on the right of way issue at Kings lane and will get
a revised contract to the Board to review and approve after this effort is complete. | guess the
right-of-way department was not comfortable with the plan without first verifying the existing
infrastructure.

i. Toiyabe Sidewalk: The County is ready to issue a permit and the water company is allowing
us to relocate the fire hydrant back behind the new 8’ walkway. We are still looking for the
funding of this section of walkway and with the issues of the cracks in Chichester this may get
pushed off to the back burner for now.

J. Office ltems:

» Douglas County Standard Details: Josh and | met with the group to discuss the county
standard details appendix A. With the new county engineer on board he has many comments
about the details and great insight.

« | attended the Vision Committee meeting put together by Park Land and Cattle. They want to
do a vision plan for the 395 corridor through both towns similar to the South Lake Tahoe plan
and process. This is a great opportunity for the corridor for NDOT, Gardnerville’s and Minden’s
plan for prosperity to be updated. The committee will decide on the study length, but it would
seem logical to extend the plan from MGSD to Muller Parkway:.

» Paula and | met with Mitchell Mize to discuss this project and our effort in this review and
process. Paula and I both believe this will be great opportunity for Gardnerville and the
business along the corridor to have some input on what they would like to see in the next 20 to
40 years.

¢ Gardnerville - Old Town Days. ltis planned for this weekend.

» Connect Nevada. NDOT is working on the Connect Nevada program. They are projecting
traffic out to 2060 and wanting to connect the Nevada cities with light rail, bike paths and multi-
model trails. Dirk, who was at the meeting on Wednesday, and [ asked NDOT to look at 756 to
widen that road for pedestrian traffic. The information they provided is attached and they have
the town bypass as number 11 on the project list. Not sure what that means, but it is not
number 20!

Manager/Engineer Project Status Report Page |8-3




State Land Oifice
LEO DROZDOFF BRIAN SANDOVAL >+,  State Land Use Planning Agency
Diractor Governar poret e T T T % Nevada Tahoe Resource Team
' " Conservation Bond Program -Q1
Department of Conservation

and Natural Resources Address Reply to

Division of State Lands
901 8. Stewart St. Suite 5003
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5246
Phone (775) 684-2720
Fax (775) 684-2721
Web www. lands.nv.gov

JAMES R. LAWRENCE
Administrator

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Division of State Lands

August 15, 2012

Mr. Tom Dallaire

Town of Gardnerville
1407 Highway 395 North
Gardnerville, NV 89410

Dear Mr. Dallaire:

FUNDING AGREEMENT, QUESTION 1 PROGRAM, MARTIN SLOUGH LINEAR PARKWAY &
FLOOD CHANNEL , QUESTION 1 PROJECT NO. DO-CR-~06032.

Please find enclosed a signed Funding Agreement for the Martin Slough Linear Parkway & Flood
Channel project. Please arrange to have the document signed, prepare copies for your records, and
return the original signed document to State Lands.

Please contact us when you are ready to request a reimbursement of project expenditures incurred,
and we will provide the proper forms for you to use at that time.

We look forward to working with you towards completion of this project. Should you have any questions
regarding administration of the Funding Agreement, please contact me at (775) 684-2745.

Sincerely,

%ﬁiﬁg:gﬁ;ers
Administrative Assistant H

Question 1 Program
Nevada Division of State Lands

Enclosures:  Martin Slough Linear Parkway & Flood Channel Funding Agreement Amendment



A Funding Agreement Amendment Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its Division of State Lands and the
Conservation and Resource Protection Grant Program
(Grantor)

901 8. Stewart St., Suite 5003, Carson City, NV 89701
phone: (775) 684-2720
fax: (775)684-2721

And

The Town of Gardnerville
(Grantee)

1407 Highway 395 North, Gardnerville, NV 88410
phone: (775) 782-7134
fax: (775)782-7135

FOR THE PURPOSES OF constructing a linear parkway and flood channel improvements on the
Martin Slough in the Town of Gardnerville;

WHEREAS, at the general election on November 5, 2002 Nevada’s voters approved a conservation
initiative generated by Assembly Bill 9, Statutes of Nevada, 17" Special Session of the 2001
Nevada State Legislature, Chapter 6, referred to as Question 1, and authorized the issuance of
general obligation bonds in the face amount of $200,000,000 to carry out this program; and
WHEREAS, the Nevada legislature authorized the State Land Registrar to establish a conservation
and resource protection grant program and administer the issuance of general obligation bonds in
the face amount of $63,500,000; and

WHEREAS, $10,000,000 of the above $65,500,000 is allocated for grants to enhance and restore
the Carson River corridor;

WHEREAS, the State Land Registrar has determined this project is both necessary and in the best
interests of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as
follows:

FUNDING AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. The Nevada Division of State Lands (NDSL)
Question 1 Funding Agreement, Martin Slough Linear Park & Flood Channel project, DO-CR-
06032, is hereby amended to include the following revisions to the Funding Agreement Term:

FUNDING AGREEMENT TERM. The Funding Agreement Term Ending Date shall be extended
from July 31, 2012 to July 31, 2013.

Page 1 of 3



; ug
Quest.ron 1 Pro;ect Budget

Original Project Budget Table

Funding Source

Project Task/lfem Question 1 Request |Match, Cash |Match, Inkind Other Mon-Qualifying Costs Subtotal
Land Acquisition 20.00
Project Design $1563,000.00 $153,000.00
Permitting $12,000.00 $12,000.00
Staking and Testing $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $20,000.00
Town Pathway Extension $60,800.,00 $23,200.00 $84,000.00

Hellwinkel Pathwayand Flood Channel

Improvements $192,365.00f  $66,885.00 $259,250.00
Flood Study $184,000.00 $184,000.00
Project Adminstration $12,000.00 $2,000.00 $15,000.00 $29,000.00
Contingency $38,085.00 $38,085.00
Subtotal $307,250.001 $457,085.00 $15,000.00 $779,335.00
Total Project Cost $779,335.00
“Fotal Qualifying Project Cost | $778,335.00

Percent of Total, Qualifying Costs
Total Match Percentage
Percentage Total (1007)

Total Match

Total Q1 Request

$472,085.00°
$307,250.00

Total Qualifying Project Cost

$779,335.00:

‘Questron 1 Pro_fect Budget )

Funding Source

Project Task/lfem Question 1 Request [Match, Cash [Match, Inkind Other MNon-Quakiying Costs | Subtotal
Land Acquisition $0.00
Project Design 4 §20,000.00 50000000 $26,000,00 $45,000.00
Pemmitling $12,000.00 $12,000.00
Siaking and Testing 54,000.00 $16,000.00 $20,000.00
Town PathwayExlension ini|e.$60,800.00 $60,800.00
Hellwinkei Pathwayand Flood Channel
Improvements $655,968.00
Fiood Study g $148,075.00
Project Adminstration $1z 000.00§: 57$2,000.00 $14,000.00
Contingency SRR 4 $38,085.00 $38,085.00
Subtotal $307 250 00 $659,678.00 $27,000.00 $993,828.00
Total Project Cost $993,928.00
Total Qualifying Froject Cost | $093,928.00

Total Match Percentage
Percentage Total (1007)
Total Match

'g.oa?"ze'&o?;

Total Q1 Request
Total Qualifying Project Cost

5307250, ooi
$993,928.00

Grantee meets the miniinumn requirement of 50% per NAC 321.462 paragraph (d) of subsection 1 of section 33.

Page 20of 3

¥-G




This Funding Agreement Modification constitutes the entire modification and is intended as a
complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and
other agreements that may have been made in connection with the modification hereof. This third
modification to the original Funding Agreement shall not be binding upon the parties unless signed
by the respective parties hereto.

No amendments or modifications to the Funding Agreement other than those expressed above are
intended. All other provisions of the Funding Agreement shall remain binding as originally

executed.
A = . S’/f 4 / 7 ini
es R. Lawrence Date Grantor’s Title
<" Grantor Signature
\-—L%«:D—@/ 5/20/2"2 o Masagan_
Grantee Signature Date Grantee’s Title
Page 30of 3



[EVADA - NEVADA (7]

August 01, 2012

Don Wilcks

Chairman, Board of Directors
Gardnerville Town Water Co.
1407 US Highway 395 N
Gardnerville, NV 89410-5212

Dear Don:

The Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) is developing the Connecting Nevada Plan, an
initiative to address the future of Nevada’s transportation system. Connecting Nevada is a long range,
statewide multimodal plan to chart Nevada’s transportation future.

It is my hope that you will join us for additional stakeholder meetings that will help provide valuable
input to our final policy recommendations and planning tools that create the Connecting Nevada Plan. Since
our last round of stakeholder meetings, the Connecting Nevada Plan has progressed in many important ways.
Community stakeholders attending the stakeholder meetings will have an opportunity to discuss the
following with NDOT staff and Connecting Nevada consultants:

Planned and committed roadway projects and traffic forecasts

Population and employment projections through the project’s 2060 planning horizon
Identified transportation corridor deficiencies

Future roadway network and proposed transportation corridors

NDOT is extending this invitation to community stakeholders like yourself, whose input and
guidance are needed to create a sustainable and successful Connecting Nevada Plan. During the stakeholder
meetings you will have the opportunity to meet with NDOT staff and Connecting Nevada consultants.
encourage you to join in this opportunity to learn about the future of transportation in Nevada, and to share
your ideas, questions, or comments with our team.

The stakecholder mectings will be facilitated in an open house format, allowing you Lo attend at your
convenience, for any amount of time, during the three hours scheduled for each meeting. Enclosed is a
schedule for the stakeholder meetings. Please call (702) 880-8452 or e-mail jeray@strategicsolutionsnv.com
if you have any questions or need additional information. For more information about Connecting Nevada,
please visit our project website www.connectingnevada.org. On behalf of NDOT, I thank you in advance for
your willingness to be a part of this process.

Sincerely,

St

Jason Van Havel
Assistant Chief, Transportation/Multimodal Planning
Nevada Department of Transportation

6-6-426






PROJECT PURPOSE AND GOALS

* Develop a long-range transportation plan to guide
decisions and investments in the future

» Engage and facilitate discussion with varied
stakeholders

» Establish policies and guidance for preserving
transportation corridors

* Recognizing and encouraging multimodal
opportunities

» Linking NEPA and planning

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Polential Corridors for NDOT'S Futire



Building On Phase 1

. CastWizard

t
* ilimates tRA

. Sratawide Trans:
Mode

. priovitization

Tools | Resource

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corridors for NDOT's Future

Project Process

Data
Collection

Stakeholder Travel
Outreach Demand
Round One Model

» Gather ideas * Needs

Stakeholder Connecting

Outreach Nevada Plan

* Develop Round Two ¢ Draft Plan

network

« Share findings e Public
¢ Base mapping

 Existing
Studies

« |dentify issues Analysis
* Planning
linkages

* Validate Meeting
projects * Finalize Plan

JUNE 2011 PRI REERERERRRERTIEIEY

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corridors for NDOT's Future




Guidance provided by

e Technical Advisory Committee

— Department staff; representatives of the Metropolitan
Planning Organizations (MPOs); non-NDOT
representatives from each NDOT Districts; and others
as designated by the Department

e Steering Committee

— consists of Department and high priority agency
representatives who will oversee Phase |

* Stakeholders like you!

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corridors for NDOT'S Future

Tools being developed include

* Policy guidance, such as Planning and
planning and tnyironmental
environmental linkages Linkages

EVADA

— integrating planning and
environmental requirements ©




GIS Suitability Analysis

e Constraints analysis to
identify suitable land for
development

 Run what-if scenarios
to identify future
transportation corridors

Socioeconomic Forecasts

« Compile population and employment projections
through 2060

6,000,000 ~

5,000,000

4,000,000 ® Employment

3,000,000 - ¥ Population

2,000,000 -

1,000,000

0

2010 : 2030 : 2060
Nevada Population and Employment

Nevada | 2000 | 2030 | 2060

Population 2,663,000 3,588,000 5,673,000
ID.{ Employment 1,109,000 1,551,000 2,614,000

Source: HDR, 2012

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corriders for NDOT'S Future



Web Mapping

* \Web mapping tool to
share data with
stakeholders

e QC and review

alternatives over | f
the web from your ~ /-

desktop browser

|
 Easy to use tool,
similar to Google maps

Transit propensity _

Fallon Inset
Transit propensity g
analyses identify —~Faligt:

geographical areas that
have the potential to R
support transit use "

Average
High
[‘:,,_ X Very High

Standout Urban Areas Standout Rural Areas

| as Vegas *Battle Mountain °Fallon
i *Elko/Spring *Gardnerville Ranchos /
*Carson City ; ;
Creek Indian Hills
*Reno *Ely/McGill *Pahrump

I_DR 10




Travel Demand Model

» Statewide travel
demand model, looks
beyond borders at
influence of
neighboring states

 Analyze traffic growth
in key corridors

 Evaluate improved
regional connections

2010 Roadway Capacity
il

Identify Transportation Needs

154 Current
d | Projects and
Programs

12




How to Get Additional Information

e Visit Connecting Nevada website at
http://www.connectingnevada.ora/

* Project contacts:

Jason Van Havel

NDOT Project Manager
1263 South Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712
(775) 888-7119
jvanhavel@dot.state.nv.us

Tim Mueller
NDOT Project Manager

1263 South Stewart Street |

Carson City, Nevada 89712

(775) 888-7351
 tmueller@dot state.nv.us

Lolene Terry :
Consultant Project Manager
HDR Engineering, Inc.

7180 Pollock Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89119

(702) 938-6002
lolene.terry@hdrinc.com

T S S U R S TNy s

13

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corridors for NDOT's Future

QUESTIONS?-

14

Sustaining Existing Corridors and Preserving Potential Corridors for NDOT's Future




i



	September agenda
	August meeting minutes
	1-Correspondence
	2-Health & Sanitation rpt
	3-August claims
	4-The Ranch at Gardnerville
	5-The Power of Tourism presentation
	6-Sierra Nevada SW modification
	7-Chichester crack fill project
	8-Main Street Program Manager's rpt
	9-Town attorney's rpt
	10-Town Manager/Engineer's rpt
	Extra info



